
 

 

  Bemidji Brainerd Detroit Lakes   Duluth Mankato Marshall New Ulm Rochester St. Cloud St. Paul 
  

 

    

 

  

St. Paul Office     520 Lafayette Road North         St. Paul, MN 55155           Phone: (651) 296-3767   

www.bwsr.state.mn.us          TTY:  (800) 627-3529          An equal opportunity employer 
 

 

DATE: March 14, 2023 

TO: Board of Water and Soil Resources’ Members, Advisors, and Staff 

FROM: John Jaschke, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: BWSR Board Meeting Notice – March 22, 2023 

The Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) will meet on Wednesday, March 22, 2023, beginning at 9:00 a.m. 
The meeting will be held in the lower-level Board Room, at 520 Lafayette Road North, St. Paul and by Microsoft 
Teams. Individuals interested in attending the meeting through Teams should do so by either 1) logging into 
Teams by clicking here to join the meeting or 2) join by audio only conference call by calling telephone number:  
651-395-7448 and entering the conference ID: 293 933 020#.  

The following information pertains to agenda items: 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Historical Context: Tribes – As part of continuous learning, a summary will be shared of historical events 
that have shaped and impacted Tribal Nations in Minnesota. Also, an overview of agency responsibilities 
under Minn. Stat. §10.65 Government-to-Government Relationship with Tribal Governments will be 
provided.  INFORMATION ITEM  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

Grants Program and Policy Committee 
1. 2023 Request for Proposals for One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grants – The purpose of this agenda 

item is for the Board to approve the 2023 Request for Proposals for One Watershed, One Plan Planning 
Grants. This is the seventh year BWSR is offering planning grants. The RFP has evolved over time to 
encourage more discussion among prospective planning groups during proposal development and to refine 
BWSR selection criteria. Relative to the 2022 RFP, only the dates changed for the 2023 RFP. This grant 
program operates under the policy updated by the by the Board in December 2022. DECISION ITEM  

Northern Region Committee 
1. St. Louis River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – The St. Louis River watershed was selected by 

BWSR as one of the planning areas for the One Watershed, One Plan program in 2020. The watershed 
partnership Policy Committee and Advisory Committee members have attended regularly scheduled meetings 
and submitted the St. Louis River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan to BWSR on 
January 12, 2023, for review and approval. The Northern Regional Committee met on March 1, 2023, to 
review the content of the Plan, State agency comments on the Plan, and to make a recommendation. The 
Committee recommends approval of the submitted Plan by the full Board. DECISION ITEM 

  

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_ZjZmODA4NDYtNzBmNi00Mzc5LWFiMWYtNTNhNDNlMTI0ZGUx%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%2522eb14b046-24c4-4519-8f26-b89c2159828c%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522e6e104a6-0f3c-49b3-91d1-57930781bae3%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7Crachel.l.mueller%40state.mn.us%7Cf2c24d899c5645ed553408dabce15461%7Ceb14b04624c445198f26b89c2159828c%7C0%7C0%7C638029973235617773%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9KGt%2F6%2BldjbCxJQjJuVmxAxdCsAO8LkKoMuLUB3VbMY%3D&reserved=0


BWSR Board Meeting Notice Page 2 

Southern Region Committee 
1. Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – The Des Moines River 

Watershed was selected by BWSR as one of the seven planning areas for the One Watershed, One Plan 
program in 2020. The watershed partnership Policy Committee, Advisory Committee, and Planning Work 
Group members have attended regularly scheduled meetings and submitted the Des Moines River 
Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan to BWSR on January 6, 2023 for review and 
approval. The Southern Regional Committee (Committee) met on March 13, 2023 to review the content of 
the Plan, State agency comments on the Plan, and to make a recommendation for approval. The Committee 
recommends approval by the full Board. DECISION ITEM 

2. Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank 
watershed was selected by BWSR for the One Watershed, One Plan program in 2021. The watershed 
partnership Policy Committee, Advisory Committee, and Steering Team members have attended regularly 
scheduled meetings and submitted the Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management 
Plan to BWSR on January 6, 2023, for review and approval. The Southern Regional Committee met on March 
13, 2023, to review the content of the Plan, State agency comments on the Plan, and to make a 
recommendation for approval. The Committee recommends approval of the submitted Plan by the full 
Board. DECISION ITEM 

3. Lower Minnesota River West Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – The Lower Minnesota River 
West was selected by BWSR for a One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grant in August of 2019. The 
Partnership established a Memorandum of Agreement in the spring of 2020 for the purposes of watershed 
planning. Planning was initiated on June 6, 2020 via notification to designated Plan review authorities. The 
Partnership has followed One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures and the Policy Committee, 
Technical Advisory Committee, and Planning Work Group members have attended regularly scheduled 
meetings and kept open communication throughout Plan development. The Partnership submitted the 
Lower Minnesota River West Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) to BWSR on December 
28, 2022 for review and approval. The Southern Regional Committee (Committee) met on March 13, 2023 to 
review the planning process, the content of the Plan, State agency comments on the Plan, and to make a 
recommendation for approval. The Committee recommends approval by the full Board. DECISION ITEM  

4. Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – The WinLaC 
Partnership was selected by BWSR for a One Watershed One Plan (1W1P) Planning Grant in August of 2020. 
The Partnership established a Memorandum of Agreement on February 17, 2021 for the purposes of watershed 
planning. Planning was initiated on March 9, 2021 via notification to designated plan review authorities. The 
Partnership has followed 1W1P Operating Procedures and the Policy Committee, Advisory Committee, and 
Planning Work Group members have attended regularly scheduled meetings and kept open communication 
throughout Plan development. The Partnership submitted the WinLaC Plan to BWSR on March 3, 2023 for 
review and approval. The Southern Regional Committee (Committee) met on March 13, 2023 to review the 
planning process, the content of the Plan, State agency comments on the Plan, and to make a recommendation 
for approval. The Committee recommends approval by the full Board. DECISION ITEM   

If you have any questions regarding the agenda, please feel free to call me at 651-539-2587. We look forward to 
seeing you on March 22nd.  



BWSR Board Meeting Agenda Page 1 

BOARD OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES 
520 LAFAYETTE ROAD NORTH 

ST. PAUL, MN 55155 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 22, 2023 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA 

9:00 AM CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

MINUTES OF JANUARY 25, 2023 BOARD MEETING 

PUBLIC ACCESS FORUM (10-minute agenda time, two-minute limit/person) 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW STAFF 
• Renee Sutton, Contracts Accountant 
• Lisa Sweep, Accounting Technician 
• Brad Leibfried, Easement Acquisition Specialist  
• Alan Ritchie, Easement Acquisition Specialist  

REPORTS 
• Chair & Administrative Advisory Committee – Gerald Van Amburg 
• Executive Director – John Jaschke  
• Audit & Oversight Committee – Joe Collins 
• Dispute Resolution and Compliance Report – Travis Germundson/Rich Sve 
• Grants Program & Policy Committee – Todd Holman 
• RIM Reserve Committee – Jayne Hager Dee 
• Water Management & Strategic Planning Committee – Joe Collins 
• Wetland Conservation Committee – Jill Crafton 
• Buffers, Soils & Drainage Committee – Mark Zabel 
• Drainage Work Group – Neil Peterson/Tom Gile 

AGENCY REPORTS 
• Minnesota Department of Agriculture – Thom Petersen 
• Minnesota Department of Health – Steve Robertson 
• Minnesota Department of Natural Resources – Sarah Strommen 
• Minnesota Extension – John Bilotta 
• Minnesota Pollution Control Agency – Katrina Kessler 

ADVISORY COMMENTS 
• Association of Minnesota Counties – Brian Martinson 
• Minnesota Association of Conservation District Employees – Nicole Bernd 
• Minnesota Association of Soil & Water Conservation Districts – LeAnn Buck 
• Minnesota Association of Townships – Eunice Biel 
• Minnesota Watersheds – Jan Voit 
• Natural Resources Conservation Service – Troy Daniell 



BWSR Board Meeting Agenda Page 2 

OLD BUSINESS 
1. Historical Context: Tribes – Melissa King and Craig Engwall – INFORMATION ITEM 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Grants Program and Policy Committee 
1. 2023 Request for Proposals for One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grants – Julie Westerlund – 

DECISION ITEM 

Northern Region Committee 
1. St. Louis River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Rich Sve – DECISION ITEM 

Southern Region Committee 
1. Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Ted Winter and 

Doug Goodrich – DECISION ITEM 

2. Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Ted Winter and 
Jason Beckler – DECISION ITEM 

3. Lower Minnesota River West Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Ted Winter, Jeremy 
Maul, and Ed Lenz – DECISION ITEM 

4. Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Ted 
Winter and Adam Beilke – DECISION ITEM 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 
• BWSR meeting is scheduled for 9:00 a.m., April 26, 2023, in St. Paul and by MS Teams. 

ADJOURN 



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 1 

BOARD OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES 
520 LAFAYETTE ROAD NORTH 
LOWER-LEVEL BOARD ROOM 

ST. PAUL, MN  55155 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 25, 2023 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Joe Collins, Jill Crafton, Jayne Hager Dee, Kurt Beckstrom, Neil Peterson, Rich Sve, Gerald Van Amburg, 
Ted Winter, LeRoy Ose, Kelly Kirkpatrick, Eunice Biel, Todd Holman, Ronald Staples, Mark Zabel, Katrina 
Kessler, MPCA; Marcelle Lewandowski, University of Minnesota Extension; Thom Petersen, MDA; Steve 
Robertson, MDH; Sarah Strommen, DNR 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:   
Carly Johnson  

STAFF PRESENT: 
John Jaschke, Rachel Mueller, Tom Gile, Travis Germundson, Jenny Gieseke, Jenny Mocol-Johnson, 
Rita Weaver, Marcey Westrick, Darren Mayers, Steve Christopher, Ryan Hughes, Pete Waller, 
Craig Engwall, Melissa King, Suzanne Rhees; Sharon Doucette, Annie Felix-Gerth, Julie Westerlund 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Brian Martinson, AMC; LeAnn Buck, MASWCD; Troy Daniell, NRCS, Deanna Pomije, Kanabec SWCD; 
Jannina Aristy, Toby Spanier, Joe Barten, Sarah Boser, Kim Johnson, Zach Van Orsdel 
  



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 2 

Chair Gerald VanAmburg called the meeting to order at 9:02 AM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA - Moved by Mark Zabel, seconded by Ron Staples, to adopt the agenda as 
presented. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

MINUTES OF DECEMBER 15, 2022 BOARD MEETING – Moved by Kurt Beckstrom, seconded by LeRoy 
Ose, to approve the minutes of December 15, 2022, as circulated. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

PUBLIC ACCESS FORUM 
No members of the public provided comments to the board. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 

REPORTS 
Chair & Administrative Advisory Committee – Chair Gerald Van Amburg reported there was an EQB 
meeting last week. There was a presentation on the overview of the EQB budget and work plan. There 
was a presentation on the overview of the budget request for a Minnesota-based emissions assessment 
tool and guidance to support the implementation of the environmental assessment worksheet process. 
There was also a process update on the continuous improvement effort they are instituting.  
 
Stated the Administrative Advisory Committee met yesterday morning on the DEI Plan and it’s on the 
agenda for today.  

Executive Director’s Report - John Jaschke reported the Governor’s recommendations are out and will 
hear more news on bonding along with several bills being heard for consideration. Stated Pheasant Fest 
is coming up in a couple weeks in Minneapolis.  

John reviewed the Day of Packet that included the MN Campaign Finance Board Letter, Snapshot 
articles, Governor’s Budget Recommendations for BWSR, and a Federal IRA Conservation draft 
document.  

Joe Collins asked if the state match is through a separate bonding bill or in the programs mentioned. 
John stated it could be both.  

Jill Crafton stated the working lands is an important part of the Climate Action Plan and asked if capacity 
dollars have gone out to SWCDs. John stated the Governor has a general fund recommendation on it but 
doesn’t know exactly what the number is yet.  

Audit and Oversight Committee – Joe Collins reported they met on January 12th to discuss the PRAP 
that’s on the agenda for today. 

Dispute Resolution and Compliance Report – Rich Sve reported they have not met. Travis Germundson 
reported there are presently seven appeals pending and received two new appeals since the last report. 
Appeals 22-9 and 22-8 involve an appeal of a restoration order associated with the same landowner and 
parcel in Otter Tail County. Both involved the placement of fill and request that the appeals be placed in 
abeyance. Currently no decisions have been made on those appeals.  

** 
23-01 
 

** 
23-02 



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 3 

Actions were taken in the last month on file 22-7 and 22-6. File 22-7, the appeal has been remanded 
back to the Brown County to develop an adequate record that considers the written technical evaluation 
panel report and to make a new decision on the application. File 22-6, the appeal has been placed in 
abeyance and the Restoration Order stayed for the submittal of a complete application to the local unit 
of government.  

Travis gave a Buffer Compliance Status Update. Stated no notable changes have occurred over the past 
month. Stated over 750 parcels statewide have been brought into compliance over the past year.  

Grants Program & Policy Committee – Jill Crafton reported they had good discussion and items will be 
on the agenda today. 

RIM Reserve Committee – Jayne Hager Dee reported they met last week and will be bringing action 
items to the March meeting. 

Water Management & Strategic Planning Committee – Joe Collins reported a committee meeting is 
being scheduled for February.  

Wetland Conservation Committee – Jill Crafton reported the committee has not met.  

Buffers, Soils & Drainage Committee – Mark Zabel reported the committee met last night. Does not 
have any decision items on the agenda for today. Discussed buffer compliance and stated in the past 
five years they’ve reached almost full compliance. There was an overview of the Soil Loss Program. They 
talked about changes in the Multi-Purpose Drainage Program with the potential of additional funding 
going into the program. They talked about the drainage work group deliberations, two things they 
focused on were the outlet adequacy discussion and the drainage registry portal.  

Drainage Work Group (DWG) – Neil Peterson and Tom Gile reported the workgroup met in January and 
had a productive conversation on the drainage registry portal concept. Will be having another meeting 
in February to continue making progress. Stated they spent a fair amount of time talking about outlet 
adequacy at their meeting. Stated there is a lot of overlap between the concepts of outlet adequacy and 
the drainage law.  
 
Joe Collins stated in the PRAP report there has been a couple of agency recommendations of the 
counties for modernization of records. Joe asked how well it’s going and if there is anything they can do 
to help that process. Tom stated there was a LCCMR funded grant program for drainage record 
modernization that has since closed. Stated there has been a handful of drainage authorities that have 
inquired if funding was still available. Stated it would be worth talking about to see if they can pursue 
other dollars to continue that with the recent interest.  

Neil agreed there is a need to get funding for modernization.  
 
Jill Crafton stated some of the downstream impacts seemed subjective and asked if there was any 
discussion on it. Tom stated it is one of the central components of the outlet adequacy discussions. Neil 
stated there are a lot of good technical people involved and they’ll come to something that will be 
workable.  

AGENCY REPORTS 
Minnesota Department of Agriculture – Thom Petersen reported the budget was released yesterday. 
Stated the pilot Soil Equipment Grants opened last week. They have an Ag BMP loan program that has a 



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 4 

large backlog. Stated they have language for a Climate Coordinator position for the agency and that they 
currently don’t have a set person that works on climate issues. They worked with Farmers Union and 
Farmers Legal Action Group to develop a guide on carbon markets for farmers, available online.  

Neil Peterson thanked Commissioner Petersen for his work and for reaching out to them, they are 
interested in carbon sequestration.  

Minnesota Department of Health – Steve Robertson reported they are looking to make rule changes to 
make better use of the infrastructure investment JOBS Act Funding. They are looking to make some 
statutory changes that will optimize their ability to make better use of funding that will be available for 
drinking waters. Stated they will be requesting some appropriations in the Clean Water Fund.  

Steve stated they are nearing completion of the PFAS monitoring sampling efforts and hope to be done 
this quarter. Results are being posted to the dashboard on the MDH website. 

Jill Crafton stated the comments for the One Watershed One Plan looks like the Department of Health 
has been actively working with groups and asked if it’s going to help with what their reporting on. Steve 
stated they have been trying to improve ways they engage with the One Watershed One Plan process 
and hopefully they’ll see good results down the road.  

Commissioner Kessler stated they will need more resources for the PFAS that’s being reported.  

Joe Collins asked if there’s a filter for PFAS. Katrina stated they are forever chemicals and are hard to get 
rid of, working on an evaluation of treatment.  

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources – No report was provided.  

Jill Crafton stated Minnehaha Creek Watershed District was recognized as a Watershed District of the 
Year in the PRAP report. Stated they’ve done some really good work.  

Commissioner Strommen had to step away for a while but relayed to John Jaschke that there is a Re-
Leaf program in the budget for re-forestation. They also received funding to reestablish capacity at the 
State Nursery to grow seedlings. Stated additional budget information can be found on the DNR 
website. 

Minnesota Extension – Marcelle Lewandowski reported there is an Irrigation Extension position in the 
hiring process. Stated the Minnesota Office for Soil Health along with the Board of Water and Soil 
Resources have been working for almost a year on the development of the State Soil Health Action Plan. 
They are working on the first interim report and will have a final report in December. 

Ted Winter asked what the plan will mean to the public is after the action framework is finalized. 
Marcelle stated it will be a task for next year and that their immediate audiences are the Clean Water 
Council and the Board of Water and Soil Resources.  

Minnesota Pollution Control Agency – Katrina Kessler reported they are excited about the opportunities 
presented in the Governor’s budget. It includes more than $700 million to help implement the Climate 
Action Framework and drive forward climate mitigation and resilience work across the state. It will also 
include an expansion of the Green Step Cities Program, money for PFAS treatment and grants, and 
money to refine the way of calculating and communicating greenhouse gas emissions. Commissioner 
Kessler stated the number one source of Minnesota’s emissions is transportation. The number two 



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 5 

source is now the agriculture and forestry sector with the generation sector moving down to number 
three.  

Jill Crafton stated Bloomington is a Green Step City and have recently acquired a no till seed drill for 
restoration programs in their natural resource areas. Thanked Commissioner Kessler for the support of 
the Green Step cities program.  

Commissioner Kessler stated the third annual Ag Urban Partnership Forum is taking place in person on 
March 1st.  

ADVISORY COMMENTS 
Association of Minnesota Counties – Brian Martinson reported on the Governor’s budget and stated 
their priority funding is for solid waste. They’re also working to increase state resources for Natural 
Resources Block Grants and County Feed Lot Officers. They are looking for support of County Ag 
Inspectors, funding for the Local Road Wetland Replacement Program, and continuing work on the 
404 Assumption. 
 
Stated DWG has had good conversations over last year and hope others feel they have been productive.  
AMC has their legislative conference February 22nd and 23rd. Members from around the state are 
coming to St. Paul with representatives from agencies being invited to speak. There will also be an 
opportunity for members to meet with their legislatures.  

Minnesota Association of Conservation District Employees – No report was provided. 

Minnesota Association of Soil & Water Conservation Districts – No report was provided. 

Minnesota Association of Townships – Eunice Biel reported they are having Township Tuesday 
conference calls on the first and third Tuesday of the month at 10:00 a.m. Township Day at the Capitol is 
February 1st and 4th in St. Paul where all township officials are invited to join. Township elections are in 
March, there will be supervisor and treasure positions open for most townships. There will be a spring 
short course training across the state, location and dates are available on their website. Scholarship 
applications are being offered for 2023 to 11th graders. Minnesota DNR Parks and Trails Grant Program 
applications for 2023 are now available. 

Minnesota Association of Watershed Districts – No report provided. 

Chair Van Amburg stated February 15th and 16th they are having a legislative day.  

John Jaschke stated they are changing their name from Minnesota Association of Watershed Districts to 
Minnesota Watersheds.  

Natural Resources Conservation Service – Troy Daniell reported they will be receiving additional IRA 
funds in the next couple years in addition to the existing appropriation levels under the existing farm 
bill. Stated in addition to the increase in RCPP funds, it will also include Ag Land Easements.  

Stated there is currently a notice of funding out for tribes to assist with food sovereignty issues and 
concerns they have addressing natural resource concerns.  



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 6 

Stated there was a release on Grants.gov for general entities that included several elements. One is 
grazing to help provide infrastructure for temporary or targeted grazing for CRP, WRP type landscapes 
or other easements. It also included seedlings, an element for water management, “field to plate” to 
assist with sustainable food systems, and there is an Ag retailer to conservation part. 

Kelly Kirkpatrick thanked STC Daniell for his work. 

Todd Holman stated STC Daniell hosted a recent State Technical Advisory Committee in Saint Cloud 
where it was a great coming together of networking with the opportunity to hear and learn from 
programs.  

Chair Van Amburg stated the Red River Watershed Management Board and Flood Damage Reduction 
Work Group joint conference is being held on February 22nd and 23rd in Moorhead at the Marriott.  

Chair Van Amburg called a recess at 10:50 a.m. and called the meeting back to order at 11:05 a.m. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Administrative Advisory Committee 
BWSR Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Plan – Jenny Gieseke, Jannina Aristy, and Toby Spanier presented 
BWSR Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Plan. 

BWSR is committed to diversity, equity and inclusion (DEI) and is working internally to improve DEI 
policies and practices across the organization. To effectively infuse DEI values and practices into our 
work, ongoing efforts must be intentional and strategic. The BWSR DEI Plan identifies five strategic 
priority areas for BWSR to focus over the next three years. The associated Learning and Development 
Framework outlines the learning approaches required to build capacity to execute BWSR’s DEI strategy 
and plan. S&E Consultants facilitated discussions and obtained feedback from BWSR staff, the 
Administrative Advisory Committee, and BWSR’s partners in developing the plan. The Administrative 
Advisory Committee has recommended approval of the DEI Plan.  

Kelly Kirkpatrick asked if this plan addresses tokenism. Jannina stated the plan does address it.  

Joe Collins stated this plan is a way to serve all of Minnesota.  

Jayne Hager Dee stated this is a chance to influence traditional audiences to help them be more aware. 

Sarah Strommen stated she thinks this is a great plan and noted not to conflate the relationship with 
indigenous communities and native cultures with the government-to-government relationships that 
state agencies have with tribes.  

Rich Sve noted a correction in the Board Resolution to remove “further” from the last statement.  
 
Moved by Mark Zabel, seconded by Kelly Kirkpatrick, to approve the BWSR Diversity, Equity and 
Inclusion Plan. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

Audit and Oversight Committee 
2022 Performance Review and Assistance Program Legislative Report – Jenny Gieseke and 
Jenny Mocol-Johnson presented the 2022 Performance Review and Assistance Program Legislative 
Report.  

** 
23-03 
 

https://www.grants.gov/


BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 7 

BWSR is required to provide a report annually to the legislature on Performance Review and Assistance 
Program activities as prescribed by Minnesota Statutes Chapter 103B.102, Subdivision 3, effective 
February 1, 2008. BWSR staff have prepared a report that describes the program activities for 2022, 
including summaries of the activities of BWSRs local government partners, and goals and objectives for 
future PRAP activities. The report was presented to and has recommendation from the BWSR Audit and 
Oversight Committee for BWSR Board approval. 

Rich Sve noted a typo in the Board Order which was corrected.  

Rich Sve left the meeting at 12:13 p.m. 

Moved by Joe Collins, seconded by Kelly Kirkpatrick, to approve the 2022 Performance Review and 
Assistance Program Legislative Report. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

Grants Program and Policy Committee 
FY23 Water Quality and Storage Pilot Grant Program – Rita Weaver presented FY23 Water Quality and 
Storage Pilot Grant Program.  

In 2021 the MN Legislature passed a law requiring BWSR to develop a Water Quality and Storage 
Program. In FY22 BWSR released the RFP, received and reviewed the grant applications, scored the 
applications and entered into three grant agreements with local partners. Upon completion of the first 
year of the pilot program, staff would like to see minor changes to the Water Quality and Storage Pilot 
Grant program scoring and process. The more significant changes include review of the selected 
applicants by the board and modification to the scoring criteria to formalize how projects in or out of 
the priority areas will rank. The FY program policy and RFP have been reviewed by the SMT and will be 
presented to the GP&P committee on January 23, 2023.  

Ron Staples asked if legislature approves the funding will the amount of money go to $27 million. John 
Jaschke stated its going to be $17 million and would take the pilot label off it. Ron stated he would like 
103E to be included. Rita stated projects that are associated with 103E are not eligible for funding right 
now due to a disagreement of how those projects might be connected.  

Moved by Ted Winter, seconded by Joe Collins, to approve the FY23 Water Quality and Storage Pilot 
Grant Program. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

Amendment to Board Order #22-55: Clean Water Fund Competitive Grants – Marcey Westrick 
presented Amendment to Board Order #22-55: Clean Water Fund Competitive Grants. 

Applications C23-1872 and C23-9488 referenced a plan amendment to a comprehensive watershed 
management plan that was anticipated to be approved prior to the BWSR Board award of the FY23 CWF 
Competitive grants. During the process of approving the amendment, an administrative error was 
discovered, and the plan amendment could not be approved as planned at no fault of the local 
governments seeking the amendment. The requested extension will allow for the plan amendment to go 
through an amendment process that can be approved.  

Moved by Neil Peterson, seconded by Joe Collins, to approve the Amendment to Board Order #22-55: 
Clean Water Fund Competitive Grants. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

** 
23-05 
 

** 
23-06 
 

** 
23-04 



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 8 

Central Region Committee 
Snake River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Darren Mayers presented Snake River 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan  

The Snake River Watershed is located in east-central Minnesota within the St. Croix River Basin. The 
watershed has over 87 lakes and 128 streams. The Snake River meanders over 100 miles from its 
headwaters in southeast Aitkin County through Kanabec County and east through Pine County to its 
confluence with the St. Croix River.  

The Plan actions generally focus on development of studies and data collection to better target 
implementation actions, on-the-ground implementation of agricultural, forestry, and urban BMPs to 
address the priority issues, policy improvements where feasible and timely, and active public outreach 
and engagement by local partners.  

The total 10-year estimated cost of Plan implementation is $19,794,500 of which 51% will be used to 
improve and protect lakes, streams, and rivers, 17% will focus on groundwater issues, 11% on land use 
and cover activities with the remaining used for the other priority issue areas. 

The Partnership held a 60-day review process that ended on September 5, 2022 and held two public 
hearings on September 20, 2022 in different watershed locations. The final draft of the Plan, all written 
public comments and responses, and public hearing comments and responses were submitted on 
November 30, 2022 to the state review agencies and BWSR for the final 90-day review and approval of 
the Plan. The Partnership has incorporated the majority of agency and public comments received 
throughout the Plan review process. 

On January 5, 2023, the Central Region Committee met to review and discuss the Plan. The committee’s 
decision was to recommend approval of the Snake River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
as submitted to the full board per the attached draft Order.  

Kurt Beckstrom stated he is very proud of staff in the district and those who worked on it.  

Jill Crafton noted they included to manage water resources and related ecosystems to sustain their long-
term health and integrity and thought that was excellent.  

Joe Collins stated their cost sharing incentives really made sense in the plan and noted they want to 
promote native resilient trees in their forests. 

Moved by Joe Collins, seconded by Jill Crafton, to approve the Snake River Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

John Jaschke suggested the New Business agenda item on the Historical Context on Tribes be moved to 
a future meeting to allow for more time. Board members agreed to have it presented at another time. 
 
Lower Mississippi River Watershed Management Organization Watershed Management Plan – Steve 
Christopher presented Lower Mississippi River Watershed Management Organization Watershed 
Management Plan. 

Background: 
The Lower Mississippi River Watershed Management Organization (LMRWMO) was established in 1985. 
The vision of the LMRWMO is to manage water resources and related ecosystems to sustain their long-

** 
23-07 
 



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 9 

term health and integrity through member city collaboration and partnerships with other with other 
water management organizations with member city citizen support and participation. The current plan 
was approved by the Board in September 2011.  

The LMRWMO is located in the southeast part of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, in northern Dakota 
County and southern Ramsey County. It encompasses approximately 58 square miles, abutting the south 
and west sides of the Mississippi River from the confluence of the Mississippi and the Minnesota Rivers 
to Rosemount. Adjoining watershed management entities include the Lower Minnesota River 
Watershed District, the Eagan-Inver Grove Heights WMO, and the Vermillion River Watershed Joint 
Powers Organization. The LMRWMO is composed of seven cities wholly or partially within the boundary 
including Inver Grove Heights, Lilydale, Mendota, Mendota Heights, St. Paul, South St. Paul, Sunfish 
Lake, and West St. Paul. 

Plan Process and Highlights: 
The LMRWMO initiated the process on updating its Watershed Management Plan (Plan) in mid-2020 
soliciting input from its stakeholders, conducting a survey, convening a Technical Advisory Committee, 
as well as holding a virtual public kickoff meeting. The LMRWMO Board held a workshop to discuss the 
input submitted and develop a list of priorities and goals for their next ten years of implementation.  

Through the process identified above, the LMRWMO identified the following as their highest priority 
issues:  

• Water quality 
o Stormwater runoff management 
o In-lake and in-stream water quality 
o Impaired waters 
o Chloride management 
o Mississippi River Outfalls and bluff erosion 

• Education and engagement 
• Partner collaboration 

o Grant and cost-share projects 
o Regulatory framework 

The LMRWMO developed three levels for its priority waterbodies with the Mississippi River, Interstate 
Valley Creek, Ivy Falls Creek, Kaposia Creek, Thompson Lake, Rogers Lake, and Seidls Lake designated 
within the highest level. 

The LMRWMO’s implementation will focus on non-degradation goals for priority waterbody water 
quality and the draft Plan has an increased focus on streams through studies and restoration activities. 
The LMRWMO will continue its strong education and outreach program which includes workshops for 
project design of small-scale stormwater best management practices. Overall, this Plan continues to 
position the LMRWMO well to continue its implementation benefitting the most important surface 
waters within the watershed through its staff and partners. 

Jayne Hager Dee stated she will be abstaining since she is a member of Dakota County SWCD Board. 
Stated they’ve done a nice job with this plan. 

Moved by Joe Collins, seconded by Jill Crafton, to approve the Lower Mississippi River Watershed 
Management Organization Watershed Management Plan. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

** 
23-08 



BWSR Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 Page 10 

Northern Region Committee 
Otter Tail River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Kurt Beckstrom and Pete Waller 
presented Otter Tail River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan. 
 
The Otter Tail River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) planning area is in Northwest 
Minnesota. The Plan was developed as part of the One Watershed, One Plan program by Cormorant 
Lakes Watershed District, Pelican River Watershed District, Becker Soil and Water Conservation District 
(SWCD), East Otter Tail SWCD West Otter Tail SWCD, Becker County, and Otter Tail County.  
On December 15, 2022, BWSR received the Plan, a record of the public hearing, and copies of all written 
comments pertaining to the Plan for final State review. The planning partnership has responded to all 
comments received during the 60-day review period and incorporated appropriate revisions to the final 
Plan.  

BWSR staff completed its review and subsequently found the Plan meets the requirements of Minnesota 
Statutes and BWSR Policy. 

On January 4, 2023, the Northern Regional Committee met to review and discuss the Plan. The 
Committee’s decision was to recommend approval of the Otter Tail River Watershed Comprehensive 
Watershed Management Plan as submitted to the full Board per the attached draft Order.  

Jayne Hager Dee stated she was impressed with the response to the survey and people that attended 
the outreach meetings. Jayne asked how they engage with people who have vacation homes and if 
there are any tensions with year-round residents and the part timers. Pete stated there were tensions 
and they will continue with education and communication. 

Joe Collins stated the plan did a good job of showing delegation duties.  

Jill Crafton thanked them for their work.  

Chair Van Amburg noted they recognized the importance of climate change as addressed directly in the 
plan. 

Moved by Kurt Beckstrom, seconded by Mark Zabel, to approve the Otter Tail River Comprehensive 
Watershed Management Plan. Motion passed on a roll call vote. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 
• Southern Region Committee is scheduled for 10:00 a.m., February 23, 2023, location TBD. 
• BWSR meeting is scheduled for 9:00 a.m., March 22, 2023, in St. Paul and by MS Teams. 

Chair VanAmburg adjourned the meeting at 12:54 PM 

Respectfully submitted, 

Gerald Van Amburg 
Chair 

** 
23-09 
 



Updated 2/13/2020 www.bwsr.state.mn.us  1 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Dispute Resolution/Compliance Report  

Meeting Date: March 22, 2023  

Agenda Category: ☐ Committee Recommendation ☐ New Business ☐ Old Business 
Item Type: ☐ Decision ☐ Discussion ☒ Information 
Keywords for Electronic 
Searchability: Wetland Conservation Act Appeals/Buffer Compliance  

Section/Region: Central  
Contact: Travis Germundson 
Prepared by: Travis Germundson 
Reviewed by:  Committee(s) 
Presented by: Rich Sve DRC Chair/Travis Germundson 
Time requested: 5 minutes  

☐  Audio/Visual Equipment Needed for Agenda Item Presentation 

Attachments: ☐ Resolution ☐ Order ☐ Map ☒ Other Supporting Information 

Fiscal/Policy Impact 
☒ None ☐ General Fund Budget 
☐ Amended Policy Requested ☐ Capital Budget 
☐ New Policy Requested ☐ Outdoor Heritage Fund Budget 
☐ Other:  ☐ Clean Water Fund Budget 

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 

None 

LINKS TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

See attached report. 

SUMMARY (Consider:  history, reason for consideration now, alternatives evaluated, basis for recommendation) 

The report provides a monthly update on the number of appeals filed with the Board of Water and Soil Resources 
and summary on buffer compliance/enforcement actions statewide. 

 



 1 

Dispute Resolution and Compliance Report 
March 2, 2023 

By: Travis Germundson 

There are presently nine appeals pending. There have been two new appeals filed since last report. 

Format note: New appeals that have been filed since last report to the Board.  
Appeals that have been decided since last report to the Board.  

File 23-2 (2-28-23) This is an appeal of a Buffer Administrative Penalty Order in Pope County. The APO 
regards the placement of a 50’ buffer or implementation of an approved alternative practice. The petition 
claims that public watercourse was improperly classified. No decision has been made on the appeal. 

File 23-1 (2-27-23) This is an appeal of a WCA Restoration Order in Olmsted County. The appeal regards 
the impact of approximately 6,000 sq. ft. of wetland associated with a parking lot expansion project. No 
decision has been made on the appeal. 

File 22-9 (12-27-2022) This is an appeal of a WCA Restoration Order in Otter Tail County. The appeal 
regards the placement of 34,125 sq. ft. of fill in a wetland. This appeal involves the same landowner and 
wetland as Appeal File 22-8. The petition request that that the appeal be placed in abeyance for a decision 
on an after-the-fact application for exemption and no-loss. The appeal has been placed in abeyance and 
the Restoration Order stayed until the LGU makes a final decision on the after-the-fact application.  

File 22-8 (12-14-2022) This is an appeal of a WCA Restoration Order in Otter Tail County. The appeal 
regards the placement of 27,770 sq. ft. of fill in a wetland. This appeal involves the same landowner and 
wetland as Appeal File 22-9. The petition request that that the appeal be placed in abeyance for the 
submittal/decision of an after-the-fact application for exemption and no-loss. The appeal has been placed 
in abeyance and the Restoration Order stayed until the LGU makes a final decision on the after-the-fact 
application. 

File 22-7 (12-6-2022) This is an appeal of a WCA notice of decision involving a replacement plan in Brown 
County. The appeal regards the approval of an after-the-fact replacement plan for wetland impacts 
associated with a road and turnaround areas located in a campground facility. The appeal has been 
remanded back to the Brown County to develop an adequate record that considers the written Technical 
Evaluation Panel Report. The 60-day deadline for remand proceedings has been extended. 

File 22-6 (11-16-2022) This is an appeal of a WCA Restoration Order in Wright County. The appeal regards 
the alleged drainage impacts to wetlands associated with the installation of new drain tile. The petition 
request that that the appeal be placed in abeyance to allow further investigation and submittal of an after-
the-fact application. The appeal has been placed in abeyance and the Restoration Order stayed for the 
submittal of a complete application.  

File 21-9 (12-17-2021) This is an appeal of a WCA notice of decision involving a no-loss determination in 
Pope County. The appeal regards the approval of a 36’ inlet structure/tile to reduce inundation and 
saturated soil on agricultural fields. At issue is the elevation that was approved (to high). The petition 
request that the appeal be placed in abeyance until technical data can be gathered. Note, this involves 
the same notice of decision being appealed under File 21-07. The appeal has been combined with file 21-
7 and placed in abeyance to allow the Technical Evaluation Panel to develop written finding of fact 
following the submission of additional technical analyses. The appeal has been remanded back to the local 



 2 

unit of government for expanded technical review and a new decision because of the submission of 
additional technical analyses. The 60-day deadline for remand proceedings has been extended. 

File 21-8 (12-17-21) This is an appeal of a WCA Restoration Order in Rock County. The appeal regards the 
alleged placement of tile lines through wetlands and DNR Public Waters. The petition request that the 
appeal be placed in abeyance for the submittal of an after-the-fact wetland application. The appeal was 
placed in abeyance and the Restoration Order stayed for further investigation and submittal of an after-
the-fact wetland application. An after-the-fact application for a no-loss was approved, which allows for 
the installation of non-perforated tile. The restoration/placement of this tile has yet to occur do to do DNR 
Public Waters permitting/approval. The time period on the stay of the Restoration Order has been 
extended.  

File 21-7 (12-14-2021) This is an appeal of a WCA notice of decision involving a no-loss determination in 
Pope County. The appeal regards approval of a 36” inlet structure/tile that allegedly rout water around 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service property and impact wetlands. At issue is the elevation that was approved 
(to low). The appeal has been combined with file 21-9 and placed in abeyance to allow the Technical 
Evaluation Panel to develop written finding of fact following the submission of additional technical 
analyses. The appeal has been remanded back to the local unit of government for expanded technical 
review and a new decision because of the submission of additional technical analyses. The 60-day deadline 
for remand proceedings has been extended. 

Summary Table for Appeals 

Type of Decision Total for Calendar Year 
2022 

Total for Calendar 
Year 2023 

Order in favor of appellant   
Order not in favor of appellant 3  
Order Modified  1  
Order Remanded 2  
Order Place Appeal in Abeyance  5  
Negotiated Settlement   
Withdrawn/Dismissed 1  

Buffer Compliance Status Update: BWSR has received Notifications of Noncompliance (NONs) on 96 
parcels from the 12 counties BWSR is responsible for enforcement. Currently there are seven active 
Corrective Action Notices (CANs) and 3 Administrative Penalty Orders (APOs) issued by BWSR that are still 
active. Of the actions being tracked over 93 of those have been resolved. 

*Statewide 35 counties are fully compliant, and 48 counties have enforcement cases in progress. Of those 
counties (with enforcement cases in progress) there are currently 452 CANs and 80 APOs actively in place. 
Of the actions being tracked over 2,423 of those have been resolved.  

*Disclaimer: These numbers are generated monthly from BWSR’s Access database. The information is 
obtained through notifications from LGUs on actions taken to bring about compliance and may not reflect 
the current status of compliance numbers. 



OLD BUSINESS 

1. Historical Context: Tribes – Melissa King and Craig Engwall – INFORMATION ITEM 



Updated 8/5/2021 www.bwsr.state.mn.us  1 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Historical Context: Tribes  

Meeting Date: March 22, 2023  

Agenda Category: ☐ Committee Recommendation ☐ New Business ☒ Old Business 
Item Type: ☐ Decision ☐ Discussion ☒ Information ☐ Non-Public Data 
Keywords for Electronic 
Searchability: Tribal Nations, Sovereignty, History 

Section/Region: Regional Operations, Central 
Contact: Melissa King 
Prepared by: Melissa King 
Reviewed by: None Committee(s) 
Presented by: Melissa King, Craig Engwall 
Time requested: 30 minutes 

☒  Audio/Visual Equipment Needed for Agenda Item Presentation 

Attachments: ☐  Resolution ☐  Order ☐  Map ☐  Other Supporting Information 

Fiscal/Policy Impact 
☒ None ☐ General Fund Budget 
☐ Amended Policy Requested ☐ Capital Budget 
☐ New Policy Requested ☐ Outdoor Heritage Fund Budget 
☐ Other:  ☐ Clean Water Fund Budget 

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 

None 

LINKS TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Minn. Stat. §10.65 

SUMMARY (Consider:  history, reason for consideration now, alternatives evaluated, basis for recommendation) 

As part of continuous learning, a summary will be shared of historical events that have shaped and impacted 
Tribal Nations in Minnesota. Also, an overview of agency responsibilities under Minn. Stat. §10.65 Government-to-
Government Relationship with Tribal Governments will be provided.   

 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/10.65


COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

Grants Program and Policy Committee 
1. 2023 Request for Proposals for One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grants – Julie Westerlund – 

DECISION ITEM 



Updated 2/13/2020 www.bwsr.state.mn.us  1 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: 2023 Request for Proposals for One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grants 

Meeting Date: March 22, 2023  

Agenda Category: ☒ Committee Recommendation ☐ New Business ☐ Old Business 
Item Type: ☒ Decision ☐ Discussion ☐ Information 
Keywords for Electronic 
Searchability: 

One Watershed, One Plan 
Planning Grant 
Request for Proposals 
RPF 

Section/Region: 
Central Region – Local Water 
Management Section 

Contact: Julie Westerlund 
Prepared by: Julie Westerlund 
Reviewed by: Grants Program and Policy Committee(s) 
Presented by: Julie Westerlund 
Time requested: 10 minutes 

☐  Audio/Visual Equipment Needed for Agenda Item Presentation 

Attachments: ☐ Resolution ☒ Order ☐ Map ☒ Other Supporting Information 

Fiscal/Policy Impact 
☐ None ☐ General Fund Budget 
☐ Amended Policy Requested ☐ Capital Budget 
☐ New Policy Requested ☐ Outdoor Heritage Fund Budget 
☐ Other:  ☒ Clean Water Fund Budget 

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
Approve the 2023 Request for Proposals for One Watershed, One Plan planning grants and authorize staff to 
distribute the RFP and manage the proposal review process. 

LINKS TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

 

SUMMARY (Consider:  history, reason for consideration now, alternatives evaluated, basis for recommendation) 

The purpose of this agenda item is for the Board to approve the 2023 Request for Proposals for One Watershed, 
One Plan Planning Grants. This is the seventh year BWSR is offering planning grants. The RFP has evolved over 
time to encourage more discussion among prospective planning groups during proposal development and to 
refine BWSR selection criteria. Relative to the 2022 RFP, only the dates changed for the 2023 RFP. This grant 
program operates under the policy updated by the by the Board in December 2022 (attached). 

 



BOARD DECISION #_______ 

 
DRAFT BOARD ORDER 

One Watershed, One Plan Program 2023 Planning Grants: Request for Proposals  

 
PURPOSE 

Authorize the 2023 Request for Proposals (RFP). 

FINDINGS OF FACT / RECITALS 

1. Minnesota Statutes §103B.801 establishes the Comprehensive Watershed Management Planning 
Program, also known as the One Watershed, One Plan Program. 

2. The Board has authority under Minnesota Statutes §103B.3369 to award grants to local units of 
government with jurisdiction in water and related land resources management. 

3. The Laws of Minnesota 2021, 1st Special Session, Chapter 1, Article 2, Section 6 (i) appropriated funds to 
the Board for assistance, oversight, and grants to local governments to transition local water 
management plans to a watershed approach. 

4. The One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grant 2023 RFP was reviewed and approved by the Board’s 
Senior Management Team on February 7, 2023 to forward to the Board’s Grants Program and Policy 
Committee for consideration.  

5. The Board’s Grants Program and Policy Committee reviewed the 2023 One Watershed, One Plan 
Planning Grant RFP on February 27, 2023 and recommended approval to the Board. 

ORDER 

The Board hereby: 

1. Authorizes staff to finalize, distribute, and promote a 2023 Request for Proposals for the One 
Watershed, One Plan Planning Grants. 

Dated at St. Paul, Minnesota, this March 22, 2023 

MINNESOTA BOARD OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES 

 

____________________________________ Date:  ________________________ 

Gerald Van Amburg, Chair 
Board of Water and Soil Resources 

Attachments: 
• One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grant Policy  
• 2023 Planning Grant Request for Proposals 



  

 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 1 
 

 

One Watershed, One Plan 
Planning Grants 
 

Request for Proposals  March 24, 2023 
Request for Proposals (RFP) General Information 

The Clean Water Fund was established to implement part of Article XI, Section 15 of the Minnesota Constitution, 
with the purpose of protecting, enhancing, and restoring water quality in lakes, rivers, and streams in addition to 
protecting ground water and drinking water sources from degradation. The appropriation language governing 
the use of these funds is in Laws of Minnesota 2019, 1st Special Session, Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 7 (i) and 
Laws of Minnesota 2021, 1st Special session, Chapter 1, Article 2, Section 6 (i). These funds must supplement 
traditional sources of funding and may not be used as a substitute to fund activities or programs. Final funding 
decisions will be dependent on the actual funds available. BWSR is currently making approximately $1,100,000 
available; additional funding may be made available for this purpose at a later date. 

Proposal Guidelines 

Proposals must be in PDF format and will be submitted electronically via: BWSR.Grants@state.mn.us.   

1. Proposals are subject to a five-page limit, minimum font size 11 pt. 

2. Proposals must include a one-page map of the watershed (maps are not included in the page limit) in 
PDF format. The map may be letter, legal, or ledger size and should identify the planning boundary, the 
boundaries of the planning partners, and any requested changes to the boundary. The One Watershed, 
One Plan Suggested Planning Boundaries, including a geodatabase, can be found at: 
www.bwsr.state.mn.us/planning/1W1P/index.html.  

3. Proposals may be submitted by one or more of the eligible local governments on behalf of others in the 
watershed area. Respondents should demonstrate that a sufficient commitment exists to implement the 
project through a supporting motion or resolution from the board of each identified participant. A 
formal agreement between participants establishing a partnership to develop a plan will be required 
prior to execution of the grant agreement. If participants are unable to establish a formal agreement 
and work plan within six months of successful grant notification, the grant may be rescinded, and funds 
redistributed.  

4. Respondents who were previously awarded Clean Water Funds and have expended less than 50% of 
previous award(s) at the time of this proposal may need to demonstrate organizational capacity to 
finalize current projects and complete a new project concurrently. 

5. A cost estimate is a requirement for the project proposal. The final grant amount for successful 
respondents will be determined upon completion of a grant work plan and detailed budget. No cash 
match will be required of grant recipients.   

  

mailto:BWSR.Grants@state.mn.us
http://www.bwsr.state.mn.us/planning/1W1P/index.html


 

 

 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 2 
 

Grant Execution 

Successful respondents will be required to complete a planning agreement and submit a detailed budget and 
work plan prior to execution of the grant agreement. For template agreements, work plans, and budgets, 
contact julie.westerlund@state.mn.us.  

Policies for participating in the program as well as additional resources for planning, can be found at: 
www.bwsr.state.mn.us/planning/1W1P/index.html. Successful respondents will be subject to the versions the 
One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures and the One Watershed, One Plan - Plan Content Requirements 
that are in place when planning grants are approved. 

Project Period 

The project period starts when the grant agreement is executed, meaning all required signatures have been 
obtained. Work that occurs before this date is not eligible for reimbursement with grant funds. All grants must 
be completed by June 30, 2026. 

Payment Schedule  

Grant payments will be distributed in three installments to the designated grantee for the planning region. The 
first payment of 50% of the grant amount will be paid after work plan approval and execution of the grant 
agreement, provided the grantee is in compliance with all BWSR website and eLINK reporting requirements for 
previously awarded BWSR grants. The second payment of 40% of the grant amount will be paid once the 
grantee has provided BWSR with notification and BWSR has reconciled expenditures of the initial payment. The 
last 10% will be paid after all final reporting requirements are met, the grantee has provided BWSR with a final 
financial report, and BWSR has reconciled these expenditures.    

Incomplete Proposals 

Proposals that do not comply with all requirements, including incomplete or missing proposal components, will 
not be considered for funding. 

Clean Water Fund Project Reporting Requirements 

1. All grantees are required to report on the outcomes, activities, and accomplishments of Clean Water 
Fund grants. All BWSR funded projects will be required to develop a work plan, including detail relating 
to the outcome(s) of the proposed project. All activities will be reported via the eLINK reporting system. 
Grant funds may be used for local grant management and reporting that are directly related to and 
necessary for implementing this activity. For more information go to 
www.bwsr.state.mn.us/outreach/eLINK/index.html. 

2. BWSR Clean Water Funds will be administered via a standard grant agreement. BWSR will use grant 
agreements as contracts for assurance of deliverables and compliance with appropriate statutes, rules 
and established policies. Willful or negligent disregard of relevant statutes, rules and policies may lead 
to imposition of financial penalties on the grant recipient.  

3. When practicable, grantees shall prominently display on their website the legacy logo. Grant recipients 
must display on their website either a link to their project from the Legislative Coordinating Commission 
Legacy Site (http://legacy.leg.mn) or a clean water project summary that includes a description of the 
grant activities, including expenditure of grant funds and measurable outcomes  
(www.bwsr.state.mn.us/cleanwaterfund/stories/) 

mailto:julie.westerlund@state.mn.us
http://www.bwsr.state.mn.us/planning/1W1P/index.html
http://www.bwsr.state.mn.us/outreach/eLINK/index.html
http://legacy.leg.mn/
http://www.bwsr.state.mn.us/cleanwaterfund/stories/


 

 

 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 3 
 

4. When practicable, grantees must display the legacy logo on printed and other materials funded with 
money from the Clean Water Fund. The logo and specifications can be found at 
http://www.legacy.leg.mn/legacy-logo 

5. Grantees will be required to document local involvement in the plan development process in order to 
demonstrate that the grant is supplementing/enhancing water resource restoration and protection 
activities and not supplanting traditional sources of funding. 

Grants and Public Information  

Under Minnesota Statute 13.599, responses to an RFP are nonpublic until the proposal deadline is reached. At 
that time, the name and address of the grantee, and the amount requested becomes public. All other data is 
nonpublic until the negotiation of the grant agreement with the selected grantee is completed. After the 
evaluation process is completed, all data (except trade secret data) becomes public. Data created during the 
evaluation process is nonpublic until the negotiation of the grant agreement with the selected grantee(s) is 
completed. 

Conflict of Interest  

State Grant Policy 08-01, (see https://mn.gov/admin/government/grants/policies-statutes-forms/) Conflict of 
Interest for State Grant-Making also applies to BWSR grantees. Grantees’ conflicts of interest are generally 
considered organizational conflicts of interest. Organizational conflicts of interest occur with any of the 
following scenarios:  

1. A grantee is unable or potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice due to competing 
duties or loyalties.  

2. A grantee’s objectivity in carrying out the grant is or might be otherwise impaired due to competing 
duties or loyalties.  

3. A grantee or potential grantee has an unfair competitive advantage through being furnished 
unauthorized proprietary information or source selection information that is not available to all 
competitors. 

Submittal 

All responses must be electronically delivered to: BWSR.Grants@state.mn.us and must be received no later than 
4:30 p.m. June 10, 2022. Late responses will not be considered. The burden of proving timely receipt is on the 
respondent. 

Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan Development Proposals 

To propose a watershed area, describe the qualifications of interested respondents. Responses should address 
the items in selection criteria #1 (see below).    

1. Provide a general watershed map of the proposed planning boundary (map may be separate from the 
written information). If the proposed planning boundary deviates from the 1W1P Suggested Planning 
Boundaries, provide a brief narrative of the reasons for the deviation, and whether all partners and 
affected or potentially affected partners in adjacent planning boundaries concur with the revised 
planning boundary. 

2. Provide the name for your watershed planning boundary. Each planning partnership determines the 
name for the planning boundary (prior to participation in the program, boundaries are only numbered).  

http://www.legacy.leg.mn/legacy-logo
https://mn.gov/admin/government/grants/policies-statutes-forms/
mailto:BWSR.Grants@state.mn.us
https://ago-item-storage.s3.us-east-1.amazonaws.com/1f49b674d85940dea8c6d240251d05e8/Suggested_1W1P_Boundaries.pdf?X-Amz-Security-Token=IQoJb3JpZ2luX2VjEIT%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2FwEaCXVzLWVhc3QtMSJHMEUCIDbrafepvb5UzhvaN%2BmYcYNORlmvQcmdVqMyzL8fPESyAiEAwwaiKprukMkenfvzSA5QKkQqJhrf4O5ms%2BIEDSptYWgqzAQIHBAAGgw2MDQ3NTgxMDI2NjUiDJnaLBPIK0V%2B66yrhCqpBF3MiC1QVM5Z78OAf1X9HAupVJoJvn2H%2Bn4i5FKrkDYVmMoVqbcdN5wQm9v7poWjlNG%2FsvofFw82YY7MYJobEw%2F7Fgs%2BkUUpuJoQn7P5gl5DxFCGkfhu0MHipAPsuT3tjVuUx3mCtaVOjosFvGsPGWqRYDhhs8qHG5ADvar3XrkpVIuIIvY26uz%2FYKW%2FuI%2BIvOXujBvVxgcH6G1pCGoymZTB6YOHHW7%2B7qkOSGy6hbVMaCr%2BoS%2FhjW6FxUHCAIw%2Bju%2B8f6kSPC7iE0T5D40Dyvf9kZl0H3ONEZa7GtKocJDTVoAHRnoNQSHIU5MjDdGBH3hHswOABI7qmt5RPHOLtJaQteT5aoCDfs1pcGuyYWVHtMTu%2Fbv0EcngJ3P7tKXlimKGR%2FfQcV6z59j5RoEGeBF7tjvSxcnTlwjwQuopE%2FxmNbVjT7mJi960LF%2F6y6f2x7iVfPLEPTzl6UmV6ymM8OM3bqxytTlliYFRgsM%2FEamxmR189PUs4wtm7T9%2B%2FWBG80xF%2BBI6PeCqFpUUo66bzlUw0NkFJ7LRaEuF6Xr0koHZXDcEyoAQVl5AnH7ZbHuVBes3491ArvWFrObq6cu5rfTKAY6ghQdMS%2B9Od3TxlHTfvqGaTuEpPu9EmYxnGPXcdxWBkZ1Soene78%2BPZqoJI%2F2VQrfShCMgFF6OUy5RIDOAaeJfh90Z7JI4t49mlK%2BycU8niIL%2FXY3N9%2BLzRsqKCEdFlaA%2B8EUBggUwzbivnwY6qQHtPEBarrZibL3KDNKr5aYOx3U8xGtilDBQJsbXiG0eAXW8HV0R9i%2BjFfFmY7UIRS9Z%2B6Yyespw3%2FXY7aTZRASFSePsujfX%2B3cFiuML%2F%2F66wqtHev3Y%2FiN5DW9k9NJnwSD6phXAvsk9p2ZBct%2F%2FbPk96Dz4GEy4gWGLsvSspv6VFadnk3R70Wh0K%2BUu2IsXxVAdA2And9BbZXkio1L3r3mo0pG6P981Wss7&X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Date=20230214T193417Z&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host&X-Amz-Expires=300&X-Amz-Credential=ASIAYZTTEK
https://ago-item-storage.s3.us-east-1.amazonaws.com/1f49b674d85940dea8c6d240251d05e8/Suggested_1W1P_Boundaries.pdf?X-Amz-Security-Token=IQoJb3JpZ2luX2VjEIT%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2F%2FwEaCXVzLWVhc3QtMSJHMEUCIDbrafepvb5UzhvaN%2BmYcYNORlmvQcmdVqMyzL8fPESyAiEAwwaiKprukMkenfvzSA5QKkQqJhrf4O5ms%2BIEDSptYWgqzAQIHBAAGgw2MDQ3NTgxMDI2NjUiDJnaLBPIK0V%2B66yrhCqpBF3MiC1QVM5Z78OAf1X9HAupVJoJvn2H%2Bn4i5FKrkDYVmMoVqbcdN5wQm9v7poWjlNG%2FsvofFw82YY7MYJobEw%2F7Fgs%2BkUUpuJoQn7P5gl5DxFCGkfhu0MHipAPsuT3tjVuUx3mCtaVOjosFvGsPGWqRYDhhs8qHG5ADvar3XrkpVIuIIvY26uz%2FYKW%2FuI%2BIvOXujBvVxgcH6G1pCGoymZTB6YOHHW7%2B7qkOSGy6hbVMaCr%2BoS%2FhjW6FxUHCAIw%2Bju%2B8f6kSPC7iE0T5D40Dyvf9kZl0H3ONEZa7GtKocJDTVoAHRnoNQSHIU5MjDdGBH3hHswOABI7qmt5RPHOLtJaQteT5aoCDfs1pcGuyYWVHtMTu%2Fbv0EcngJ3P7tKXlimKGR%2FfQcV6z59j5RoEGeBF7tjvSxcnTlwjwQuopE%2FxmNbVjT7mJi960LF%2F6y6f2x7iVfPLEPTzl6UmV6ymM8OM3bqxytTlliYFRgsM%2FEamxmR189PUs4wtm7T9%2B%2FWBG80xF%2BBI6PeCqFpUUo66bzlUw0NkFJ7LRaEuF6Xr0koHZXDcEyoAQVl5AnH7ZbHuVBes3491ArvWFrObq6cu5rfTKAY6ghQdMS%2B9Od3TxlHTfvqGaTuEpPu9EmYxnGPXcdxWBkZ1Soene78%2BPZqoJI%2F2VQrfShCMgFF6OUy5RIDOAaeJfh90Z7JI4t49mlK%2BycU8niIL%2FXY3N9%2BLzRsqKCEdFlaA%2B8EUBggUwzbivnwY6qQHtPEBarrZibL3KDNKr5aYOx3U8xGtilDBQJsbXiG0eAXW8HV0R9i%2BjFfFmY7UIRS9Z%2B6Yyespw3%2FXY7aTZRASFSePsujfX%2B3cFiuML%2F%2F66wqtHev3Y%2FiN5DW9k9NJnwSD6phXAvsk9p2ZBct%2F%2FbPk96Dz4GEy4gWGLsvSspv6VFadnk3R70Wh0K%2BUu2IsXxVAdA2And9BbZXkio1L3r3mo0pG6P981Wss7&X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Date=20230214T193417Z&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host&X-Amz-Expires=300&X-Amz-Credential=ASIAYZTTEK


 

 

 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 4 
 

3. In consideration of the local government units (LGUs) within the boundary, provide a table with a list of 
all counties, soils and water conservation districts, watershed districts, and watershed management 
organizations, and the percentage of the jurisdictional land area of each local government within the 
boundary. The table must include: 

a. Whether each LGU is a required participant (see section II of the One Watershed, One Plan 
Operating Procedures)   

b. Indication of interest of each LGU (e.g. verbal, letter, resolution, etc.) or why a given LGU is not 
interested 

c. Name and contact information for the primary staff contact(s) for each LGU 

Proposals may also list potential or confirmed optional participants as described in the One Watershed, 
One Plan Operating Procedures. For a list of required participants and land percentages for planning 
boundaries shown on the 1W1P Suggested Planning Boundaries, contact julie.westerlund@state.mn.us.  

4. Describe technical information data sources for surface water, groundwater, and land management 
(plans, TMDLs, models, targeting tools, WRAPS, landscape stewardship plans, etc.) that will help inform 
the development of the comprehensive watershed management plan. 

5. Describe the capability (experience with plan development, project and consultant management, 
facilitation, etc.) and availability (ability to commit time to the effort) of staff and local officials to 
participate in plan development.  

6. Describe how the planning partnership will leverage each LGU’s watershed management capacities and 
strengths (e.g. current water programs, areas of expertise), and how completing the plan will result in 
better resource outcomes and collaborative implementation approaches, shared services, and acquiring 
non-local funds for implementation. 

7. Describe discussions among the LGUs within the boundary regarding the plan development process (the 
minimum requirement is that initial discussions have taken place, not that decisions have been made). 

a. Potential governance structure for the planning effort (e.g., memorandum of agreement/joint 
powers collaboration or joint powers entity)  

b. Roles and responsibilities for the planning effort (e.g. administrative lead, fiscal agent, plan writing 
and facilitation consultants, etc.)  

c. Cost estimate (the cost estimate must include a 10% contingency amount) 

Selection Criteria 

All complete proposals submitted by the deadline will be reviewed by BWSR staff, with assistance from an inter-
agency review committee. The successful respondents will be selected by the Board of Water and Soil Resources 
based on: 

1. Responses to questions in this RFP, considered as follows (failure to include information that addresses 
each of the elements below will be considered an incomplete proposal):  

a. Inclusion of general watershed map and description of any boundary changes consistent with 
question 1.  

 Minimum: map (including proposed boundary changes if applicable) included with proposal 

http://www.bwsr.state.mn.us/planning/1W1P/1W1P_4-24-14.pdf
mailto:julie.westerlund@state.mn.us


 

 

 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 5 
 

b. Inclusion of a name for the watershed planning boundary consistent with question 2. 
c. Inclusion of a table of local government information consistent with question 3.   

 Minimum: indication of support from required participants 

 Minimum: potential optional participants have been identified and invited 

 Preferred: resolution of support, specific to the proposed planning boundary, signed by required 
participants 

 Preferred: optional participants have responded to invitation to participate 

d. Pertinence of existing studies, plans, and information consistent with question 4 to the development 
of the comprehensive watershed management plan.   

 Minimum: monitoring and assessment report (and stressor identification report, if applicable) 
approved 

 Preferred: TMDL calculations and WRAPS document sufficiently developed to inform planning; 
WRAPS report on public notice or approved when proposal is submitted 

 Highly Preferred:  the group has discussed and identified models and tools that will be used to 
develop a prioritized, targeted, and measurable plan 

e. Demonstration of the partnership’s readiness and commitment to planning together, based on early 
discussions of: capability, availability, and commitment to plan together, a shared understanding of 
one another’s current work and strengths, and a vision for future watershed management that 
includes better resource outcomes and improved use of existing and future funding, consistent with 
questions 5 and 6.   

 Minimum: the group (staff) has met to discuss staff capability and availability for planning, 
information about capacity and strengths present in each LGU 

 Preferred: the group (staff and governing bodies) demonstrates that a majority of participants 
are committed to ongoing collaboration and contributing resources to developing the plan.  

 Highly Preferred: the group (staff and governing bodies) has shared information about one 
another’s current plan priorities and local programs and has discussed a common vision for the 
future management of the watershed.  

f. Demonstration of understanding of the scope of work required for development of a comprehensive 
watershed management plan, consistent with questions 6 and 7.  

 Minimum: group has discussed administrative roles.  

 Preferred: potential policy members have been identified and have met; MOA is drafted. 

 Preferred: group has a clear vision for developing the plan (e.g., relative contributions of 
partners and/or consultants) 

 Highly preferred: MOA is signed by all participants  

2. Geographic distribution 

 Preference will be given to the proposals with partners that have fewer completed 
comprehensive watershed management plans 



 

 

 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 6 
 

 Preference will be given to the proposals with partners that are participating in fewer active 
planning efforts  

3. Amount of available funding  

4. Recommendation of BWSR staff and recommendation of the inter-agency review committee.  

BWSR Grant Administration 

BWSR reserves the right to provide funding to any and all proposals based on the number of eligible proposals 
submitted, anticipated staff time requirements, and the amount of funding available.    

Timeline 

 March 24, 2023– Proposal period begins  
 June 18, 2023 – Proposal deadline at 4:30 PM 
 June – August – Proposal review 
 August 24, 2023 - BWSR Board approval of planning grant recipients  
 March 15, 2024 Work plan submittal deadline 
 April 5, 2024 Work plans due, grants executed 
 Plans submitted to BWSR by June 30, 2026 

Questions 

For more information concerning the request for proposal, contact BWSR’s One Watershed, One Plan 
Coordinator:  Julie Westerlund, julie.westerlund@state.mn.us or 651-600-0694. 

mailto:julie.westerlund@state.mn.us


 

December 2022 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 1 

Grants Policy 
One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grants  
From the Board of Water and Soil Resources, State of Minnesota 

 

Version:  2.0 

Effective Date:  12/15/2022 

Approval: Board Decision #22-54 

Policy Statement 

The purpose of this policy is to provide expectations for One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grants conducted 
via the Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Clean Water Fund grants to facilitate development and 
writing of comprehensive watershed management plans consistent with Minnesota Statutes §103B.801 and to 
facilitate mid-point evaluations and/or amendments of approved plans. 

Reason for this Policy 

The Clean Water Fund was established to implement part of Article XI, Section 15, of the Minnesota 
Constitution, with the purpose of protecting, enhancing, and restoring water quality in lakes, rivers, and streams 
and to protect groundwater and drinking water sources from degradation.  

BWSR will use grant agreements for assurance of deliverables and compliance with appropriate statutes, rules 
and established policies. Willful or negligent disregard of relevant statutes, rules and policies may lead to 
imposition of financial penalties or future sanctions on the grant recipient. 

Requirements 

1. Applicant Eligibility Requirements 

Eligible applicants include counties, watershed districts, watershed management organizations, and soil and 
water conservation districts working in partnership within a single One Watershed, One Plan planning boundary, 
meeting the participation requirements outlined in the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures.  
Application for these funds is considered a joint application between participating local governments and may 
be submitted by a joint powers organization on behalf of local government members (partners). Formal 
agreement between the partners, consistent with the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures or the 
Watershed-Based Implementation Funding Policy is required prior to execution of a grant agreement. 

2. Match Requirements 

No match will be required of the grantees. Grantees will be required to document local involvement in the plan 
development, evaluation, or amendment process. 



December 2022 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 2 

3. Eligible Activities 

Eligible activities must be directly for the purposes of providing services to the plan development, evaluation, or 
amendment effort and may include activities such as: contracts and/or staff reimbursement for plan 
development, evaluation, or amendment; technical services; preparation of policy committee, advisory 
committee, or public meeting agendas and notices; taking meeting minutes; facilitating and preparing/planning 
for facilitation of policy or advisory committee meetings, or public meetings; grant reporting and administration, 
including fiscal administration; facility rental for public or committee meetings; materials and supplies for 
facilitating meetings; reasonable food costs (e.g. coffee and cookies) for public meetings; publishing meeting 
notices; and other activities which directly support or supplement the goals and outcomes expected with 
development, evaluation, or amendment of a comprehensive watershed management plan. 

4. Ineligible Expenses 

Ineligible expenses include staff time to participate in committee meetings specifically representing an 
individual’s local government unit; staff time for an individual, regularly scheduled, county water plan task force 
meeting where One Watershed, One Plan will be discussed as part of the meeting; and stipends for attendance 
at meetings. 

5. Grantee Administration of Clean Water Fund Grants 

The grantee for these funds includes the partners identified in the formal agreement establishing the 
partnership, consistent with the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures or Watershed-Based 
Implementation Funding Policy. Grant reporting, fiscal management, and administration requirements are the 
responsibility of the grantee. All grantees must follow the Grants Administration Manual policy and guidance. 

a. Formal agreement between partners is required prior to execution of a grant agreement and must 
identify the single local government unit which will act as the fiscal agent for the grant and which will act 
as a grantee authorized representative. Grant reporting, fiscal management, and administration 
requirements are the responsibility of the grantee.    

b. All grantees are required to report on the outcomes, activities, and accomplishments of Clean Water 
Fund grants. 

c. Grantees have the responsibility to approve the expenditure of funds within their partnership. The local 
government unit fiscal agent administering the grant must approve or deny expenditure of funds and 
the action taken must be documented in the governing body’s meeting minutes prior to beginning the 
funded activity. This responsibility may be designated to a policy committee if specifically identified in 
the formal agreement establishing the partnership.  

d. BWSR recommends all contracts be reviewed by the grantee’s legal counsel. All contracts must be 
consistent with Minnesota statute and rule. 

e. Grantees are required to document local involvement in the plan development, evaluation, or 
amendment process in order to demonstrate that the grant is supplementing/enhancing water resource 
restoration and protection activities.      

6. BWSR Grant Administration Requirements 

BWSR staff is authorized to develop grant agreements, including requirements and processes for project 
outcomes reporting, closeouts, and fiscal reconciliations.  



December 2022 www.bwsr.state.mn.us 3 

In the event there is a violation of the terms of the grant agreement, BWSR will enforce the grant agreement 
and evaluate appropriate actions, including repayment of grant funds at a rate up to 150% of the grant 
agreement.   

History 

Version Description Date 
2.00 Incorporated plan evaluation and amendment  2022 

1.00 Reformatted to new template and logo 2018 

0.00 New policy for One Watershed, One Plan Program March 23, 2016 

 

 

 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

Northern Regional Committee 
1. St. Louis River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Rich Sve – DECISION ITEM 

 



Updated 2/13/2020 www.bwsr.state.mn.us  1 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: St. Louis River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 

Meeting Date: March 22, 2023  

Agenda Category: ☒ Committee Recommendation ☐ New Business ☐ Old Business 
Item Type: ☒ Decision ☐ Discussion ☐ Information 
Keywords for Electronic 
Searchability: St. Louis River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 

Section/Region: Regional Operations/Northern 
Contact: Ryan Hughes 
Prepared by: Erin Loeffler 
Reviewed by: Northern Regional Committee(s) 
Presented by: Rich Sve 
Time requested: 5 minutes 

☐  Audio/Visual Equipment Needed for Agenda Item Presentation 

Attachments: ☐ Resolution ☒ Order ☒ Map ☒ Other Supporting Information 

Fiscal/Policy Impact 
☒ None ☐ General Fund Budget 
☐ Amended Policy Requested ☐ Capital Budget 
☐ New Policy Requested ☐ Outdoor Heritage Fund Budget 
☐ Other:  ☐ Clean Water Fund Budget 

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 

Approval of the St. Louis River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan as recommended by the Northern 
Regional Committee. 

LINKS TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

St. Louis River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
St. Louis River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan Appendices 
St. Louis River Watershed 60-day Formal Review  

SUMMARY (Consider:  history, reason for consideration now, alternatives evaluated, basis for recommendation) 

On January 12, 2023, BWSR received the St. Louis River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan, a record of 
the public hearing, and copies of all written comments pertaining to the Plan for final State review. The planning 
partnership has responded to all comments received during the 60-day review period and incorporated 
appropriate revisions to the final Plan.  

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1WqzK9Rv2Buc13qfa9tTiAKfxZu-WxEh4
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1WqzK9Rv2Buc13qfa9tTiAKfxZu-WxEh4
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1WqzK9Rv2Buc13qfa9tTiAKfxZu-WxEh4


BWSR staff completed its review and subsequently found the Plan meets the requirements of Minnesota Statutes 
and BWSR Policy and provided a recommendation of approval to the Northern Region Committee.  
 
On March 1, 2023, the Northern Regional Committee met to review and discuss the Plan. The Committee’s 
decision was to recommend approval of the St. Louis River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan, as 
submitted, to the full Board per the attached draft Order. 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55155 

 
 

In the Matter of the review of the 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
for the St. Louis River Watershed, pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, 
Subdivision 14 and 103B.801.  

ORDER 
APPROVING 

COMPREHENSIVE 
WATERSHED 

MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 
Whereas, the Policy Committee of the St. Louis River Watershed submitted a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan (Plan) to the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (Board) on January 12, 2023, 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution 
#18-14, and; 
 
Whereas, the Board has completed its review of the Plan; 
 
Now Therefore, the Board hereby makes the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions, and Order: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1. Partnership Establishment. The St. Louis River Watershed Partnership (Partnership) was established 

March 9, 2020, through adoption of a Memorandum of Agreement for the purposes of developing a 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan. The membership of the Partnership includes North and 
South St. Louis Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD), Carlton SWCD, as well as St. Louis County, 
Carlton County, and the Fond du Lac Band of Lake Superior Chippewa. 
 

2. Authority to Plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 allows the Board to adopt 
resolutions, policies or orders that allow a comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or 
watershed management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 
103B, 103C, or 103D to serve as substitutes for one another or be replaced with a comprehensive 
watershed management plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.801, established the Comprehensive 
Watershed Management Planning Program; also known as the One Watershed, One Plan (1W1P) 
program.  

 
3. Nature of the Watershed. The St. Louis River is a large, geographically diverse, and culturally rich 

watershed in northeastern Minnesota. The watershed covers area within Lake, St. Louis, Itasca, and 
Aitkin counties as well as the Fond du Lac Band of Lake Superior Chippewa. The watershed is entirely 
on ceded tribal land, including the 1854 and 1855 treaty areas. The St. Louis River Watershed planning 
boundary includes the Cloquet River watershed, along with a portion of the Lake Superior South 
Watershed. The planning region covers 3,000 square miles and includes 500 lakes and 2,000 miles of 
streams all flowing to Lake Superior. The watershed provides habitat for many vulnerable resources, 
including wild rice, trout and sturgeon. While most of the watershed is forest or wetlands, many 
communities make their home here, including the Mesabi Range communities, Cloquet and the City 



Page 2 of 4 

of Duluth. Mining, logging, farming and industry are historically and currently part of this watershed 
and have drastically altered the watershed from its original form.

 
4. Plan Development. The Plan was developed as a single, concise, and coordinated approach to 

watershed management. The Plan consolidates policies, programs, and implementation strategies 
from existing data, studies and plans, and incorporates input from multiple planning partners to 
provide a single plan for management of the watershed. The Plan focuses on prioritized, targeted, and 
measurable implementation efforts and lays out specific actions to manage water quantity, protect 
and restore water quality, natural habitat, recreational uses and drinking water sources in the 
watershed. 

5. Plan Review. On January 12, 2023, the Board received the Plan, a record of the public hearing, and 
copies of all written comments pertaining to the Plan for final State review pursuant to Board 
Resolution #18-14. During the development of the Plan, State agency representatives attended and 
provided input at advisory committee meetings. The following state review comments were received 
during the comment period. 

A. Minnesota Department of Health (MDH): MDH staff thanked the partnership for including MDH 
priorities and inputs in the plan and had no additional comments to provide. MDH recommends 
approval of the plan.  

B. Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR): DNR staff thanked the partnership for 
including DNR priorities and additional inputs during the plan and review process. DNR staff noted 
it was a pleasure working with the Advisory Committee. DNR recommends approval of the plan. 

C. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA): MPCA staff noted that they appreciated the 
opportunity to participate and provide input and that the plan is well written, concise, and 
thorough. MPCA recommends approval of the plan.  

D. Minnesota Environmental Quality Board (EQB):  EQB did not provide comments for the final 
review. 

E. Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA): MDA did not provide comments for the final plan 
review though congratulated the partnership on plan completion. 

 
F. Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources regional staff: BWSR staff provided comments 

throughout the planning process and had no suggested or required changes to the Plan submitted 
for the final review. We commend the partners for their trust level and commitment to the 
resources of the Plan area. BWSR staff recommend approval of the Plan and look forward to 
working with the Partnership during implementation.  

6. Plan Summary and Highlights. The highlights of the Plan include: 
• The Fond du Lac Band of Lake Superior Chippewa was a full participant in the process and providing 

valuable contributions to the Steering Team, Advisory Committee, and the Policy Committee.  
• The Plan was led and written by local staff after transitioning from the originally selected 

consultant team. 
• The Plan recognizes resource management actions and data provided by existing efforts, including 

the Lake Superior Lakewide Action and Management Plan (LAMP), the St. Louis River Estuary, and 
the Federally recognized Area of Concern (AOC) where the St. Louis River enters Lake Superior. 

• The Planning area includes both the St. Louis River and Cloquet River major watersheds (HUC-8 
scale) as well as a series of cold-water stream watersheds that flow directly into Lake Superior in 
and around the city of Duluth. 



Page 3 of 4 

• The planning area contains large, highly urbanized areas on the Iron Range and in Cloquet-Duluth 
area, as well as many acres of intact forests, wetlands and cold-water and warmwater water 
resources resulting in generally good water quality with a few exceptions. 

• A Landscape Stewardship Plan was developed to complement the watershed plan and provided 
information on forest resources and their relationship to priority water resources. 

• High quality resource protection was an issue addressed in this plan with thorough measurable 
goals established using a RAQ (Riparian, Adjacency, Quality) index identifying high scores for the 
most valued protection areas.  

• The Department of Natural Resources provided an Evaluation of Hydrologic Change for the 
planning area showing that, in general, hydrology has been very stable since the 1940’s. 

• The Plan includes focused priorities for five (5) planning regions (St. Louis River North, St. Louis 
River South, Cloquet-Upper Whiteface, Duluth Urban Area and Lake Superior Streams, Fond du Lac 
Reservation) and targeted sub-watersheds within those regions that targets implementation to 
the needs of each geographical area.  

• Twelve priority issues were selected for the Plan, although the importance of those issues varies 
among the planning regions, resulting in short and long-term measurable goals specific to each 
region. The priority issues were divided into four categories: Surface Water Quality, Drinking Water 
Protection, Land Use, Altered Hydrology, and Habitat. 

• Specific “lenses” such as Climate Change and Resilience, Equity, Social Capacity and Culturally 
significant species were used to uncover potential overlooked opportunities throughout the Plan 
area rather than being identified as a specific issue.  

• A thorough discussion of regulatory and enforcement measures that meet the needs of county 
and watershed obligations, including shoreland management, public drainage, buffers, and land 
use planning was conducted. 

7. Northern Regional Committee. On March 1, 2023 the Northern Regional Committee met to review 
and discuss the Plan. Those in attendance from the Board’s Committee were Rich Sve, LeRoy Ose, Jeff 
Berg, Neil Peterson, Todd Holman, Gerald Van Amburg, Tom Estabrooks and Ron Staples. Board staff 
in attendance included Ryan Hughes, Erin Loeffler and Jeff Hrubes. The representatives from the 
Partnership were Melanie Bomier, Carlton SWCD; R.C. Boheim, South St. Louis SWCD; Anita 
Provinzino, North St. Louis SWCD; Becca Reis, North St. Louis SWCD; and Chuck Bainter, North St. Louis 
SWCD. Melanie Bomier presented the Plan on behalf of the partnership. Board regional staff provided 
its recommendation of Plan approval to the Committee. After discussion, the Committee’s decision 
was to present a recommendation of approval of the Plan to the full Board. 

 
8. This Plan will be in effect for a ten-year period until March 22, 2033. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 
1. All relevant substantive and procedural requirements of law have been fulfilled.  

2. The Board has proper jurisdiction in the matter of approving a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan for the St. Louis River Watershed pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 
103B.101, Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14. 

  



Page 4 of 4 

3. The St. Louis River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan attached to this Order 
states water and water-related problems within the planning area; priority resource issues and 
possible solutions thereto; goals, objectives, and actions of the Partnership; and an implementation 
program.  

4. The attached Plan is in conformance with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes Section 103B.101, 
Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14. 

5. The attached Plan when adopted through local resolution by the members of the Partnership will 
replace the comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or watershed management plan, 
developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 103B, 103C, or 103D, but only 
to the geographic area of the Plan and consistent with the One Watershed, One Plan Suggested 
Boundary Map. 

 
ORDER 

 
The Board hereby approves the attached Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan of the St. Louis 
River Watershed, submitted January 12, 2023.  
 
Dated at St. Paul, Minnesota, this twenty-second day of March 2023. 
 
MINNESOTA BOARD OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES 
 
 

 
BY:   Gerald Van Amburg, Chair 



 

 

Bemidji Brainerd Detroit Lakes Duluth Mankato Marshall Rochester St Cloud 

403 Fourth Street NW 1601 Minnesota Drive 26624 N. Tower Road 394 S. Lake Avenue 11 Civic Center Plaza 1400 East Lyon Street 3555 9th Street NW 110 Second St. South 
Suite 200 Brainerd, MN 56401 Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 Suite 403 Suite 300 Marshall, MN 56258 Suite 350 Suite 307 
Bemidji, MN 56601 (218) 203-4470 (218) 846-8400 Duluth, MN 55802 Mankato, MN 56001 (507) 537-6060 Rochester, MN 55901 Waite Park, MN 56387 
(218) 755-2600   (218) 723-4752 (507) 344-2826  (507) 206-2889  
        

Central Office / Metro Office 520 Lafayette Road North Saint Paul, MN 55155 Phone: (651) 296-3767  Fax: (651) 297-5615 

www.bwsr.state.mn.us          TTY:  (800) 627-3529          An equal opportunity employer 
 

March 22, 2023 

St. Louis River Watershed Policy Committee 
c/o Melanie Bomier, Carlton SWCD 
808 3rd Street 
Carlton, MN 55718 
 
RE: Approval of the St. Louis River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
 
Dear St. Louis River Watershed Policy Committee: 
 
The Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) is pleased to inform you the St. Louis River 
Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) was approved at its regular meeting 
held on March 22, 2023. Attached is the signed Board Order that documents approval of the Plan and 
indicates the Plan meets all relevant requirements of law, rule, and policy.  
 
This Plan is effective for a ten-year period until March 22, 2033. Please be advised, the partners must 
adopt and begin implementing the plan within 120 days of the date of the Order in accordance with 
Minnesota Statutes §103B.101, Subd. 14 and 103B.801, and the One Watershed, One Plan Operating 
Procedures.  
 
The members of the partnership and participants in the plan development process are to be 
commended for writing a plan that clearly presents water management goals, actions, and priorities of 
the partnership, and for participating in the One Watershed, One Plan program. The BWSR looks 
forward to working with you as you implement this Plan and document its outcomes. 
 
Please contact Board Conservationist Erin Loeffler of our staff at 218-850-1141 or 
Erin.Loeffler@state.mn.us for further assistance in this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Gerald Van Amburg, Chair 
Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
 
Enclosure:  BWSR Board Order 
 
CC: Listed on next page.  

mailto:Erin.Loeffler@state.mn.us


Minnesota Board of Water & Soil Resources   •   www.bwsr.state.mn.us 

CC: Margaret Wagner, MDA (via email) 
 Jeff Berg, MDH (via email) 
 Chris Parthun, MDH (via email) 
 Darrell Schindler, DNR (via email) 
 Barbara Weisman, DNR (via email) 
 Sam Martin, DNR (via email) 
 Tom Estabrooks, MPCA (via email) 
 Jeff Risberg, MPCA (via email) 
 Erik Dahl, EQB (via email) 
 Ryan Hughes, BWSR (via email) 
 Erin Loeffler, BWSR (via email) 
 Julie Westerlund, BWSR (via email) 
 Carrie Rust-Moline, BWSR (via email) 
 Rachel Mueller, BWSR (file copy) 

Equal Opportunity Employer 



�



�������������	
������������������	
������������	
����������������������
�����	���������������������������������������������	�����	�������������������	� ��	���������������!�	������	������������������	
�������������	

���������������	
����������������������������������
�����	���"��������������������#���"���
�����������������	
���������	�������������$%��&���	'���%�
����"�����"����&�������������
�(��������	������ �



��������	
������������������������������������������ !"#$�%!"��&�'��(!�#�����!"�)����� !"#$��*%+�%)",��-�#������.!��)����� !"#$��*%+�(��/�-!0#���%����!��%!"��&�1#2�(#,)���$!���%����!���*%+�3�4#���0�+�5!����!�0�0"� �,�3�$��/��#!��6���7��
�����������(����#��-!2#����%����!���*%+�����#5���-!"�8!��#$������ !"#$�%!"��&�9��!���+������%����!��%!"��&�9��#�:�0#����!�0�0"� �,�3�$��/��#!����55�:�"8�$��(#���$!���-!��0�!5�*�������0��!#��3�$!"�,�$�(���� #�0)!�$������� !"#$�%!"��&�;�#�� !�55�����(#���$!���-!��0�!5�*�������0��!#��3�$!"�,�$�<)#��.!�/#�,)��.!��)����� !"#$��*%+�-�,,��3�#$$��.!��)����� !"#$��*%+�.��,&��,)"�0����!�0�0"� �,�1�����!��2�� �����*%+�'���1)!2$!����!"�)����� !"#$��*%+�6�=����
������(#���$!���-!��0�!5�*�������0��!#��3�$!"�,�$�>-*�3?�(#���$!���+�@���2����!5�'4�#,"��"���>(+'?�(#���$!���+�@���2����!5�:����)�>(+:?�(#���$!���+�@���2����!5�.��"����3�$!"�,�$�>+.3?�(#���$!���<!��"�#!��%!���!��'4��,&�>(<%'?��	A��7������������3&���%������(#���$!���'4�#,"��"���*�����B"��#�&�%���#5#,��#!��<�!4��2�'�0�������0���(#���$!���;�/#�!�2������<������$)#@�%)�#$�<���)"���(#���$!���+�@���2����!5�:����)���55��!��$�����(#���$!��� ���$���0�3#/��$���$$���)!28��4��(#���$!�������C������!)�� #�04�����(#���$!���+�@���2����!5�.��"����3�$!"�,�$�9&���C#����D�#/��$#�&�!5�(#���$!���%�!E"����!��$��&�%������<�0���F"�#$����1�!"��D��#2#��0���2"���(���#���(#���$!���+�@���2����!5�.��"����3�$!"�,�$�1!2�;$��8�!!�$��(#���$!���<!��"�#!��%!���!��'4��,&�1&����9�$@����GHIJ�1����&�'"�)!�#�&�



������������	
���������	
����	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
�������������������	���	 ��
	 �!�������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"#��	
����$%�&'���(	�	')�	���&�
	  ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#"��	
����*��������� ����	��!��+�&'�����,�-�	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������./�012341�56471896�6:2�;7<18�=;>>376:7?�9:7;�?7816@?�5A�4;@=>179:B�C68@�=8;D147?�;:�/EF�;C�=8;=18791?�921:79C912�6?�:1129:B�1:<6:41@1:7?��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.G�H1I1>;=�6:2�9@=>1@1:712�?7;8@J6718�=>6:?�9:�/EF�;C�@3:949=6>9791?�J97<�921:79C912�56471896�9@=698@1:7?�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������E�K6:6B1�4<>;8921?�8164<9:B�?38C641�6:2�B8;3:2�J6718�C8;@�8;62�?6>7?�6:2�J6718�?;C71:18�?6>7?�5A�1:?389:B�/EF�;C�@3:949=6>9791?�<6I1�L@687�L6>7�M1879C912�L76CCN�/EF�M;@@3:9791?�64<91I12�O1I1>�#�M1879C912�P�1234679;:�P�;378164<�7;�"EEF�;C�=89;897A�>6:2;J:18?����������������������������������������������������������.�Q8;7147�B8;3:2J6718�R36>97A�5A�?16>9:B�#E�3:3?12N�3:?16>12�J1>>?�J6718?<12�J921������������������������������G�Q8;@;71�7<1�9@=>1@1:7679;:�;C�>;J�9@=647�21I1>;=@1:7�714<:9R31?�7;�812341�?7;8@J6718�83:;CCN�I;>3@1�6:2�8671�4;:78;>�9:�/EF�;C�4;@@3:9791?�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/E�014;::147�.�@9>1?�;C�=89;897A�?7816@?�6:2�7895376891?�7;�51:1C97�6R36794�>9C1�6:2�9@=8;I1�J6718�R36>97A�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/.�01?7;81�?7816@�8164<1?�7<67�<6I1�511:�6>71812�5A�<3@6:�6479I97AN�9:4>329:B�9@=;3:212N�?7869B<71:12N�6:2�9:49?12�?7816@�8164<1?�;:�#EEE�O9:168�S117�;C�<9B<�=89;897A�?7816@?�6:2�7895376891?����������������������/T�K69:769:�6:2�9:4816?1�7<1�43881:7�6481UC117�;C�J6718?<12�?7;86B1�5A�81?7;89:B�J17>6:2?�9:�921:79C912�=89;897A�6816?�J<181�7<1A�<6I1�511:�>;?7�6:2U;8�6>71812�231�7;�2974<9:B�;8�21I1>;=@1:7�6479I9791?�����/V�Q8;7147�P�@6:6B1��EEE�6481?�;C�=89I671�;J:12�C;81?7?�9:�6816?�7<67�=8;7147�?38C641�J6718N�289:W9:BUB8;3:2J6718�J6718�R36>97A�6:2�89=6896:�<659767�����������������������������������������������������������������������T#�Q8;7147�6:2�81?7;81�"/EE�C117�;C�?<;81>9:1�9:�=89;8979X12�>6W1?�6:2�?7816@?�C;8�:67386>�53CC18?�6:2�8123412�18;?9;:����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������T/��	
����Y��������� ����	�����+�&'�����,�-�	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������TZ�[21:79CA�6:2�62281??�B8;3:2�6:2�?38C641�J6718�R36>97A�=8;5>1@?�?71@@9:B�C8;@�9:621R3671�J6?71J6718�78167@1:7�5A�?3==;879:B�7<1�1:C;841@1:7�;C�L35�L38C641�\8167@1:7�LA?71@?�]LL\L̂�;829:6:41?�6:2�9:I1:7;8A�6:2�3=B8621�/EF�;C�:;:_4;@=>96:7�?A?71@?�9:�=89;897A�6816?�����������������������GE�012341�56471896�6:2�;7<18�=;>>376:7?�9:7;�?7816@?�5A�4;@=>179:B�C68@�=8;D147?�;:�/EF�;C�=8;=18791?�921:79C912�6?�:1129:B�1:<6:41@1:7?��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������G.�K6:6B1�4<>;8921?�8164<9:B�?38C641�6:2�B8;3:2�J6718�C8;@�8;62�?6>7?�6:2�J6718�?;C71:18�?6>7?�5A�1:?389:B�"EEF�;C�@3:949=6>9791?�<6I1�L@687�L6>7�M1879C912�L76CCN�#EF�M;@@3:9791?�64<91I12�O1I1>�#�M1879C912�P�1234679;:�P�;378164<�7;�"EEF�;C�=89;897A�>6:2;J:18?���������������������������������������������������������GT�Q8;7147�B8;3:2J6718�R36>97A�5A�?16>9:B�#/�3:3?12N�3:?16>12�J1>>?��������������������������������������������������������Z"�



��������������	�
�������	����������	�
���������
����������	�������������������������������������������������������	���������������	�	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�������
�	��	���������������	 ���	������ ����	�����	���	������	�
�������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������� ���������	�	����	�����	�!�	�
�����������	!�����������	��	���������������������"���#	����$��������	!��
�	��	���������������	 ���	������������������������%����������&���!���������������
�	������������������	����������
����������������������	�'	�!(!������������������	�������	
�	��� 	�������������������������������������������������������������������������%"��������������������)������������������	���	��
�	��	�	*����'����������������������� ����������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������%��+,-./01�23�45067,.�85911/1:�;<,9��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)���=����	�������������!������������������������	���
�� ����������	�!������	�������������������������� ����

���	�!��������������������>� �>������?��������>�������@>>?>A����	���������	�������������
!����"���������B���
�	�����������	��
�	��	��������	�����	!��
��  	�	������	�
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)���C�!�������	��������	�!�����������!����������������������������������������������� �������	�!�)����������	�	
�	�	�������>����>���D���	�	���>�����)����D�����	�	�����	�����#�������D���	�	���&������	���&������������)�������
�	��	�������������������������������������������������������������������)�E�F�������	���������������	
�����	�	!���������������	���	�
�������������	������������������������������������������������"��	!�B����&��	!��
�	��	���������	���������������������������������������))��F������	�
�������!!��!����	�	�!���)���������	!��
�	��	����	����������������
�����	�����	�
�������	�	�������������!�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������))����������������	�������
�	��	���������������	 ���	������ ����	�����	���	������	�
�������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������))G������������������������������ ����������� ���������	�	����	�����	�!�	�
�����������	!�����������	��	��������������������������#	����$��������	!��
�	��	���������������	 ���	���������������������))%���������&���!��G������������
�	������������������	����������
����������������������	�'	�!(!������������������	�������	
�	��� 	�����������������������������������������������������������������������)�����������������������������������������	���	��
�	��	�	*����'����������������������� ����������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�"��������(��������"�������	!��
�	��	����	����	��������(
�
���	����@��������������	���� ��������������������
����A�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)���+,-./01�H3�I01J�J7�K9-�85911/1:�;<,9��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�)�=����	�������������!������������������������	���
�� ����������	�!������	�������������������������� ����

���	�!��������������������>� �>������?��������>�������@>>?>A����	���������	�������������
!����"���������B���
�	�����������	��
�	��	���������������������������)���



�����������	
���������������������������
�����������
���
����	�������������
���������	��������������������
����������	�������������������	������������������������
����������������������	������������ �������
�� �
���������
������
�����
�����	��
�����!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��"#�$��
����������	���
�����
�����������������������������
����������%������	�����������
���������%��	���!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��&��$���
����������������������������������	���������������������������	��������
�������������������������������������������
���'����������(����
����������
���������������������������!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��&&��������������������������������������)�����
�������������
������������
��������	�������������������
��������������������������������	
�����)
���	���������
���������
�����	
����������������!��&*�+�
����� �����������������
����������
�����
����������������������
�����������������������,���)��
��������������%��	�����������������������!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��'��-��������������������������
����������
����������)���
�������
������������������!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��'"�+�
������������
�������������
����
��	����������
����.��	�,���������������
��������	��������������������
��
��!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��'*�+�
����)$���
���"���������
�������	�����������)�
��	���
���/������	���	�����������������
��	������	
�����0!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��1��2345678�9:�;<=<5>�?@AB8�C=B8868D�E@3B�:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::�FGH�$�����������������
������
		����������
�������������
��	�������������
I�����
�������
����
����������������������������������������!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��11����������	
���������������������������
�����������
���
����	�������������
���������	��������������������
����������	�������������������	������������������������
����������������������	������������ �������
�� �
���������
������
�����
�����	��
�����!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��*��+�
�
����������	��������
��
��	
������������	
������������%�����
���������
�����������
�����
	�������������
���
	����*'��
���
����������!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��*'�$��
�������#���	���
�����
�����������������������������
����������%������	�����������
���������%��	���!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��#��$���
����������������������������������	���������������������������	��������
�������������������������������������������
�����'����������(����
����������
���������������������������!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��#"�����������������������!'�����)�����
�������������
������������
��������	�������������������
��������������������������������	
�����)
���	���������
���������
�����	
�����������������!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��#1�+�
����� ����������'��������
����������
�����
����������������������
�����������������������,���)��
��������������%��	�����������������������!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��#J�-����������������������������
����������)���
�������
������������������!�!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��J��+�
������������
������'��������
����
��	����������
����.��	�,���������������
��������	��������������������
��
��!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!��J'�2345678�K:�C=B8�LMN=3M385B5678�C@7D@BMO�::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::�FK9�2345678�FPQ�C=B8�ERM686O5@B5678�::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::�SFP�



����������	
������������������������������������������� �!�"����#�$#"%�&�%��%"#'��(#$$)�*�!�"��&�#+*�(�$��"#$$)�"�(��,#��"���*��+�+�"���#���"+�-�++����#��.���/��+*#")����(����0�!��(��+�����#+*��+���"�/#$�"���"!#���+������,#��"���*�����+��"�$)��+�(�*�*��"�/#$�$#+*��+($�*�+%�����1234�#+*�1233��"�#�)�#"�#���.+($�*�+%�����5$�6���� �!�"�,#��"���*�#+*�7�$����8"/#+�9"�#&������'$#+�(�!�"���!�"�:;;;��6�#"��<�$���#+*��+($�*����!�"�3;;�$#=���#+*�>;;;�<�$����0���"�#<��#$$�0$�,�+%�����#=����'�"��"������,#��"���*�'"�!�*����#/��#��0�"�<#+)�!�$+�"#/$��"����"(����+($�*�+%�,�$*�"�(�&��"����#+*����"%��+��?��$��<�����0�����,#��"���*����0�"�����"�,��$#+*�&�<#+)�(�<<�+������<#=������"���<����"���+($�*�+%�����-��#/�� #+%��(�<<�+�����&�5$�6����#+*�����(��)��0�7�$�����-�+�+%&�$�%%�+%&�0#"<�+%�#+*��+*���")�#"�������"�(#$$)�#+*�(�""�+�$)�'#"���0������,#��"���*�#+*��#!��*"#���(#$$)�#$��"�*�����,#��"���*�0"�<������"�%�+#$�0�"<��@!�+���&������#"�#����"�(���+�(�$��"#$�#+*�+#��"#$�"����"(��������%�#$��0��������������� �!�"�A+��?#��"���*�A+��B$#+�������'"��"���C��'"�D�(�����#��,�$$�'"���(������,#��"���*E��!#$�#/$��"����"(���#+*��#"%���'"�D�(��������$'���$!��,#��"�6�#$��)�'"�/$�<�������"���$��,�$$�/��'"���(���+�#+*�"����"#���+��0���"�#"�#E��+#��"#$�"����"(���0�"�0���"��%�+�"#���+���

�FGHIJK�LMLN�OPK�QRN�STIGU�VGWKJ�XTYZJKPK[UGWK�\]RKJUPK̂�_][]HKYK[R�̀a][�Za][[G[H�]JK]b�cPGdP�G[daÎKU�RPK�QRN�STIGU�VGWKJ�\]RKJUPK̂b�XaTeIKR�VGWKJ�\]RKJUPK̂�][̂�fIaIRP�gJh][�iJK]�][̂�S]jK�QIZKJGTJ�QRJK]YUN�



�������������	
���������������������
�������������������������� ��!�"�����#� $��%&������'�(&#&)�"�#��*+&#� �����)� '��'�, � �#���#�-�&��&#'�-��������,�"�+�������.�,�����&����������&#'������,��#&���&+�������,��/�����&,� �#������� ���+&#�&����� �� � 0�'1��&�)���'�&#'�"�&���&2+���� #)�,����#���, �#,�/������+&#���+ ���,�"�+���+3��#�$�+�#�&�3�,�#���$&� �#/��� ���+&#�'����#���,��&���&#3�#�-���+��������' #&#,�������$����+��&#3��4 �� #)���)�+&� �#�/�5���	��6������	��7���
��������$ � �#���&��"�#��-&��'�$�+���'����'��,� 2��-�&�������+&## #)�,�"" ��������������&,� �$�� #�����������/�8�9���� �#����"�&���2+ ,����$�3�-&�:�;%�&��-��+'�3���+ <������-&������'����+��<�+ <�� #�=>�3�&��?@�A��"����������#���1�-��-����&2+�����,�&�������,�""�#�$ � �#���������-&������'/���
����" �� �#���������+&#�-&��'�$�+���'�������$ '��&�)� '�����-�&�������+&#�- ++�'�/������$��&�,� #)�" �� �#���&��"�#�������� ���+&#� �:� ��B��	�C�D	�������D��	���E��������� ��!�"�����#� $��%&������'�(&#&)�"�#��*+&#�-&��'�$�+���'���++�- #)�����)� '�+ #������&2+ ���'�23�����( ##����&�F�&�'����%&����&#'�G� +�H�����,���IF%GHJ/��� ��$�+�#�&�3����)�&"�&#'��+&## #)�������:�K�8+ )#��-&�����+&## #)�&+�#)�-&������'�2��#'&� ��1�&#'��#�&#,����4 �� #)�,��#�3�-&�����+&#��K�L�����4 �� #)�&����� � ���&#'���#' #)�"�,�&# �"��K�M��2&��'��#�����"����,����#�� #���"&� �#�&#'�'&�&�&$& +&2+�����"���&���&)�#, ���K�!�&����&�,���������&,� �#����������#�4��N>�3�&���K�(�# �����&#'���&,<�����)���������&,� �$ #)�"�&���&2+��)�&+��K�*��$ '����������# �3�����2 O&##�&+���#' #)������)��&�#�#O,�"��� � $�����,������)�+&��'�23�+�) �+&�����,�#���+���K�*��$ '����������# �3�����2 &##�&+���#' #)�)�&#��&++�,&� �#��8�(�"��&#'�"����8)���"�#��I(P8J�2��-��#�����Q�����&#'�G�����G�/�R�� ��G� +�&#'�%&����!�#���$&� �#�S ��� ,���IG%!SJ1�G�/�R�� ��!��#�31�!&�+��#�G%!S1�!&�+��#�!��#�31�&#'�A�#'�'��R&,�F&#'����R&<��G���� ���!� ���-&�I8���#' 4�8J�-&�����&2+ ���'�&������� ��������� #������+&## #)����,���/�8��������#�&� $�����"��&,��)�$��#"�#�&+��# ��-&��&��� #��'�������$���#�����*�+ ,3�!�"" ����1�-� ,�� ������'�, � �#O"&< #)�2�'3������� ���+&#/�G�����G�/�R�� ��G%!S�-&������� �,&+�&)�#�������� �����.�,�/�

T�UVWXYZ[X\�U[XYX�W[X�]VŴYV_�V]\�[̂ V̀]�ab̀ `̂ ]cWcXZ�VYX�ẐZWVc]Vd_X�V]\�YXZc_cX]W�V]\�Xab]b̀ ca�beebYŴ]cWf�cZ�c]�[VỲb]f�UcW[�XabZfZWX̀ �[XV_W[�gb�ẐeebYWh�eYbWXaW�V]\�YXZWbYX�W[X�eXVaXî_h�dXV̂Wcî_h�V]\�]̂cĵX�]VŴYV_�YXZb̂YaXZ�bi�W[X�kWl�mb̂cZ�ncoXY�pVWXYZ[X\�



�����������	
���������������	�������	�����������������������������������	���������	�����������������	�����	������������	��������������� ���!��������	����������"������	����	�������������	
��������������	��������������#�	������������������������������������	�����!���� ����
����������	�������������������	������������$���	��	����%����	��&'()���
�*+,-./�0123�45.//�6788+99//:�;/./�+<=7>=/?�;+95�95/�@>A<<+<,�@.76/::B�/A65�;+95�-<+C-/�.7>/:3��DEFGGHGI�JKKLMFNO�P������"�������������������������	��������	�&QQ��	������������������	���	��%�����������R�S���	�����������)��P�������������������������	����������������	��
��������������
����������������	����������������	������P����������"��"���������������	����
����������������&T�����������U���������������'�������	��
!���	�����������������!��	����	�������!��������	�#���������������������������������������	
��������	���������������� ���������	���%�����������R�����	���	������	�����)��U���������!���V����������������������$����������������������	��	�������	���(W!�(Q(Q�� �	��	�$��������������������	��������������������XY�����������	������%�������!������!���������)�	���	��������������������	�������
���� �����P�����	��	��	��������������	����������������������Z�[�S��	��������	���������������	����%S���)�[����������\���	�������]�����%�\])�[����������\���	�������̂��	��������	����%� \̂̂�)�[���������� �����������	��������
�%� ��)�[�\�����̂��	��������	��������������[���
����\�����[�\�����_	�������	������������	
���������%\_���)� 	��	��̀��������������������������������������������������������	�����]����������������	�����	"������������	�����������"���������������������	
����������������������������������



�� ��������	
���
��	��
���������	������������������
������	����
�������	��	��������������	����	���������������	�������� ���!
	���!�������"�������������������#�����$!������#���	��������%		��$����
	�������
������&������'()��
�*+,-./�0123�45/67�+8�9/:/;<6+8,�5=/�453�><-+7�?+:/.�@<A6./=/87+:/�BC5/.7=/9�DC8C,/A/85�E;C83�FGHIIJIK�LMNHO�P�#��������Q��	���	����"���������$��	��
	���������#������������!
	���	��	������!
	���!	�������!
����������"�#�����(!
	���	��	��R����&������'('S�� �����!
	���	��	��	���������������
�TU�V�WXY�Z[\]̂�_]̀ab�c[bXd�e� �����������	
"��"�����������������#���T	�����������	�������������
	���������	���������������
	���f��	���
�����g�������������	�	���$������%��	��������	�����$$�������� ����!�������"������
	���f��	�!���������������	

�������
	�������$����	���#�����������$������T���	����#�
�!$���!���������h������������#	�����""�����	���"���������	��������������
����$!	����	��"��������$		��$����V�WXY�Z[\]̂�_]̀ab�W[\Xd�e� ������������	
"��"�����������������#���T	����������
���������$����	�����
���	
�	���#������������!
	���	��	�	��	�����	������������	����	��������������� ����	��	�����"
���������	

�	���#������������������������#���i�������
�����(�!!��������"	����	��&�������	�����(!
	���	��	��� �����������T���	����#�
�!$���!��������	�����������!	��	��!��!
��$�#�����������	��	��h������������#	�����""�������
��������$T	����$		��$���!
	����T��
	��������	����	��!������������""������$!��#�������	$�������#�����	��	�����
���	
������#	����!�	��������V�jk[l\aXmnooab�pd]Xaqrsa�e� ����!�������"������
	���f��	����$����!���������	�����	����
������$!���	�������	����	��	�������	��������
	���	t��	��u��
�����	t�������#�����	�������
��������#����	���	���T	������	�
��%�����"������������T��t�"���������!�����������������(��	
��������������"��$��$!	������
	�������"������$		��$���	������	������#�
�!$���!���������f������	

�������������
��������#���	�������!!��������"	�����#���T	����������	#��

v\wk]s�W\b̀ax�����	�������	t���
�����!�� _à]ay�[q�vr̂X�WX\z]â�r{z�vkr{̂���������"���������	���!!��������� vb][b]X]|rX][{�}̂̂\â�r{z�~rb�aX�_â[\bsâ����"�����T��t �àak[o��ar̂\brwka��[rk̂������	#	�
	�
��T	��������$���
��	���	�	 ~rb�aX�}�oka�a{XrX][{��sX][{̂����	���$!
��������!
	�����	
�



�� ����������	��
���	����������������������	������	������������������������������	���������	��������������� �!�"��� #�$�%"�&�'"�()��&��"�*+�,�-��	�.��������/�����01�������2�����������	�����1����	����3���������4�����5�����/�6�1���4��1��������	��11�����3���7�������������	����1������8����9�:�4�;��������4�����	�
���1����	��.	��-��	��������	������	�������1���������<���9���	�8�
���=	����������9�:��<�.�������-��	�������	�	�3>�������������	����������������
�1�.�����.��		�����-������	������3���������/�3��������?���1������	�����	�����������.����������@����4�AB���3���������	�����	����������������-�1�����4�C�����4�����<��:�����
��	D��	��11��	���	�����	�������������	���������@����4�E����4�2����4�����F�11���5���:	D��=G�	��������	��
��������:����������������1���	�	�3����	����.1��	4�	�������		�		����	4�	��������������������.�������	�����.��>���	������������	����������
��������H) #����$�I�J"+"�K��() �,�-���C�������9���L�����	������/�	�G�5��..���M������L���	��������:���.�����F����	����5��..���-��3���F�	���/�����8�	��
�������	���������������������<���9���	�8�
�������	���4�����������	�����	����1����N�����5���:4�L���9�:�4�����	�
���1��1�������1�:�	��N�?���������	��
����������
����	����1��������������4���.��
����	��������������
���4���.1���������	�	�����31��/���	����.�������	4�����������������������	����.��������1�����������	��-���C�������9���8�	��
������.1�������������	���<�
�������O�����4������	�	������	���
�1�.�����������1����	�������	�����.1���������������	�/���	�������������������	�����	���������	��/�����L�������-���<���9���	�8�
���5��.�����	�
��P����	����F����������01����	����������������������1���	����	��/�
��	��11���	�3?.1�����������	����3������������1�������������		������		��	����������������������2	����	�01����11�	�����	4����	�	�3?.1������������	����������	���������������������.1�������.����		�,�/��������������/���������/�.������������	�����.���������		��	���������	��31�	�������/����	���31�����1	���������������/���������/���.1���������������
����	��2���������.1������	���.������/�����.1��������������������	�3?.1�����������	��	�.��
������������9��������P�����8�	�����	�O������
���QRSTRSUV�WXXYZX�2����.�����	�
��1�	���/�.���������		��	��	��������������������.1�������.����		��-��	���		��	�������
����������/�������������	[� ���<��/����P�����\��1����,������3�1���������������������4�/�������	�1
�	�/���4�����������	����>������1���������3����	��	�����		�����1�.�����/�������1�����������	����������6���:����P�����0����������,�����1������������������:��	�.������1��1��
�1��31�]�������������	��
�
��@.��.1�����	�	����1����������	��	���������	����.�������������������������D���9�����	��,�.��.1�̂	�����	���	��3�����������������������������1���4�/�����������4�.�������14����	.������1����	��	4���.���������������	�
�1�����21������;����1����,�����������/���������@������/��������4�1�		��/���������D����	�	��	������
������4������������	���	�
�1���/��������	�������.���	������������	��������
�1�����;�3�����,�����������.������1���	.����	�����1���	��.�	��������
�1��4���������������	��3��������@��	������D����.���������.���	����������



�����������	��
�������������������������������������	������������ !"#� $"%!"%�#�������&�"'�(�� )���"� *��+%�#� ,-../01203�456768�2/09:52038�;1<059:18�35=:>5208�<?.-9:=58�>59</9@8�50<6A�195�1�3-/9<5�-B�=5791=10:-2�.51=:27�0-�0?5�:>C1:9>520�-B�1D/10:<�.:B58�1D/10:<�<-23/>C0:-28�12=�1D/10:<�95<9510:-21.�/3536�E1:.:27�35C0:<�3@305>3�<12�<-201>:2105�79-/2=F10598�3/9B1<5�F10593�12=�.-<1.:G5=�=9:2H:27�F10598�.51=:27�0-�:>>:2520�0?95103�0-�C/;.:<�?51.0?6�I"%JK%J � )���"� $"!��(�%!J�� L9:2H:27�F1059�D/1.:0@�12=�D/120:0@�B9->�3/9B1<5�F1059�12=�79-/2=F1059�3-/9<53�:3�0?9510525=�;@�.12=�/35�1<0:M:0:53�12=�F1059�1CC9-C9:10:-236�N�JO�P��� Q9;12:G10:-28�=5M5.-C>5208�12=�9-1=�5RC123:-2�<12�:>C1<0�F10593?5=�?51.0?�12=�:2<95135�2/09:520�12=�-0?59�C-../0120�.-1=:273�F?52�30-9>F1059�:3�2-0�5BB5<0:M5.@�>12175=6�S1059T�12=�.12=T;135=�95<9510:-21.�1<0:M:0:53�<12�:>C1<0�0?5�D/1.:0@�-B�.1H53�12=�30951>38�309533�F:.=.:B58�=5791=5�?1;:01038�12=�.51=�0-�<-2B.:<0�;50F552�=:BB59520�/3536���U77957105�>:2:27�?13�0?5�C-0520:1.�0-�1.059�210/91.�?@=9-.-7@8�:>C1<0:27�;135B.-F3�B-9�2519;@�30951>3�12=�.-<1.�12=�957:-21.�1D/:B5936���V+��"�O� W#O"!+! #� X?1225.�:2301;:.:0@8�5R<533�35=:>52010:-28�12=�=:39/C0:-2�-B�210/91.�35=:>520�09123C-90�12=�B.-F�195�C953520�0?9-/7?-/0�0?5�F10593?5=6�Y-33�-B�F1059�30-91758�1.0595=�B.-F38�12=�<?12753�:2�F10593?5=�;-/2=19:53�195�0?5�953/.0�-B�.12=�=5M5.-C>5208�=91:21758�12=�.571<@�>:2:27�0?10�1.059�210/91.�?@=9-.-7:<�C9-<533536�Z;3-.505�12=�2-2B/2<0:-2:27�=1>3�1.059�210/91.�?@=9-.-7@8�:>C5=5�B:3?�C133175�12=�1D/10:<�-9712:3>�>-M5>5208�12=�1BB5<0�30951>�05>C6�W�[%���� E-9530�B917>52010:-2�12=�.-33�<12�1BB5<0�5<-.-7:<1.�<->>/2:0@�C9-<533538�<->>/2:0@�953:.:52<5�12=�1=1C0:M5�<1C1<:0@8�?1;:010�<-225<0:M:0@�12=�D/1.:0@8�3C5<:53�>:7910:-2�<1C1<:0@8�12=�3/9B1<5�F1059�12=�79-/2=F1059�D/1.:0@6�UD/10:<8�9:C19:128�12=�3?-95.12=�?1;:0103�195�:>C1<05=�;@�.12=�/35�<?127538�C-../0:-28�<.:>105�<?1275�12=�1.0595=�B.-F3�F?:<?�<12�.51=�0-�=5791=5=�953-/9<538�:2<:3:-2�12=�B.--=C.1:2�=:3<-225<0:-28�:>C5=5=�B:3?�C1331758�12=�B917>52010:-26�UD/10:<�12=�05995309:1.�:2M13:M5�3C5<:53�C-35�1�0?9510�0-�:2=:M:=/1.�?1;:0103�12=�-M591..�;:-=:M593:0@6��\]̂_̀�a?5�C9:-9:0@�:33/53�F595�0?52�/35=�0-�=5M5.-C�0?5�C.12b3�7-1.36�c-1.3�195�1�7/:=5�B-9�F?10�D/120:B:1;.5�<?12753�0?5�C.12�<12�1<<->C.:3?�:2�:03�deT@519�.:B53C12�12=�195�;135=�-2�<1.</.10:-23�.:2H5=�0-�F1059�D/1.:0@�:>C9-M5>5203�12=�C9-05<0:-2�B9->�B/0/95�F1059�D/1.:0@�9:3H36�U�359:53�-B�f01H5?-.=59�12=�U=M:3-9@�X->>:0055�>550:273�F595�?5.=�:2�0?5�B1..�-B�gegd�0-�=5M5.-C�0?5�C.12b3�7-1.36�a?5�1CC9-M5=�7-1.3�B-9�0?5�C.12�195�.:305=�:2�01;.5�dTg6��������



����������	
��������������������������
�����������������  ��!��
"��#�$��%�����&��!'��� ()*+,-./�0+)�0))1*22�3145+)�0+)�251.06*�70,*1�8509-,/�:14;9*<2�2,*<<-+3�.14<�-+0)*850,*�702,*70,*1�,1*0,<*+,�;/�25::41,-+3�,=*�*+.416*<*+,�4.�>>?>�41)-+0+6*2�0+)�-+@*+,41/�0+)�5:310)*�ABC�4.�+4+D64<:9-0+,�2/2,*<2�-+�:1-41-,/�01*02�E4<:9*,*�.01<�:14F*6,2�4+�GBC�4.�:14:*1,-*2�-)*+,-.-*)�02�+**)-+3�*+=0+6*<*+,2�H*I3IJ�9-@*2,46K�*L6952-4+J�<0+51*�2,4103*J�:02,51*�<0+03*<*+,M�7=*1*�,=*1*�01*�;06,*1-0�-<:0-1<*+,2I�NBC�4.�<5+-6-:09-,-*2�7-,=�-)*+,-.-*)�;06,*1-0�-<:0-1<*+,2�01*�-<:9*<*+,-+3�:90+2�,4�1*)56*�;06,*1-0�-+�251.06*�70,*12I�O0+03*�6=941-)*2�1*06=-+3�251.06*�0+)�3145+)�70,*1�.14<�140)�209,2�0+)�70,*1�24.,*+*1�209,2�;/�*+251-+3�NBC�4.�<5+-6-:09-,-*2�=0@*�><01,�>09,�E*1,-.-*)�>,0..J�NBC�E4<<5+-,-*2�06=-*@*)�P*@*9�Q�E*1,-.-*)�R�*)560,-4+�R�45,1*06=�,4�SBBC�4.�:1-41-,/�90+)47+*12I�T�'UV'U�� %����� W����$�'�U�� X14,*6,�3145+)70,*1�8509-,/�;/�2*09-+3�AG�5+52*)J�5+2*09*)�7*992�70,*12=*)�7-)*�Y�UZ�[��� X14<4,*�,=*�-<:9*<*+,0,-4+�4.�947�-<:06,�)*@*94:<*+,�,*6=+-85*2�,4�1*)56*�2,41<70,*1�15+4..J�@495<*�0+)�10,*�64+,149�-+�GBC�4.�64<<5+-,-*2�\)560,*J�-+61*02*�2,*701)2=-:�0+)�<-,-30,*�,=*�70,*1�8509-,/�-<:06,2�4.�1*61*0,-4+09�90+)�52*12�0+)�90+)47+*12�,4�+0,5109�1*24516*2�0,�G�=-3=D52*�R�=-3=�:1-41-,/�1*61*0,-4+09�01*02I�\@0950,*�-<:06,2�4.�0331*30,*�<-+-+3�0,�SBB�C�4.�=-3=�:1-41-,/�2-,*2�,=0,�=0@*�,=*�:4,*+,-09�,4�-<:06,�2*+2-,-@*�251.06*�0+)�3145+)�70,*1�1*24516*2I�]!����Z� �̂Z��!���� _*64++*6,�GG�<-9*2�4.�:1-41-,/�2,1*0<2�0+)�,1-;5,01-*2�,4�;*+*.-,�0850,-6�9-.*�0+)�-<:14@*�70,*1�8509-,/I�_*2,41*�2,1*0<�1*06=*2�,=0,�=0@*�;**+�09,*1*)�;/�=5<0+�06,-@-,/J�-+695)-+3�-<:45+)*)J�2,10-3=,*+*)J�0+)�-+6-2*)�2,1*0<�1*06=*2�4+�S̀JBBB�P-+*01�a**,�4.�=-3=�:1-41-,/�2,1*0<2�0+)�,1-;5,01-*2I�O0-+,0-+�,=*�6511*+,�061*b.**,�4.�70,*12=*)�2,4103*�;/�1*2,41-+3�7*,90+)2�-+�-)*+,-.-*)�:1-41-,/�01*02�7=*1*�,=*/�=0@*�;**+�942,�0+)b41�09,*1*)�)5*�,4�)-,6=-+3�41�)*@*94:<*+,�06,-@-,-*2��̂c'���� X14,*6,�R�<0+03*�SNJBBB�061*2�4.�:1-@0,*�47+*)�.41*2,2�-+�01*02�,=0,�:14,*6,�251.06*�70,*1J�)1-+K-+3b3145+)70,*1�70,*1�8509-,/�0+)�1-:01-0+�=0;-,0,I�SGJBBB�.**,�4.�2=41*9-+*�-+�:1-41-,-d*)�90K*2�0+)�2,1*0<2�=0@*�+0,5109�;5..*12�0+)�+*01�2=41*�01*02�01*�:14,*6,*)�0+)�1*2,41*)�,4�1*)56*�*142-4+�52-+3�;0+K�2,0;-9-d0,-4+J�;-4*+3-+**1-+3J�*,6I�,*6=+-85*2I�X14,*6,b_*2,41*�eBC�4.�=-3=�:1-41-,/�7-9)�1-6*�2,0+)2b:4:590,-4+2�H70,*1�9*@*92J�)-2,51;0+6*J�2=41*90+)�)*@*94:<*+,MI�()*+,-./�0+)�<0+03*�QB�=-3=�:1-41-,/�2-,*2b1*24516*2�.41�-+@02-@*�2:*6-*2I��fghijgjklmlnok�plqmljrnjs�(<:9*<*+,0,-4+�2,10,*3-*2�7*1*�64<:-9*)�.14<�*06=�25;D:90++-+3�01*0�.14<�,=*�t_uX>J�:1*@-452�:90+2�0+)�2,5)-*2J�0+)�,=*�2,0,*�03*+6-*2�1*2:4+2*2�,4�:90++-+3I�(+�0))-,-4+J�06,-4+2�7*1*�;10-+2,41<*)�0,�0�2*1-*2�4.�>,**1-+3J�u)@-241/J�0+)�X49-6/�E4<<-,,**�<**,-+32J�094+3�7-,=�0�2,0K*=49)*1�<**,-+3�.4652-+3�4+�,=*�*2,501/�0+)�51;0+�01*02I��?=*�>,I�P45-2�_-@*1�:01,+*12�01*�64+2-2,*+,9/�-<:9*<*+,-+3�06,-4+2�,4�06=-*@*�70,*12=*)�34092�,=1453=�<0+/�)-..*1*+,�*..41,2J�;5,�,4�.599/�-<:9*<*+,�,=-2�:90+J�0))-,-4+09�.5+)-+3�0+)�60:06-,/�4@*1�6511*+,�9*@*92�7-99�;*�+**)*)I�?=*�-<:9*<*+,0,-4+�,0;9*�)-2:90/2�.5+)-+3�-+�,=1**�)-..*1*+,�60,*341-*2�H?0;9*�SDeMI�a5+)-+3�60,*341-*2�01*�6096590,*)�;/�,=*�;*2,�0@0-90;9*�*2,-<0,*2J�0+)�9-<-,0,-4+2�-+�.5+)-+3�9*@*92�6459)�9-<-,�,=*�34092�4.�,=-2�:90+I���



����������	
�������������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����!�"������������#�$�� #���������������$������������������������ %��������������������&'()�*+,-)-./0(/-1)�234�567�89:;<�=;>4?�@9AB?434C<;>4�DE64?<34F�GECEH4A4C6�IJEC�BJECC;CH�4KK9?6�LE<�M9CF:M64F�63?9:H3�E�G4A9?ECF:A�9K�NH?44A4C6�OGPNQ�R46L44C�567�89:;<�=;>4?�ECF�@E?J69C�@9:C6;4<�ECF�5D@S<�ECF�T9CF�F:�8EM�UECF�9K�8EV4�5:B4?;9?�@3;BB4LE�ONBB4CF;W�XQ7�234�BE?6;4<�BJEC�69�K9?A�E�C4L�G4A9?ECF:A�9K�NH?44A4C6�K9?�EFA;C;<64?;CH�634�BJEC7�234�M9AA;6644<�K9?A4F�F:?;CH�634�BJECC;CH�B?9M4<<�OT;H:?4�Y7ZQ�L;JJ�M9C6;C:4�;C69�;ABJ4A4C6E6;9C7�234�I9J;M[�@9AA;6644�;<�634�F4M;<;9C\AEV;CH�R9F[�K9?�;ABJ4A4C6E6;9C7�234[�L;JJ�R4�634�M99?F;CE6;CH�R9F[�9K�634�BJEC�EM6;CH�9C�R43EJK�9K�634�BE?6C4?<3;B�A4AR4?<7�234�NF>;<9?[�@9AA;6644�ECF�5644?;CH�@9AA;6644�L;JJ�M9C6;C:4�69�A446]�?4>;4L]�ECF�;F4C6;K[�M9JJER9?E6;>4�K:CF;CH�ECF�B?9̂4M6�9BB9?6:C;6;4<]�M9ABJ464�634�ECC:EJ�L9?V�BJEC]�;F4C6;K[�ECF�EBBJ[�K9?�EFF;6;9CEJ�K:CF;CH�9BB9?6:C;6;4<]�:BFE64�634�I9J;M[�@9AA;6644�9C�L3E6�B?9̂4M6<�E?4�M9ABJ464F�ECF�L34?4�K:CF;CH�;<�<B4C6]�ECF�;ABJ4A4C6�634�6E?H464F�;ABJ4A4C6E6;9C�<M34F:J47�T;<MEJ�ECF�EFA;C;<6?E6;>4�F:6;4<�K9?�BJEC�;ABJ4A4C6E6;9C�L;JJ�R4�E<<;HC4F�69�EC�8_̀�63?9:H3�E�I9J;M[�@9AA;6644�F4M;<;9C�E<�9:6J;C4F�;C�634�K9?AEJ�EH?44A4C67�� �



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

Southern Regional Committee 
1. Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Ted Winter and 

Doug Goodrich – DECISION ITEM 

2. Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Ted Winter and 
Jason Beckler – DECISION ITEM 

3. Lower Minnesota River West Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – Ted Winter, 
Jeremy Maul, and Ed Lenz – DECISION ITEM 

4. Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan – 
Ted Winter and Adam Beilke – DECISION ITEM 

 



Updated 8/5/2021 www.bwsr.state.mn.us  1 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 

Meeting Date: March 22, 2023  

Agenda Category: ☒ Committee Recommendation ☐ New Business ☐ Old Business 
Item Type: ☒ Decision ☐ Discussion ☐ Information ☐ Non-Public Data 
Keywords for Electronic 
Searchability: Des Moines, Planning, 1W1P 

Section/Region: Regional Operations/Southern 
Contact: Ed Lenz 
Prepared by: Douglas Goodrich 
Reviewed by: Southern Regional Committee(s) 

Presented by: 
Ted Winter, Southern Regional Chair; 
Doug Goodrich 

Time requested: 5 Minutes 

☐  Audio/Visual Equipment Needed for Agenda Item Presentation 

Attachments: ☐  Resolution ☒  Order ☒  Map ☒  Other Supporting Information 

Fiscal/Policy Impact 
☒ None ☐ General Fund Budget 
☐ Amended Policy Requested ☐ Capital Budget 
☐ New Policy Requested ☐ Outdoor Heritage Fund Budget 
☐ Other:  ☐ Clean Water Fund Budget 

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
Approval of the Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan as recommended by 
the Southern Regional Committee. 

LINKS TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Des Moines River Watershed One Watershed, One Plan (murraycountymn.gov) 

SUMMARY (Consider:  history, reason for consideration now, alternatives evaluated, basis for recommendation) 

The Des Moines River planning area includes all waters of the state that are tributaries to the Greater Des Moines 
River Basin and include the Upper West Des Moines River and Upper East Des Moines River major watersheds in 
Minnesota. The Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan was the resultant 
plan associated with the “2020” round of One Watershed, One Plan planning grant applicants.  On June 24, 2020, 
the Des Moines River Watershed Partnership was formed under a memorandum of agreement involving thirteen 

https://murraycountymn.gov/county_departments/environmental_services/desmoinesriver.php


LGUs (The Counties of Cottonwood, Jackson, Martin, Murray, Nobles, and Lyon by and through their respective 
County Board of Commissioners; the Cottonwood, Jackson, Martin, Murray, Nobles, and Lyon Soil and Water 
Conservation Districts (SWCD), by and through their respective Soil and Water Conservation District Board of 
Supervisors; and the Heron Lake Watershed District, by and through its Board of Managers) to collectively develop 
and adopt, as local government units, a coordinated watershed management plan for implementation of actions 
to address priority resource concerns in the Des Moines River planning area. 
On January 9, 2023, the Board received the Plan, a record of the public hearing, and copies of all written 
comments pertaining to the Plan for final State review pursuant to Board #18-14.   The Planning Partnership has 
responded to all comments received and incorporated appropriate revisions to the final Plan. The State agencies 
recommended that BWSR approve the Plan as submitted. 
 
BWSR staff completed its review and subsequently found the Plan meets the requirements of Minnesota Statutes 
and BWSR Policy. 
 
On March 13, 2023, the Southern Regional Committee (Committee) met to review and discuss the Plan. The 
Committee’s decision was to recommend approval of the Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan to the full Board per the attached draft Order. 

 



 

Page 1 of 5 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55155 

 
 

In the Matter of the review of the 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
for the Des Moines River Watershed Partnership, 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 
103B.101, Subdivision 14 and 103B.801.  

ORDER 
APPROVING 

COMPREHENSIVE 
WATERSHED 

MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 
Whereas, the Policy Committee of the Des Moines River Watershed Partnership submitted a 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) to the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
(Board) on January 6, 2023 pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 and 
103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14, and; 
 
Whereas, the Board has completed its review of the Plan; 
 
Now Therefore, the Board hereby makes the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions, and Order: 
 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1. Partnership Establishment. The Partnership was established in the spring of 2020 through adoption 

of a Memorandum of Agreement for the purposes of developing a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan. The membership of the Partnership includes:  The Counties of Cottonwood, 
Jackson, Lyon, Murray, Nobles, and Martin by and through their respective County Board of 
Commissioners; the Cottonwood, Jackson, Lyon, Murray, Nobles, and Martin Soil and Water 
Conservation Districts, by and through their respective Soil and Water Conservation District Board of 
Supervisors; and the Heron Lake Watershed District, by and through their Board of Managers. 
 

2. Authority to Plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 allows the Board to adopt 
resolutions, policies or orders that allow a comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or 
watershed management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 
103B, 103C, or 103D to serve as substitutes for one another or be replaced with a comprehensive 
watershed management plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.801 established the Comprehensive 
Watershed Management Planning Program; also known as One Watershed, One Plan. And, Board 
Resolution #18-14 adopted the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures and Resolution #19-
41 the Plan Content Requirements policies. 

 
3. Nature of the Watershed. The Des Moines River Watershed Planning Area is a 1,537 square mile area 

consisting of the tributaries of the Greater Des Moines River Basin within the state of Minnesota; the 
only portion of the major tributary of the Mississippi River outside of the state of Iowa where the 
confluence is in Keokuk.  The planning area resides in southwest Minnesota on the Couteau du Prairies 
from just east of Pipestone and 30-50 miles south of Marshall and forms the far border of Buffalo 



 

Page 2 of 5 

Ridge as it transitions into Iowa. The planning area encompasses a majority of Murray County and 
Jackson County, and lesser portions of Cottonwood, Nobles, Martin, Lyon, and Pipestone Counties.  
The area is largely rural and most of the populous residing in the cities of Windom, Jackson, Fulda, and 
Slayton.  The area land use is predominantly row cropped as is like the rest of southern and western 
Minnesota. Livestock operations, feedlots, and pasturelands are also a main component of the 
economy of the area. Groundwater is hard to come by in parts of the area and cooperative water 
supplies are used to supplement groundwater that is produced. Many of the groundwater sources are 
susceptible to contamination due to surface water/groundwater connectivity. Lakes are prevalent in 
the planning area especially in the headwaters of the Des Moines River in Murray County and the 
Heron Lake Watershed District areas of Murray County and Jackson County.  Plan priorities for this 
planning region reflect the importance of those area resources. 

 
4. Plan Development.  The Partnership initiated the plan development process for the One Watershed, 

One Plan on May 2021 by notifying the designated state plan review agencies, local government units, 
and other identified stakeholders that it was starting the planning process and soliciting each plan 
review agency’s priority issues, summaries of relevant water management goals, and water resource 
information. The Missouri Watershed Planning Partnership held two events for stakeholder and public 
involvement.  The effort was officially kicked off on July 21, 2021 in Windom and July 22, 2021 in 
Slayton during a pair of open houses where citizens, stakeholders, elected and appointed officials, and 
staff were given the opportunity to share information, identify priority concerns, and provide 
comments for the planning process.  This input was used in the development and prioritization of 
resource concerns, as well as strategies and actions to address these concerns and achieve 
measurability.  The numerical measurable goals of the project were based on a Watershed Restoration 
and Protection Strategies (WRAPS) for the Des Moines River Watershed planning area, groundwater 
test results as well as TMDLs, local water plans, and local stakeholder input.  Rationale for goals were 
underpinned in total or in part by results from modelling through the Prioritize, Target, and Measure 
Application (PTMApp) and spatial analysis as well.   The PTMApp was used to identify the magnitude 
and distribution of potential pollution sources across the planning area, along with targeting locations 
for implementing practices to address issues impacting the resources of concern.  Planning partners 
were then able to select specific practices based on pollutant reduction estimates and cost 
effectiveness. The reduction estimates from the targeted implementation schedule, along with the 
measurable goals established for the watershed, provided an estimated pace of progress that can be 
expected through the ten-year planning period. Implementation categories and initiatives were then 
detailed to identify where funds will be utilized to accomplish the strategies and actions from the 
targeted implementation schedule. The draft Plan was approved by the Policy Committee and then 
distributed to individuals, communities, Plan Review Authorities, and other stakeholders a 60-day 
review process that ended on September 21, 2022. Written comments were received, considered, and 
responded to by the Partnership and approved by the Policy Committee. The Policy Committee held 
public hearings in Windom on October 7, 2022.  No additional comments were brought forth by the 
public. The final draft Plan and all required materials were submitted and officially received by the 
Board on January 9, 2023.    

5. Plan Review. On January 9, 2023, the Board received the Plan, a record of the public hearing, and 
copies of all written comments pertaining to the Plan for final State review pursuant to Board #18-14.   
State agency representatives attended and provided input at advisory committee meetings during 
development of the Plan.  The following state review comments were received during the comment 
period. 



 

Page 3 of 5 

A. Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA):  MDA provided initial response to the planning 
process.  During the 60 day comment period the MDA provided comments requesting revisions to 
the Plan including inclusion of MDA as partners in selected items of the implementation schedule 
and notes on goals and methods outlined in the appendices. MDA confirmed receipt of the Plan at 
the final formal review and responded that they did not have additional comments; recommends 
approval. 

B. Minnesota Department of Health (MDH):  MDH provided input throughout the planning process 
and participated in Advisory Committee meetings. During the 60-day review and comment period, 
MDH provided comments requesting revisions to the Plan the addition of the Red Rock Rural Water 
Drinking Water Supply Management Areas in relative figures of the plan as well as clarification of 
activities related to MDH in the activity tables.   MDH confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final 
formal review and stated they had no additional comments; recommends approval.  

C. Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR):  DNR provided input throughout the planning 
process and participated in Advisory Committee meetings. While the 60-day review period was 
underway, DNR provided many comments and most comments resulted in a change to the Plan. 
DNR confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final formal review. They were satisfied with the 
responses to issues raised during review stating that actions in the plan shall help 1) improve 
groundwater quantity and quality, 2) allow more water storage goals to be more focused and 
feature fully funded efforts, 3) promote stream and river stability through storage efforts, 4) act 
on better drainage cause and effect awareness among LGU staff and landowners when considering 
public and private projects, and 5) underpin dam-reconstruction projects in the watershed. No 
additional comments will be necessary; recommend that MN BWSR approve the plan. No 
additional comments will be necessary. DNR recommends MN BWSRs approval the plan. 

D. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA):  MPCA provided input throughout the planning 
process and participated in Advisory Committee meetings. Responses to the 60-day review and 
comment period by MPCA included comments correcting action item duties as local as opposed 
to MPCA for septic review. MPCA confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final formal review. No 
additional comments will be necessary. MPCA recommends MN BWSRs approval the plan. 

E. Minnesota Environmental Quality Board:  No comments were received.   

F. Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources regional staff: BWSR staff provided early input to 
the planning process, participated in the Advisory Committee meetings, and provided assistance 
to the Planning Work Group during the plan development process. BWSR staff also took advantage 
of the opportunity to attend the public involvement activities held by the Partnership during the 
planning process. During the 60-day review, BWSR staff commended the Partnership for 
collaborating together in such an inclusive planning process and coordination of such a large 
number of participants. BWSR staff recommends approval of the plan. 

G. Local Review:  The partnership sought input from local units of government and local associations 
dealing with soil and water resources and habitat. No comments were officially received from 
these entities during the 60 or 90 day period. 

6. Plan Summary and Highlights. The highlights of the plan include: 
• The Plan includes an informative Executive Summary summarizing resource concerns and issues, 

the method of establishing measurable goals, summarizing pace of progress toward goals attained 
by the planned activities, and short term cost of the 10 year implementation schedule. 



 

Page 4 of 5 

• The Plan includes a thorough identification of the targeted areas through the use of PTMApp. 
PTMApp has estimated feasible locations for management practices and structural BMPs, as well 
as the associated annual costs and anticipated benefits arising from implementation. The result is 
a list of the best (most cost-effective and most effective toward load reduction goals) structural 
practices in each of the four planning regions. 

• A priority level include: Drinking Water (public and private), Streams and Rivers, Rural Land 
Stewardship (soil health), and storage goals. B level priorities include: Functioning Wetlands, 
Terrestrial and Shoreland Habitat Fragmentation and Loss, Land Stewardship Related to 
Riparian/Bank Stability, Drainage Systems, and Aquatic Invasive Species. 

• Implementation schedules for structural and management practices are tailored to each of the five 
planning regions of the plan 

• An estimated $21,169,000 is needed to fund the prioritized activities of the Plan over its ten-year 
lifespan, a figure which does not factor Watershed Based Implementation Funds (WBIF) but is 
assumed in the plan in the state funding source description. 

• Included in the appendices of the plan include some background on spatial analysis methodology 
in Appendix E (Subwatershed Prioritization) and Appendix H (An altered hydrology analysis).  
Appendix F displays the different funding scenarios for the plan areas and the progress toward 
goals estimated using priority activities.  Appendix “E” contains a series of maps and prioritization 
scenarios for HUC-12 watersheds to be used as a tool for prioritization of implementation efforts. 

7. South Regional Committee.  On March 13, 2023, the South Regional Committee met to review and 
discuss the Plan.  Those in attendance from the Board’s Committee were Ted Winter, Eunice Biel, Jeff 
Berg (MDA), Kelly Kirkpatrick, Scott Roemhildt (DNR), and Mark Wettlauffer (MDH).  Board staff in 
attendance were Southern Regional Manager Ed Lenz; Board Conservationists Adam Bielke and 
Jeremy Maul; Clean Water Specialists Mark Hiles and Shaina Keseley; Administrative Specialist Carla 
Swanson-Cullen; and 1W1P Coordinator Julie Westerlund.  The representatives from the Partnership 
and presenting were Sarah Soderholm (Murray County) and Ashley Brenke (Martin SWCD) and others 
present for discussion were Jean Christoffels (Murray County), Consultant Rachel Olm (Houston 
Engineering Inc.) and Rick Anderson (Commissioner, Lyon County).  Board regional staff provided its 
recommendation of Plan approval to the Committee.  After discussion, the Committee’s decision was 
to present a recommendation of approval of the Plan to the full Board. 

 
8. This Plan will be in effect for a ten-year period until March 23, 2033. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 
1. All relevant substantive and procedural requirements of law have been fulfilled.   

2. The Board has proper jurisdiction in the matter of approving a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan for the Missouri River Watershed Partnership pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 
Sections 103B.101, Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14. 

3. The Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan attached to this Order 
states water and water-related problems within the planning area; priority resource issues and 
possible solutions thereto; goals, objectives, and actions of the Partnership; and an implementation 
program.   



 

Page 5 of 5 

4. The attached Plan is in conformance with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes Section 103B.101, 
Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #19-41. 

5. The attached plan when adopted through local resolution by the members of the Partnership will 
serve as a replacement for the comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or watershed 
management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 103B, 
103C, or 103D, but only to the geographic area of the Plan and consistent with the One Watershed, 
One Plan Suggested Boundary Map. 

 
 

ORDER 
 
The Board hereby approves the attached Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan of the Des Moines 
River Watershed Partnership, received January 9, 2023.  
 
 
Dated at St. Paul, Minnesota, this 22nd of March, 2023. 
 
MINNESOTA BOARD OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES 
 
 

     
BY:  Gerald Van Amburg, Chair  



 
 

 

    Bemidji   Brainerd     Detroit Lakes   Duluth Mankato Marshall Rochester St. Cloud St. Paul  
  

 

    

 

  

Brainerd Office 1601 Minnesota Drive  Brainerd, MN 56401           Phone: (218) 203-4470   

www.bwsr.state.mn.us          TTY:  (800) 627-3529          An equal opportunity employer 
 

 

 
March 22, 2023 

Des Moines River Watershed Planning Partnership 
c/o Sarah Soderholm, Murray County 
2500 28th Street 
P.O. Box 57 
Slayton, MN 56172 
 
RE:  Approval of the Des Moines River Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
 
Dear Des Moines River Watershed Planning Group: 
 
The Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) is pleased to inform you the Missouri River 
Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) developed through the One Watershed, One 
Plan program was approved at its regular meeting held on March 22, 2023.  Attached is the signed Board Order 
that documents approval of the Plan and indicates the Plan meets all relevant requirements of law, rule, and 
policy.   
 
This Plan is effective for a ten-year period until March 23, 2033. Please be advised, the partners must adopt and 
begin implementing the plan within 120 days of the date of the Order in accordance with Minnesota Statutes 
§103B.101, Subd. 14, and the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures.   
 
The members of the partnership and participants in the plan development process are to be commended for 
writing a plan that clearly presents water management goals, actions, and priorities of the Partnership, and for 
participating in the development of the One Watershed, One Plan program.  The BWSR looks forward to working 
with you as you implement this Plan and document its outcomes. 
 
Please contact Board Conservationist Douglas Goodrich of our staff at 507-920-6031 or 
douglas.goodrich@state.mn.us for further assistance in this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Gerald Van Amburg, Chair 
Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 

Enclosure: BWSR Board Order 

CC: Listed on next page. 
  

mailto:douglas.goodrich@state.mn.us


Minnesota Board of Water & Soil Resources   •   www.bwsr.state.mn.us 

CC: Margaret Wagner, MDA (via email) 
 Kevin Hauth, MDA (via email) 
 Barbara Weisman, DNR (via email) 
 Korey Woodley, DNR (via email) 
 Tom Kresko, DNR (via email) 
 Carrie Raber, MDH (via email) 
 Amanda Strommer, MDH (via email) 
 Jeff Risberg, MPCA (via email) 
 Katherine Pekarek-Smith, MPCA (via email) 
 Bryan Spindler, MPCA (via email) 
 Erik Dahl, EQB (via email) 
 Ed Lenz, BWSR (via email) 
 Douglas Goodrich, BWSR (via email) 
 Julie Westerlund, BWSR (via email) 

Equal Opportunity Employer 



DES MOINES RIVER WATERSHED 
 

 



Executive 
Summary 



  
 

  ES-1 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

Executive Summary 
The Des Moines River Watershed, located in southwestern Minnesota, is a primarily agricultural watershed rich 
with unique natural features and diverse water resources. The watershed drains 983,719 acres of land, spanning 
portions of seven counties, including Cottonwood, Jackson, Martin, Murray, Nobles, Lyon, and Pipestone (Figure 
ES.1).  Two main river systems form the main arteries of this watershed: the West Fork Des Moines River and the 
East Fork Des Moines River. The West Fork Des Moines River starts in Lake Shetek in the headwaters of the 
watershed and flows southeast into Iowa, passing through the cities of Windom, Jackson, and others. The East 
Fork Des Moines River also drains southeast, flowing into the West Fork across the Iowa border.  

 

Figure ES.1. The Des Moines River Watershed. 

The Des Moines River Watershed includes three major watersheds (USGS Hydrologic Unit Code [HUC]-08 size): 
the Headwaters of the Des Moines River (HUC 07100001), Lower Des Moines River (HUC 07100002), and the 
East Fork Des Moines River (HUC 07100003) (Figure ES.1). This Des Moines Comprehensive Water Management 
Plan (CWMP) was developed in 2021-2022 through the One Watershed, One Plan (1W1P) program administered 
by the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR), Minnesota Statutes §103B.801. 
 
The 1W1P program was designed to align water planning along watershed boundaries, not county or other 
jurisdictional boundaries as was done in the past. Prior to this single plan, each of the seven counties within this 



  
 

  ES-2 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

watershed, as well as the Heron Lake Watershed District, had water-related plans that covered portions of this 
watershed. Water is connected and ignores county boundaries, so to truly manage the resource holistically, a 
watershed scale is most efficient and effective. The purpose of this plan is to target management and projects to 
protect and restore the watershed’s most valuable resources. 
 
The Des Moines River Watershed is diverse, with locations of natural resources and issues changing from north to 
south based on topography, land use, geology, and natural features (e.g., lakes, prairies, etc.). For purposes of 
this plan, the larger Des Moines River Watershed was divided into five “planning regions” shown in Figure ES.2 
and described in Section 1. Introduction. These planning regions are referenced throughout the plan to better 
prioritize, target, and measure management efforts in the watershed over the next ten years. 

 
Figure ES.2. Planning regions in the Des Moines River Watershed. 

Plan Partners  
The Des Moines River Watershed 1W1P began with a memorandum of agreement (MOA) between all local 
planning entities in the watershed involved in the planning process. This included: 

▪ The counties of Cottonwood, Jackson, Martin, Murray, Nobles, and Lyon,  
▪ The Cottonwood, Jackson, Martin, Murray, Nobles, and Lyon Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

(SWCDs), and  
▪ The Heron Lake Watershed District. 



  
 

  ES-3 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

As the jurisdictional area of Pipestone County and SWCD within the watershed planning area is so small, 
Pipestone elected to serve the planning process from an advisory capacity.  

The planning effort was guided by three committees: the Steering Committee, Advisory Committee, and Policy 
Committee (Figure ES.3). The Policy Committee, made up of one representative from each entity in the MOA, 
formed the decision-making body for this plan. The Steering Committee consisted of local staff from each of the 
entities in the MOA and state agencies and generated the content in this plan. The Advisory Committee consisted 
of additional agencies and local stakeholders and contributed to plan content in an advisory role. 

The entities implementing this CWMP are collectively known as the Des Moines River Watershed Partnership 
(Partnership). The Steering and Advisory Committees of the planning process were consolidated for purposes of 
plan implementation. The Policy Committee continues to function as the decision-making body of plan 
implementation, with roles summarized in Figure ES.3 and expanded on in Section 7. Plan Administration and 
Coordination. 

Figure ES.3. Local committee roles for planning and implementing the Des Moines River Watershed CWMP 

Priority Issues 

This plan identifies and prioritizes issues that planning partners will focus on for the next ten years. To begin the 
planning effort, natural resource issues present in existing plans, studies, and data were aggregated. These 
issues were then expanded to include natural resource issues identified in comment letters and responses from 
the public. In total, a list of 32 issues was generated, organized by resource category below (Figure ES.4):  

Des Moines River 
Watershed 
Partnership

Steering Committee

•Staff from MOA entities, BWSR, 
and consultants

•Generated plan content

Advisory Committee

•Local stakeholders 
including state agencies

•Advised on plan content

Steering Committee

•Comprised of Steering and Advisory 
Committee members from planning 
process

•Provides project reports and 
implementation

Policy Committee

•One representative from 
each entity of MOA

•Decision-making body

Policy Committee

•One representative from each entity of 
JPA

•Recommends CWMP items for approval

Implementation 

Planning 



  
 

  ES-4 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

 

Groundwater 

 

Surface Water 

 

Habitat 

 

Land Stewardship 

 
Figure ES.4. Resource categories used to organize issues in the Des Moines River Watershed CWMP 

Due to realistic staff time and funding limitations, this plan prioritizes issues to focus on during a 10-year effort. 
Issues were prioritized as Priority A, Priority B, or Priority C based on input from two public meetings and 
feedback from planning committees. The three priority levels are summarized below (Table ES.1). 
 
Table ES.1: Definitions for Priority A, B, and C issues. 

Priority A We intend to address these issues first within the lifespan of this plan. These are the most 
important! 

Priority B We intend to address some of these issues throughout the lifespan of this plan. Still 
important, but less of a priority. 

Priority C We may address some of these issues through collecting additional data or funding 
throughout the lifespan of the plan. This issue may also be addressed through partner groups. 
Once again, still important, but the lowest local priority issues. 

 
Priority A and B issues are the focus of this plan. They have goals set for them in Section 4. Measurable Goals, 
and actions assigned to address them in Section 5. Targeted Implementation. They are summarized below.  
 
Priority A Issues 

Category Resource  Issue Statement 

 

Aquifer Protection of existing groundwater recharge areas and promotion of additional recharge and 
infiltration to augment limited groundwater supplies. 

Drinking Water Protection of drinking water quality from contaminants, including nitrates and pesticides, 
especially in areas with groundwater and surface water interaction. 

Drinking Water Protection of drinking water quality from contamination from unused wells and noncompliant 
septic systems. 

 

Streams, Ditches Peak flow from altered hydrology (tile and drainage ditches) and its impact on channel stability, 
infiltration rates, and water quality degradation. 

Streams Excess nitrates and ammonia in streams impacting aquatic life. 
Lakes & Streams Excess delivery of sediment from upland wind and water erosion to lakes and streams impacting 

aquatic life and recreation. 



  
 

  ES-5 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

Category Resource  Issue Statement 

 

Lakes & Streams Excess phosphorus loading from runoff and resuspension in lakes causing nuisance algal 
blooms, impacting aquatic life and recreation. 

 

Rural and  
Urban 
Communities 

Insufficient storage on the landscape, especially in upland areas, and its impact on flooding. 

Agriculture Low crop diversity and lack of conservation tillage or residue management on fields, leaving soil 
exposed and impacting soil health. 

 
Priority B Issues 

Category Resource  Issue Statement 

 

Streams Need for continued enhancement of buffers along ditches, stream systems, and non-protected 
waters, impacting water quality and habitat. 

Streams Streambank and in-channel erosion contributing sediment to water, impacting water quality, and 
habitat. 

Streams Livestock access to streams causing degradation in water quality and instability to 
streambanks. 

Lakes & Streams Urban/impervious runoff, stormwater runoff, and other urban point sources impacting 
downstream water quality conditions. 

Lakes Inadequate lake shoreline habitat to provide habitat and protect against shoreline erosion. 

Drainage Ditches Uncoordinated and inadequate drainage management to meet drainage network needs and 
promote water quality. 

 

Rural and  
Urban Communities 

Increasing extremes from a changing climate (drought and increasing precipitation patterns), 
and the need to plan for resiliency. 

 

Wetlands Loss and degradation of wetlands and its impact on wildlife habitat and water storage. 

Upland Habitat Degradation and fragmentation of wildlife habitat, including native prairie, woodlands, 
grasslands, and other areas 

 



  
 

  ES-6 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

Measurable Goals  

Good resource management – and the ability to demonstrate progress – relies on setting measurable goals for 
locally important issues and resources. As such, measurable goals are set for every Priority A and Priority B issue 
in the Des Moines River Watershed. Goals were established for two different time scales:  

• Desired future condition goals describe the resource condition (water quality, water availability, habitat 
quality) planning partners are striving to attain, regardless of timeframe.  

• Ten-year goals describe the quantifiable change in resource condition that planning partners expect to 
achieve during implementation of this plan. 

This plan includes 14 measurable goals that collectively address priority issues. The measurable goals are 
presented as a series of 2-page summaries for each goal, each detailing:  

• The priority issue(s) the goal addresses; 
• Background information about the issue and goal; 
• The desired future condition and ten-year goals; and 
• A map of specific resources and/or subwatersheds that are the geographic focus of initial 

implementation efforts for that goal.  
An example goal is presented in Figure ES-5. Goals are set at a watershed-wide scale. However, the prominence 
of priority issues changes by planning region (and even by subwatershed). To reflect this, planning region 
milestones were established for each goal so each planning region has a target to make progress toward the 
watershed-wide goal (Figure ES.6). Issues that are more important in one planning region will have a larger 
milestone goal. 

             

 

Desired Future Condition 

▪ All 20,630 acres of land within vulnerable 
DWSMAs have been assessed for or have 
implemented innovative recharge 
conservation practices as a means of 
improving groundwater recharge and 
protection. 

Ten-Year Goal 

▪ 5,000 acres of innovative recharge 
conservation practices are implemented 
within DWSMAs as a means of improving 
groundwater recharge and protection. 

Metric or Indicator 

▪ Acres treated with innovative recharge 
conservation practices. 

Focus Areas 

▪ Drinking Water Supply Management Areas 
(DWSMAs) and locations where 
groundwater recharge is high 

 

 

 

Figure ES.5. Example goal summary for the Des Moines River Watershed 



  
 

  ES-7 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure ES.6. Watershed Priority A and B measurable 10-year goals with planning region milestones

and septics 



  
 

  ES-8 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

Targeted Implementation  

This plan includes a series of Action Tables that detail the actions that will be taken to make progress toward 
planning region milestones and measurable goals. These tables also include information about where and when 
actions will be targeted, how those actions will be measured, and how much it will cost, and what actions need to 
be tracked for reporting progress back toward goals. Action Tables can be found in Section 5. Targeted 
Implementation. Similar types of actions are grouped into one of five implementation programs, as shown in 
Figure ES.7, and described in Section 6. Implementation Programs. 
 

Figure ES.7: Implementation programs in the Des Moines River Watershed with example actions that are 
summarized in Action Tables 
 



  
 

  ES-9 | P a g e  
 

                                     Executive Summary  

Table ES.2 shows the estimated costs for implementing actions in the plan. Costs are also included for the 
operations and maintenance of waterways and waterway infrastructure at or near their current levels, for 
regulatory actions, and for plan administration and administrative costs related to implementation. This plan 
assumes local, state, and/or federal fiscal support remains unchanged. 
 
Table ES.2. Estimated cost of implementing the Des Moines River CWMP (assumes Current Funding + 
Watershed Based Implementation Funding [WBIF]) 

 
 

Assumes Current Funding + WBIF 

Est. Annual Cost Est. 10-Year Cost 
Implementation Programs 
Projects and Practices $1,217,700 $12,176,000 
Capital Improvement Projects $35,900 $359,000 
Education and Outreach $260,900 $2,609,000 
Research and Assessments $103,100 $1,031,000 
Regulatory Administration  $242,800 $2,428,000 
Additional Expenses 
Operations and Maintenance $186,600 $1,866,000 
Administration $70,000 $700,000 

Total $2,117,000 $21,169,000 
 
Lastly, Figure ES.8 summarizes the estimated benefits from implementing the Des Moines River Watershed 
CWMP. All benefits summarized are related to attaining the ten-year measurable goals.  

 

 

 
 

 

Figure ES.8. Estimated benefits from implementing the Des Moines River Watershed CWMP  

Benefits of Implementing the Plan 

 
5,000 acres recharge 

practices 260 sealed wells 
4% nitrogen 

reduction 
10% sediment 

reduction 
4% phosphorus 

reduction 

39,000 acre-feet 
storage 

24,000 acres soil 
management 

5 miles stream 
channels enhanced 

40 miles stream with 
pasture management 

300 urban acres 
treated 

2 acres shoreline 
protected with projects 

7 multipurpose 
drainage mgmt. plans 

1,550 acres 
wetland restored 

12,000 acres land re-
enrolled in protection  

 



Updated 2/13/2020 www.bwsr.state.mn.us  1 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 

Meeting Date: March 22, 2023  

Agenda Category: ☒ Committee Recommendation ☐ New Business ☐ Old Business 
Item Type: ☒ Decision ☐ Discussion ☐ Information 
Keywords for Electronic 
Searchability: Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank One Watershed, One Plan 

Section/Region: Southern Region 
Contact: Ed Lenz 
Prepared by: Jason Beckler 
Reviewed by: Southern Regional Committee Committee(s) 
Presented by: Ted Winter & Jason Beckler 
Time requested: 15 minutes 

☐  Audio/Visual Equipment Needed for Agenda Item Presentation 

Attachments: ☐ Resolution ☒ Order ☒ Map ☒ Other Supporting Information 

Fiscal/Policy Impact 
☒ None ☐ General Fund Budget 
☐ Amended Policy Requested ☐ Capital Budget 
☐ New Policy Requested ☐ Outdoor Heritage Fund Budget 
☐ Other:  ☐ Clean Water Fund Budget 

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
Approval of the Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan as recommended by the 
Southern Regional Committee. 

LINKS TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Plan is on the Yellow Medicine Soil and Water Conservation District website: 
• Plan Weblink: https://c77eb742-d51b-45c5-a663-
ed5d7988357e.filesusr.com/ugd/8da049_dff84617fef8450d89fbc289a1e55391.pdf  

SUMMARY (Consider:  history, reason for consideration now, alternatives evaluated, basis for recommendation) 

Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) – On March 31, 2021 the Lac qui 
Parle – Yellow Bank (LqP – YB) Partnership received an approved grant agreement from the Board of Water and 
Soil Resources (BWSR) to develop a Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan under the One Watershed, One 
Plan Program. The Partnership established a Memorandum of Agreement on January 26, 2021, for the purposes of 
watershed planning. The Partnership has followed One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures; and the Policy  

https://c77eb742-d51b-45c5-a663-ed5d7988357e.filesusr.com/ugd/8da049_dff84617fef8450d89fbc289a1e55391.pdf
https://c77eb742-d51b-45c5-a663-ed5d7988357e.filesusr.com/ugd/8da049_dff84617fef8450d89fbc289a1e55391.pdf


Committee, Advisory Committee, and Steering Team members have attended regularly scheduled meetings and 
kept open communication throughout Plan development. The Partnership submitted the draft Lac qui Parle – 
Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) to BWSR on September 22, 2022, for 60-day 
comment period. A public hearing was held December 15, 2022, and the Policy Committee submitted the Plan for 
approval January 6, 2023. The Southern Regional Committee (Committee) met on March 13, 2023, to review the 
planning process, the content of the Plan, State agency comments on the Plan, and to make a recommendation 
for approval. The Committee recommends approval by the full Board. 

 



 

Page 1 of 5 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55155 

 
 

In the Matter of the review of the 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
for Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank, pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, 
Subdivision 14 and 103B.801.  

ORDER 
APPROVING 

COMPREHENSIVE 
WATERSHED 

MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 
Whereas, the Policy Committee of the Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank (LqP -YB) Partnership submitted a 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) to the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
(Board) on January 6, 2023 pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 and 
103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14, and; 
 
Whereas, the Board has completed its review of the Plan; 
 
Now Therefore, the Board hereby makes the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions, and Order: 
 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1. Partnership Establishment. The Partnership was established in 2021 through adoption of a 

Memorandum of Agreement for the purposes of developing a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan. The membership of the Partnership includes:  Lac qui Parle County, Lincoln County, 
Yellow Medicine County, Lac qui Parle Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD), Lincoln SWCD, 
Yellow Medicine SWCD, Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Watershed District and Area II Minnesota River 
Basin Projects. 
 

2. Authority to Plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 allows the Board to adopt 
resolutions, policies or orders that allow a comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or 
watershed management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 
103B, 103C, or 103D to serve as substitutes for one another or be replaced with a comprehensive 
watershed management plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.801 established the Comprehensive 
Watershed Management Planning Program; also known as One Watershed, One Plan. And, Board 
Resolution #18-14 adopted the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures and Plan Content 
Requirements policies. 

 
3. Nature of the Watershed. The LqP-YB Watershed planning area encompasses the Minnesota portions 

of one major (HUC 08) watershed, the Lac qui Parle, and four HUC 10 subwatersheds, the North and 
South Fork Yellow Bank subwatersheds, the Marsh Lake subwatershed, and the Lac qui Parle Reservoir 
subwatershed. Minnesota contains roughly 760 square miles (486,400 acres) of the total area for the 
Lac qui Parle River Watershed (approximately 1,100 square miles or 704,000acres), while South 
Dakota’s portion is approximately 340 square miles (217,600acres).  The planning region contains 



 

Page 2 of 5 

steep slopes with 1,070 foot drop in elevation in the first 60 miles of drainage while the rest of the 
planning region is relatively flat.  The plan makes note that prior to European settlement the LqP – YB 
watershed was populated by the Yankton and Yanktonia Dakota (Sioux, Očhéthi Šakówiŋ) tribes with 
a landscape consisting of tallgrass prairie, wetlands, floodplain forests and pothole lakes that were left 
behind after the ice sheets receded.  Current land use is predominantly agriculture lands, with 78% of 
the planning area being used as cropland which influenced how the planning partners developed 
measurable goals and associated action items.  The watershed contains 203 watercourses, 157 public 
water basins and 5 Drinking Water Management Supply Areas. 

4. Plan Development.  The Plan was developed as a single, concise, and coordinated approach to 
watershed management for the purpose of guiding watershed managers as they work with 
landowners and communities to protect and restore the watershed’s resources. The Plan consolidates 
policies, programs, and implementation strategies from existing data, studies, and plans, and 
incorporates input from multiple planning partners to provide a single plan for management of the 
watershed. The Plan focuses on prioritized, targeted, and measurable implementation efforts and lays 
out specific goals and actions to improve surface water quality and quantity, groundwater quality and 
quantity including public and private water supplies, improve soil health, and mitigate negative 
impacts that may result from current land use in the watershed. 

5. Plan Review. On January 6, 2023, the Board received the Plan, a record of the public hearing, and 
copies of all written comments pertaining to the Plan for final State review pursuant to Board #18-14.   
State agency representatives attended and provided input at advisory committee meetings during 
development of the Plan.  The following state review comments were received during the comment 
period. 

A. Environmental Quality Board indicated Policy indicates that EQB only be notified of the 
final draft document.  EQB did not respond to the submission. 

B. Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA): During the 60-day comment period MDA 
requested revisions to the plan that included being added as partner for monitoring of 
groundwater and requested additional information for irrigation groundwater education 
events.  MDA commended the partners for their targeted actions focused on drinking water 
protection for public water suppliers and private wells. MDA confirmed receipt of the Plan 
at the final formal review and stated all MDA comments were considered and addressed in 
the final draft plan and recommends approval.   

C. Minnesota Department of Health (MDH): During the 60-day comment period MDH 
requested revision to the Plans goal scale and additional information for the decreased 
groundwater recharge and supply priority issue.  MDH also requested that the priority issue 
statements be reviewed to ensure consistent language throughout the plan.   MDH 
commended the partners for including drinking water as a priority concern.  MDH 
confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final formal review and stated all MDH comments were 
considered and addressed in the final draft plan and recommends approval.      

D. Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR): During the 60-day comment period, 
DNR provided comments to the LqP – YB partners that will be beneficial during 
implementation.  DNR commented that partners should work with drainage authorities to 
help mitigate impacts that may result from projects that could alter hydrology.  DNR 
confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final formal review and recommends approval.   

E. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA): During the 60-day comment period MPCA 
acknowledged that throughout the planning process the partners were responsive to the 
MPCA’s concerns, comments and priorities.  MPCA asked that the partners focus their 



 

Page 3 of 5 

education and outreach activities to the high priority planning regions. MPCA confirmed 
receipt of the Plan at the final formal review and stated all MPCA comments were 
considered and the final draft plan is very well written, concise, and thorough. MPCA 
recommends approval.      

F. Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR): During the 60-day review period, BWSR 
provided comments requesting numerous revisions to the Plan to ensure consistency 
throughout the Plan and that plan content requirements were met. All comments were 
adequately addressed in the final Plan. 

6. Plan Summary and Highlights. The highlights of the plan include: 
• The Plan includes an informative Executive Summary summarizing resource concerns and issues, 

the method of establishing measurable goals, summarizing pace of progress toward goals attained 
by the planned activities, and short-term cost of the 10 year implementation schedule. 

• The Plan includes a thorough identification of the targeted areas using PTMApp. PTMApp has 
estimated feasible locations for management practices and structural BMPs, as well as the 
associated annual costs and anticipated benefits arising from implementation. The result is a list 
of the best (most cost-effective and most effective toward load reduction goals) practices. 

• The Plan identifies ten different planning regions which were defined based on land use, 
hydrology, and geology. The ten planning regions are Yellow Bank River, Minnesota River, Lac qui 
Parle River, Tenmile Creek, West Branch Lac qui Parel River, Lac qui Parle River South, Cobb Creek, 
Lazarus Creek, Canby Creek, and Headwaters Lac qui Parle River. 

• West Branch Lac qui Parle River, Cobb Creek, and Headwaters Lac qui Parle River planning regions 
were designated High Priority planning regions.  The High Priority planning regions will be the areas 
the partners will focus first with the Medium Priority planning regions being “on-deck” and the 
Low Priority planning regions are not going to be the focus during the ten-year lifespan of the Plan.   

• The plan development process generated twenty-five issues, organized in six resource categories 
(Drinking Water, Agricultural Lands, Rural/Urban Areas, Streams/Drainage Systems, Aquifer, 
Aquatic Habitat) using existing reports, plans, studies, data, and stakeholder input. Each issue was 
assigned as one of four priority levels within each planning region. Eight issues were identified as 
a “high” priority ranking in at least one planning region and will be the focus of initial 
implementation efforts.  Five issues were identified as a “medium-high” priority ranking in at least 
one planning region and will be the focus of initial implementation efforts, likely with additional 
funding.  Six issues were identified as a “medium” priority ranking in any planning region and will 
not be assigned prioritization during the Plan but may receive attention if time and funding allows. 
The remaining six issues were identified as a “low” priority ranking watershed-wide and are not 
the focus of the Plan. 

• The Plan details six measurable goals that collectively address the thirteen high and medium-high 
priority issues and their associated goal scale. A quick refence guide was developed for each of 
these priority issues.  Each reference guide summarizes the priority issues, multiple benefits for 
the watershed-wide goals, the planning region and goal scale for each issue, background 
information about the issue and goal, and the long-term and short-term goals. 

• Included in the Appendix are a series of maps showing possible locations to implement priority 
Best Management Practices (BMPs) for each planning region These maps are to be used as a tool 
for prioritization of outreach and target implementation efforts in the planning regions. 

• The Plan recognizes three funding levels for implementation. Level 1 - Current Funding, Level 2 - 
Current Funding + BWSR’s Watershed Based Implementation Fund (WBIF) grant program, and 
Level 3 - Partner and Other Funding. Actions pursued under Funding Level 2 are the focus of the 



 

Page 4 of 5 

Plan and have an estimated annual cost of $945,801.  When all funding levels are combined, an 
estimated $23,616,229 is needed to fully fund the Plan over its ten-year lifespan.  

• Separate targeted implementation tables were created for each planning region that include 
actions within the Projects and Practices implementation program. Only priority issues that rank 
high in the planning region were given planning region specific measurable goals and associated 
targeted action items. Watershed-wide implementation tables were created for actions related 
to Capital Improvement Projects, Regulatory, Education and Outreach, and Research and 
Monitoring.  

7. Planning Boundary Adjustment. The Board adopted the One Watershed, One Plan Suggested 
Boundary Map on April 23, 2014. The map established suggested planning boundaries for plans 
developed through the One Watershed, One Plan program. The Partnership requested a boundary 
adjustment to portions of Lac qui Parle watershed and Upper Minnesota River Watershed, which 
includes the planning boundary #18 (Lac qui Parle Watershed) and planning boundary #16 (part of the 
Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Watershed District) as indicated on the Board adopted Suggested Boundary 
Map. The Partnership provided documentation for local concurrence, rationale, and justification of 
the adjusted boundary. The adjusted boundary was approved by Board staff per the One Watershed, 
One Plan Operating Procedures. The adjusted boundary is included as part of the board packet. 

8. Southern Regional Committee.  On March 13, 2023, the Southern Regional Committee met to review 
and discuss the Plan.  Those in attendance from the Board’s Committee were Eunice Biel, Jeffrey Berg, 
Heather Johnson, Kelly Rae Kirkpatrich, Scott Roemhildt, Mark Wettlaufer and Ted Winter.  Board staff 
in attendance were Southern Regional Manager Ed Lenz, Board Conservationist Adam Beilke and 
Jeremey Maul, and Clean Water Specialists Mark Hiles.  The representatives from the Partnership were 
Amy Bacigalupo, Dave Craigmile, David Johnson, Dale Sterzinger, Rhyan Schicker, Drew Kessler Mitch 
Enderson, Kerry Netzke, and Trudy Hastad. Board regional staff provided its recommendation of Plan 
approval to the Committee.  After discussion, the Committee’s decision was to present a 
recommendation of approval of the Plan to the full Board. 

9. This Plan will be in effect for a ten-year period until March 24, 2032. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 
1. All relevant substantive and procedural requirements of law have been fulfilled.   

2. The Board has proper jurisdiction in the matter of approving a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan for the Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 
103B.101, Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14. 

3. The Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Plan attached to this Order states water and water-related problems 
within the planning area; priority resource issues and possible solutions thereto; goals, objectives, and 
actions of the Partnership; and an implementation program.   

4. The attached Plan is in conformance with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes Section 103B.101, 
Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #19-41. 

5. The One Watershed, One Plan Suggested Boundary Map is adjusted to include portions of Lac qui Parle 
watershed and Upper Minnesota River Watershed, which includes the planning boundary #18 (Lac qui 
Parle Watershed) and planning boundary #16 (part of the Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Watershed 



 

Page 5 of 5 

District) as indicated on the Board adopted Suggested Boundary Map approved by the Board March 
24, 2021. 

6. The attached plan when adopted through local resolution by the members of the Partnership will 
serve as a replacement for the comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or watershed 
management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 103B, 
103C, or 103D, but only to the geographic area of the Plan and consistent with the One Watershed, 
One Plan Suggested Boundary Map. 

 
 

ORDER 
 
The Board hereby approves the attached Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan of the Lac qui 
Parle – Yellow Bank, dated March 22, 2023.  
 
 
Dated at St. Paul, Minnesota, this 22 of March, 2023. 
 
MINNESOTA BOARD OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES 
 
 

 
BY:   Gerald Van Amburg, Chair  



 

 

Bemidji Brainerd Detroit Lakes Duluth Mankato Marshall Rochester St Cloud 

403 Fourth Street NW 1601 Minnesota Drive 26624 N. Tower Road 394 S. Lake Avenue 11 Civic Center Plaza 1400 East Lyon Street 3555 9th Street NW 110 Second St. South 
Suite 200 Brainerd, MN 56401 Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 Suite 403 Suite 300 Marshall, MN 56258 Suite 350 Suite 307 
Bemidji, MN 56601 (218) 203-4470 (218) 846-8400 Duluth, MN 55802 Mankato, MN 56001 (507) 537-6060 Rochester, MN 55901 Waite Park, MN 56387 
(218) 755-2600   (218) 723-4752 (507) 344-2826  (507) 206-2889  
        

Central Office / Metro Office 520 Lafayette Road North Saint Paul, MN 55155 Phone: (651) 296-3767  Fax: (651) 297-5615 

www.bwsr.state.mn.us          TTY:  (800) 627-3529          An equal opportunity employer 
 

Monday, March 13, 2023 

Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Partnership 
c/o Tyler Knutson, Director 
1000 10th Avenue, Suite 3 PO Box 545 
Clarkfield, MN 56223 
 
RE:  Approval of the Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
 
Dear Lac qui Parle – Yellow Bank Partnership: 
 
The Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) is pleased to inform you the Lac qui Parle – Yellow 
Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) was approved at its regular meeting held on March 
22, 2023.  Attached is the signed Board Order that documents approval of the Plan and indicates the Plan meets 
all relevant requirements of law, rule, and policy.   
 
This Plan is effective for a ten-year period until March 24, 2032. Please be advised, the partners must adopt and 
begin implementing the plan within 120 days of the date of the Order in accordance with Minnesota Statutes 
§103B.101, Subd. 14, and the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures.   
 
The members of the partnership and participants in the plan development process are to be commended for 
writing a plan that clearly presents water management goals, actions, and priorities of the Partnership, and for 
participating in the One Watershed, One Plan program.  The BWSR looks forward to working with you as you 
implement this Plan and document its outcomes. 
 
Please contact Board Conservationist Jason Beckler of our staff at 507-829-8204 or Jason.Beckler@state.mn.us 
for further assistance in this matter. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
Gerald Van Amburg , Chair 
Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
 
Enclosure:  BWSR Board Order 
 
CC:  Ryan Lemickson, MDA (via email) 
  Amanda Strommer, MDH (via email) 
  Ryan Bjerke, DNR (via email) 
  Katherine Pekarek-Scott, MPCA (via email) 
  Ed Lenz, BWSR Regional Manager (via email) 
  Jason Beckler, BWSR Board Conservationist (via email) 
  Rachel Mueller, BWSR (file copy) 

Equal Opportunity Employer 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

  
  

 

  
 

  

    

 
 

 
 

t
:

3
3

7
7

2
00

0
0

00
G

M
p

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
P

l
a

a
a

e
e

e
g

i
o

o
n

nn
n

s
m

Stevens 
Big Stone 

g 
St

on
e 

ft i
Swi

L
B

a
o

B

ne c qui Parle Swift Lac qui Parle 
Ch

L i
a

p
P c

pe
a q
r

w
l ue 

i 
a 

SO
U

TH
 D

AK
O

TA
 

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

 

a
y 

C
bn
rC

k ee

c a
s L r 

r e
e v
t i

aw e R

d lr
a a

eH i PuQ

D
cu

th
H

:
r

v
JB

N
37

2_
10

G
IS

M
p

\P
la

R
eg

io
ns

.m
xd

0 4 8 16
Miles 

1 in = 8 miles 

Stevens
Swift 

Ortonville 
! 

Odessa 
Danvers 

! 

Yellow
Bank Ri 

ig St ! Correll 
Holloway 

! 

! 

ver Lou 

Appleton 
! 

Bellingham ! 
isburg

Minnesota
Ri 

! 

ver 

Swift
Chippewa 

Nassau 
! 

! Milan 

Lac Qui
Marietta Madison Parle Wat 
! ! 

West
Qu 

Branch Lac
i Parle River 

Ri 
son 

ver 
! 

Cobb
Creek 

Lac Qui Parl
River South

e 

Dawson Montevideo ! 
! 

Tenmil
Creek

e 

Lac qui Parle
Yellow Medi 

!

Boyd 

cine Clarkfield 
! 

Lazarus
Creek Saint Leo 

! 
!

Canby 

Yellow
Medi
Li 

cine 
ncoln 

! Porter Yellow Medicine 

Hendricks 

Lyon
Taunton 
! 

Minneota 
! 

Ghent 
! 

! 

Ivanhoe 
! Marshall 

! 

Arco Li
nc

ol
n

Ly
on

 

! 

Lynd
! 

Russell 
! 

Tyler 
!Lake Benton 

! 

Florence 
! 

Balaton Des Moi 
ers! Headwat
nes

Des Moi 
!Lincoln Headwat

nes 
ers Garvin

Pipestone 
$ 

Priority LQP 1W1P Boundary

Low ! Cities 

Medium Counties 

High States 



A. Executive Summary 



A. Executive 
Summary 

A. Executive Summary 
The Lac qui Parle - Yellow Bank (LqP-YB) Watershed in southwest Minnesota is an agriculturally rich 

watershed with fertile soils, gently rolling topography, and surface waters enjoyed for recreation. With 

approximately 10,000 residents, the LqP-YB Watershed overlaps three counties: Lac qui Parle County, 

Yellow Medicine County, and Lincoln County. Approximately 30.9% of the LqP-YB Watershed is in South 

Dakota, and many of the surface waters originate in South Dakota. The LqP-YB Watershed encompasses 

the Lac qui Parle Watershed (HUC 08) and four smaller watersheds, the North and South Fork Yellow 

Bank Watersheds, the Marsh Lake Watershed, and the Lac qui Parle Reservoir Watershed (HUC 10s). 

Water flowing on the landscape does not follow traditional political boundaries. Because of this, 

resource management at a watershed scale rather than at political ones has become necessary to 

manage water resources. The LqP-YB Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (CWMP) planning 

area was created based on hydrological flow patterns, watershed districts, boundaries with South 

Dakota, as well as preexisting neighboring watershed boundaries (Figure A.1). 

The resulting CWMP contains 970 square miles or 622,700 acres. The towns located within the 

Watershed include Bellingham, Boyd, Burr, Canby, Dawson, Hendricks, Lac qui Parle Village, Louisburg, 

Madison, Marietta, Nassau, and Rosen. 

The LqP-YB CWMP was developed between 2021-2023 through the One Watershed, One Plan (lWlP) 

program administered by the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR; Minnesota Statutes 

§103B.801). The CWMP will guide watershed partners including local counties, Soil and Water 

Conservation Districts, the LqP-YB WD, and other local stakeholders through the implementation 

processes to restore, protect, and ensure the Watershed's water management and sustainability moving 

forward. 

Administration and Coordination 
CWMP planning began with a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA; Appendix A) between cooperating 

local governmental agencies and organizations, including: 

O Lac qui Parle, Lincoln, and Yellow Medicine Counties 

O Lac qui Parle, Lincoln, and Yellow Medicine SWCDs 

O The Lac qui Parle-Yellow Bank Watershed District (LqP-YB WD) 

O The Area II Minnesota River Basin Projects 

Throughout the planning process, guiding committees have developed and detailed the CWMP for 

implementation. These committees include: 

O Policy Committee which is comprised of board members from counties, SWCDs, LqP-YB WD, and 

other local groups. The policy committee represented their respective organizations, as well as 

guided general decision-making regarding the CWMP 

o Advisory and Steering Team which are composed of members from SWCDs, LqP-YB WD, 

counties, landowners, city and township officials, and other stakeholders including state agencies 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measu rable 
Goals 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Porgrams 

G. Plan 
Administration and A-1 

Coord inati on 



A. Executive 
Summary 

such as BWSR, Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (MDNR), Minnesota Department of 

Agriculture (MDA), Minnesota Department of Health (MDH), Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 

(MPCA). 

For plan implementation, these groups continue much of their responsibilities (full responsibilities 

outlined in Section F). The Policy Committee continues to guide decision making and works closely with 

BWSR for implementation. The Advisory and Steering Team will provide reports and develop working 

plans. 

Planning Regions 
Duetothevariedtopography 

and surface water features 

throughout the LqP-YB 

Watershed, planning regions 

were developed to best 

implement priorities in an 

effective manner. The 10 

planning regions in the CWMP 

can be seen in Figure A.1 and 

were generated based on land 

use, hydrology, geology, and 
vegetation. Implementation of 

this plan will occur based on 

these defined planning regions 

derived from issue prioritization 

which has occurred in each 

region. 

l : 
" 
;J 

ns~lt 5:-

~\ 

Marshall 
M.v:flall 

Mr~"'r 

~~:n Priority C3 LOP 1W1P Boundary 

'-0-~-~ Lake BefliQn-• C:3 low • Cities 

V C3 Medium i::J Counties 

''}~ High □ States 1 In" 8mll8S 

Figure A.1. LqP-YB Planning Regions with issue prioritization (see Section D). 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Porgrams 

G. Plan 
Administration and A-2 

Coordination 



A. Executive 
Summary 

Issue Prioritization 
To identify and prioritize 

issues both on a watershed 

and planning region scale, a 

planning process occurred 

with public input. Public 

participation consisted of an 

online survey and a kick-off 

meeting where members of 

the community could 

provide feedback about 

resource concerns in the 

watershed to begin 

identifying issues. Public 

participation identified four 

areas of resource concern: 

groundwater (including 

drinking water), surface 

water (including lakes and 

streams, erosion), land 

stewardship (including soil 

health and planning for 

future climate), and habitat 

(including wildlife and 

wetlands) (Figure A.2) . 

Watershed-wide issues were 

then selected by the 

Figure A.2. Most important resource 
concerns to public survey respondents. 
Average Ratings are a simple average of 
all responses received for the survey. A 
higher rating means a higher interest 
from public kickoff attendees to focus on 
issues connected with that category of 
resource (see Section C) . 

committees based on public feedback, existing studies, and current local knowledge of concerns and 

divided into four priority levels: high (Table A.l), medium-high (Table A.2), medium, and low. High 

priority items are the initial focus for plan implementation, medium-high issues will be addressed with 

additional funding, medium priority items will receive attention if time and funding allow, and low 

priority issues will likely not be addressed in the 10-year timeframe of the plan but may be moved up in 

priority in plan updates based on current needs. The high and medium-high watershed-wide issues were 

then geographically prioritized as high, medium, and low priority for each planning region based on the 

needs of each planning region (Table A.l, Table A.2). This geographic prioritization was completed to 

address the variation in the prevalence of issues across the planning area. 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Porgrams 

G. Plan 
Administration and A-3 

Coordination 



High Priority Issues 
Table A.1. Planning Region Prioritization Key: • = high priority Q = medium priority Q = low priority 

• o,;,k;,, Wate, 

• 

Agricultural Lands 

Rural and Urban 
Areas 

Streams and 
Drainage Systems 

Groundwater contamination of public 
water supplies 

Soil health 

Changes to land use, land cover, and land 
management that affect habitat, drainage, 
flooding, and erosion 

Excess runoff that transports contaminants 
to surface waters 

A. Executive 
Summary 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

Groundwater contamination, specifically of public water supplies including 
arsenic, nitrates, and pesticides 

Reduction in soil organic matter resulting in less water-holding capacity, 
lack of rainfall infiltration, higher erosion and nutrient loss, as well as lowe 
agricu ltu ra I productivity 

Increases in land use changes such as removing vegetation, creating 
impervious surfaces, and removing surface and subsurface storage areas 
that have impacts to resources in the planning area. Through the 
stakeholder engagement process for this plan, the planning partners 
identified this issue as a need to maintain and improve current conditions. 
There is not a perception that large amounts of conversion are currently 
occurring . 

Excess runoff from increased precipitation or rapid snowmelt causing 
impacts to downstream waters (e.g., E.coli, sedimentation, nutrients, 
pesticides) that may drive water quality impairments. 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Porgrams 

G. Plan 
Administration and 

Coordination 
A-4 



• 
• 
• 
• 

Streams and 
Drainage Systems 

Streams and 
Drainage Systems 

Streams and 
Drainage Systems 

Streams and 
Drainage Systems 

Surface water quality impairments (DO, 
Aql, AqR, pH, E. coli, mercury, biological) 

Connectivity and hydrologic changes that 
degrade streams and drainage systems 

In-channel erosion contributing to impacts 
on water quality and habitat 

Accelerated erosion leading to 
sedimentation and other water quality 
issues 

A. Executive 
Summary 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

Aquatic life and recreation impairments caused by TSS, DO, 
P, N, pH, E. coli, mercury, temperature, and other contaminants. 

Hydrologic changes such as altered hydrology, dams, bridges, and culverts 
causing flow conditions (e.g., low base flow, increased peak, and base flows) 
that degrade the quality streams, and longitudinal (upstream and 
downstream) connectivity issues for aquatic fish and macroinvertebrates. 

Includes streambank erosion, channel stability, and channelization that have! 
a negative impact on water quality, infrastructure and aquatic habitat 
associated with lateral (floodplain) connectivity . 

Accelerated soil, wind, and stormwater erosion leading to turbidity, 
sedimentation, and other water quality issues. Notwithstanding, many in 
the watershed have a long history of adopting conservation measures. 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Porgrams 

G. Plan 
Administration and 

Coordination 
A-5 



Medium-High Priority Issues 

Table A.2. Planning Region Prioritization Key: • = high priority Q = medium priority Q = low priority 

• Aq,;fe, 

• o,;,k;,g Watec 

Rural and Urban 
Areas 

A. Executive 
Summary 

Decreased groundwater recharge and supply 

Contamination of private wells 

Flood damages to private and public lands 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measu rable 
Goals 

Any decrease in groundwater or aquifer availability that may result 
in an impact to water supplies (quantity). 

Pollutants entering into a private well that may impact the use of 
the water supply. 

Flood damage to crops, ag land, urban areas, infrastructure, and 
Lac qui Parle State Park resulting from channel debris, land use 
changes, improperly sized culverts and bridges, and other causes. 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Porgrams 

G. Plan 
Administration and 

Coordinati on 
A-6 



Rural and Urban 
Areas 

Aquatic Habitat 

A. Executive 
Summary 

Subsurface sewage treatment systems and 
small communities with wastewater needs 

Loss of aquatic habitat 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measu rable 
Goals 

Small communities with wastewater needs and failing septic systems 
contributing E. coli to surface water. 

A decrease in the quantity or quality of available aquatic habitat. 
May be driven by landscape changes that result in changes to 
aquatic systems such as dams, and undersized or perched culvert 
crossings. May result in impacts to aquatic species and result in 
biological impairments. 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Porgrams 

G. Plan 
Administration and 

Coordinati on 
A-7 



A. Executive 
Summary 

Measurable Goals 
To successfully implement the CWMP and make progress towards improving priority issues, setting and 
tracking measurable goals are essential. Demonstrating progress towards goals over the 10-year 

timeframe of this plan will ensure its success. To do this, specific, measurable outcomes were set to 

track progress (Table A.3). Like issue prioritization, measurable goals were set on both on the watershed 

scale and for each planning region . 

Prioritize, Target, and Measure Application (PTMApp), a geographic information system (GIS) tool, was 

used in this plan to develop goals and identify the locations of practices that would both be effective in 

cost and outcome over the 10-year course of this plan. PTMApp projections allow for setting of specific 

goals related to surface waters, sediment, nutrient loading, and altered hydrology. Locations identified 

as priority areas by the Committees were a focus of these goals. The Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) 

and Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) were utilized in PTMApp projections and 

helped define measurable goals for the CWMP. Below is an example of a watershed-wide goal. More 

specific goals for each planning region were also developed using PTMApp, with resource specific 

targets identified. 

Example Goal 

Soil Health (Watershed-Wide Goal} 

Short-Term: 

• Treat 40,000 acres of working lands, including acres with existing 

conservation practices 

• Implement soil health practices and increase soil organic matter on 20% of acres 

Long-Term: 

• Treat all acres in watershed, including acres with existing conservation practices 

• Implement soil health practices and increase soil organic matter on 70% of acres 

Example Table. Multiple benefits addressed through progress towards the watershed-wide soil health goal 

Priori!Y Issue Assessing Progress 
Groundwater contamination of public water 
supplies 

Reduced nitrate and other contaminants 
concentrations 

Excess runoff that transports contaminants to 
surface waters 

Water quality impairments (DO, AqL, AqR, pH, E. 
coli, mercury, biological) 

Accelerated erosion leading to sedimentation and 
other water quality issues 
Flood damages to private and public lands 

acre-feet of storage 

tons/year of sediment 
lbs/year of total phosphorus 
lbs/year of total nitrogen 
tons/year of sediment 

acre/feet of storage 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Programs 

G. Plan 
Administration and A-8 

Coordination 



A. Executive 
Summary 

Table A.3. Measurable goals outlined in Section D. 

Measurable Goal 
Soil Health 

Testing and Sealing of 
Private Wells 

Subsurface Sewage 
Treatment Systems and 
Small Communities with 
Wastewater Needs 

Decreased groundwater 
recharge and supply 

Groundwater 
contamination of public 
water supplies 

Changes to land use, land 
cover, and land 
management that affect 
habitat, drainage, 
flooding, and erosion 
Excess runoff that 
transports contaminants 
to surface waters 

Short-Term Goal(s) 
Treat 40,000 acres of 
working lands, including 
acres with existing 
conservation practices 
Implement soil health 
practices and increase soil 
organic 

O Conduct one outreach event 
per year about well testing 
and sealing for private well 
owners 

O Host one well testing clinic 
per year 

o Seal 10 wells per year 

Replace 10 failing or 
imminent public health 
threat SSTS per year 
Metric: Number of replaced 
SSTS 

O Host two education and 
outreach events per year 
focused on ways to conserve 
groundwater 

20 Outreach events 

o Increase continuous cover 
by 5%, while maintaining 
existing cover 

< Increase storage by 0.05 
inch (2,934 acre-feet)* 

Long-Term Goal(s) 
Treat all acres in watershed, 
including acres with existing 
conservation practices 
Implement soil health 
practices and increase soil 
organic matter on 70% of 
acres 

O Provide resources and host 
well testing clinics for 
private well users to have 
their wells tested for 
Coliform Bacteria (yearly), 
Nitrate (biennially), Arsenic, 
Lead and Manganese (all 
once) 

o Seal all unused wells 

Replace all failing or 
imminent public health 
threat SSTS 

o Monitor and maintain 
aquifer levels over time 

Continued outreach 
Testing of drinking water 
supplies to ensure no 
degradation 

o Increase continuous cover 
by 10%, while maintaining 
existing cover 

Increase storage by 0.39 
inch (22,880 acre-feet)* 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Programs 

G. Plan 
Administration and A-9 

Coordination 



A. Executive 
Summary 

Measurable Goal 
Surface water quality 
impairments (DO, Aql, 
AqR, pH, E. coli, mercury, 
biological) 

Connectivity and 
hydrologic changes that 
degrade streams and 
drainage systems 

In-channel erosion 
contributing to impacts 
on water quality and 
habitat 
Accelerated erosion 
leading to sedimentation 
and other water 

Flood damages to private 
and public lands 

Loss of Aquatic Habitat 

Short-Term Goal(s) 
o Phosphorus -10% reduction 

in annual loading (6,384 
lbs/year) 

o Bacteria - 10% reduction in 
bacteria concentration 

o Total Nitrogen - 10% 
reduction in annual loading 
(140,764 lbs/year) 

Modify 10% of dams, 
culverts, and bridges that 
inhibit aquatic life 
9 miles of channel restored 

o 9 miles of channel 
restoration 

Reduce sediment by 10% or 
about 5,134 tons/year to 
reduce stressors on 
biological impairments 

O Increase storage by 0.05 
inch (2,934 acre-feet) 

5 miles of channel 
restoration 

Targeted Implementation 

Lon -Term Goal(s) 
O Phosphorus - 35% reduction 

in annual loading (22,343 
lbs/year) 

o Bacteria - 52% reduction in 
bacteria concentration 

o Total Nitrogen - 45% 
reduction in annual loading 
(633,436 lbs/year) 

All dams, culverts, and 
bridges allow for fish 
passage 
Restore all degraded 
channel beds 

o Restore all degraded 
channel beds 

Reduce sediment by 25% or 
about 12,834 tons/year to 
reduce stressors on 
biological impairments 

O Increase storage by 0.39 
inch (22,880 acre-feet) 

Compare and reassess 
aquatic habitat based on 
MPCA's updated WRAPS 

To successfully implement the CWMP, a series of action tables were developed that outline actions that 

can be taken to address specific issues in the watershed, to the planning region scale. These action 

tables outline where and when the actions should be targeted, how they will be measured, and the 

costs of implementation. These tables can be found in Section E of the CWMP. There are seven 

implementation programs, as outlined in Figure A.3. 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Programs 

G. Plan 
Administration and A-10 

Coordination 



A. Executive 
Summary 

Figure A.3. Implementation Programs for 
implementing the targeted actions described 
in this plan section. These programs are full 
described in Section F. Plan Implementation 
Programs. 

I - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -,- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . 
Capital Improvements Education and Outreach 

5-.@ o More than S 1 ook for 

-- one project, or 
o Design lifespan is 

more than 25 years 

o Demonstration plots 
o Field days 
o Educational Events 

_____ _ ___ _ ______ _ __ J _ ______ _ ______ _ ___ _ _ 

I 
Research and Monitoring 

ml o Wat~r q~ality/quantity 1 

~ monitoring 
o Close data gaps 

Regulatory 

~ o E.g., WCA, feedlots, 
~ regulatory table, etc. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - _,_ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Administration and Technical 

~ o L::~~::~:ty 
contribution, capactity 
grants, SWCD aid, and 
conservation delivery 
(staffing resources). 
Local levies. Can include 
carve outs for staffing. 
Site inspections (RIM) 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

Operations and 
Maintenance 

o Maintain and operate 
capital projects 

o Repair, maintain, and 
improve drainage 
systems 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Programs 

G. Plan 
Administration and A-11 

Coordination 



A. Executive 
Summary 

The plan will be implemented to the degree that funding is acquired over the course of the 10-year 

implementation period. The pace and process of implementation will be decided by local groups. There 

are three funding levels for the CWMP, described in Table A.4. The Partnership expects to implement at 

a Funding Level 2 and costs were developed in Table A.5 with this as the assumed level of funding. 

Table A.4. Funding Levels for the Lac qui Parle-Yellow Bank Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 

Funding Level Name DescriP-tion I 
This level is based largely upon existing local 

1 Current Funding funding sources. It assumes that this funding 
will continue during plan implementation. 
This level assumes current funding continues 

2 Current Funding+ WBIF 
with the addition of an additional $625,000 
per biennium (or $312,500/year) from 
WBIF. 
This plan includes targeted actions that exceed 
the resources identified in funding levels 1 and 

3 Added Resources 
2. Funding level 3 acknowledges that resources 
beyond current funding and WBIF will be 
needed to achieve the targeted progress 
towards measurable goals. 

Table A.5. Estimated cost of implementing the Lac qui Parle-Yellow Bank CWMP under Funding Level 2 (Current Funding+ 
WBIF) 

Implementation Programs 

Projects and Practices 

Capital Improvement Projects 

Data Collection and Monitoring 

Outreach 
Regulatory 

Operations and Maintenance 

Administration and Technical 

B. Land and Water 
Resource Narrative 

C. Priority Issues 
and Resources 

Total 

D. Measurable 
Goals 

Funding Level 2 

Current+ WBIF 

Est. Annual Cost 

$465,600 -- $4,656,000 
NA NA 

$6,080 --- $60,800 

$28,174 --- $281,739 

$84,234 --- $842,335 

$15,840 $158,400 

$359,374 
$954,801 

E. Targeted 
Implementation 

Schedule 

$3,593,738 

$9,548,012 

F. Plan 
Implementation 

Programs 

G. Plan 
Administration and A-12 

Coordination 



Updated 2/13/2020 www.bwsr.state.mn.us  1 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Lower Minnesota River West Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 

Meeting Date: March 22, 2023  

Agenda Category: ☒ Committee Recommendation ☐ New Business ☐ Old Business 
Item Type: ☒ Decision ☐ Discussion ☐ Information 
Keywords for Electronic 
Searchability: 1W1P, Sibley, Nicollet, Mcleod, Water Plan 

Section/Region: Southern Region 
Contact: Ed Lenz 
Prepared by: Jeremy Maul 
Reviewed by: Southern Regional Committee(s) 
Presented by: Ted Winter, Jeremy Maul, Ed Lenz 
Time requested: 15 Minutes 

☐  Audio/Visual Equipment Needed for Agenda Item Presentation 

Attachments: ☐ Resolution ☒ Order ☒ Map ☐ Other Supporting Information 

Fiscal/Policy Impact 
☒ None ☐ General Fund Budget 
☐ Amended Policy Requested ☐ Capital Budget 
☐ New Policy Requested ☐ Outdoor Heritage Fund Budget 
☐ Other:  ☐ Clean Water Fund Budget 

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 

Approval of the Lower Minnesota River West Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan as recommended by 
the Southern Regional Committee. 

LINKS TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

https://www.sibleyswcd.org/documents 

SUMMARY (Consider:  history, reason for consideration now, alternatives evaluated, basis for recommendation) 

The Lower Minnesota River West was selected by BWSR for a One Watershed, One Plan Planning Grant in August 
of 2019. The Partnership established a Memorandum of Agreement in the spring of 2020 for the purposes of 
watershed planning. Planning was initiated on June 6, 2020 via notification to designated Plan review authorities. 
The Partnership has followed One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures and the Policy Committee, 
Technical Advisory Committee, and Planning Work Group members have attended regularly scheduled meetings 
and kept open communication throughout Plan development. The Partnership submitted the Lower Minnesota 

https://www.sibleyswcd.org/documents


River West Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) to BWSR on December 28, 2022 for review and 
approval. The Southern Regional Committee (Committee) met on March 13, 2023 to review the planning process, 
the content of the Plan, State agency comments on the Plan, and to make a recommendation for approval. The 
Committee recommends approval by the full Board. 

 



 

Page 1 of 5 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55155 

 
 

In the Matter of the review of the 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
for the Lower Minnesota River West (LMRW) 
Planning Partnership, pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 and 
103B.801.  

ORDER 
APPROVING 

COMPREHENSIVE 
WATERSHED 

MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 
Whereas, the Policy Committee of the Lower Minnesota River West (LMRW) Planning Partnership 
submitted a Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) to the Minnesota Board of Water and 
Soil Resources (Board) on December 28, 2022 pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, 
Subdivision 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14, and; 
 
Whereas, the Board has completed its review of the Plan; 
 
Now Therefore, the Board hereby makes the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions, and Order: 
 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1. Partnership Establishment. The Partnership was established in the spring of 2020 through adoption 

of a Memorandum of Agreement for the purposes of developing a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan. The membership of the Partnership includes the counties of Sibley, Nicollet, and 
McLeod by and through their respective County Board of Commissioners; the Sibley, Nicollet and 
McLeod Soil and Water Conservation Districts, by and through their respective Soil and Water 
Conservation District Board of Supervisors; and the High Island Watershed District, by and through its 
Board of Managers. 
 

2. Authority to Plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 allows the Board to adopt 
resolutions, policies or orders that allow a comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or 
watershed management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 
103B, 103C, or 103D to serve as substitutes for one another or be replaced with a comprehensive 
watershed management plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.801 established the Comprehensive 
Watershed Management Planning Program; also known as One Watershed, One Plan (1W1P). And, 
Board Resolution #18-14 adopted the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures and Resolution 
#19-41 the Plan Content Requirements policies. 

 
3. Nature of the Watershed. The Lower Minnesota River West planning area includes the portion of the 

Lower Minnesota River 8-digit HUC watershed (07020012) west of the Minnesota River. Initial One 
Watershed, One Plan conversations included the entire Lower Minnesota River 8-digit HUC watershed 
as a single planning area. Ultimately, the planning area was split into an east and west portion divided 



 

Page 2 of 5 

by the Minnesota River and along the Sibley County-Carver County line in the northeast portion of the 
planning area. The Lower Minnesota River West planning area covers 498,000 acres (778 square miles) 
and includes portions of four counties. A small portion of Renville County is included in the planning 
area although Renville County and SWCD are not members of the Partnership. The planning area 
includes primarily agricultural land use as well as areas of pastureland, and forested areas near the 
Minnesota River. While development of the planning area has altered the natural landscape, it has 
also made possible the significant agricultural productivity that supports the local and regional 
economy. Urban development within the watershed is very limited, with smaller towns located 
throughout the planning area (see Table ES-1). The terrain of the Lower Minnesota River West 
watershed includes gently rolling terrain in the western and central portions of the watershed 
transitioning to hills, bluffs, and ravines in the far eastern portion of the watershed adjacent to the 
Minnesota River. The Minnesota River flows from south to north along the eastern boundary of the 
planning area. Major hydrologic features include High Island Creek and Rush River (including its North 
Branch, Middle Branch, and South Branch), which generally flow from west to east across the planning 
area before discharging to the Minnesota River. In the northeast, Silver Creek and Bevens Creek flow 
north out of the planning area into Carver County. 

 
4. Plan Development.  The Partnership initiated the Plan development process for the One Watershed, 

One Plan on July 6, 2020, by notifying the designated state Plan review agencies, local government 
units, and other identified stakeholders that it was starting the planning process and soliciting each 
Plan review agency’s priority issues, summaries of relevant water management goals, and water 
resource information. The Lower Minnesota River West (LMRW) Planning Partnership was unable to 
conduct a public kick off meeting due to the Covid-19 pandemic.  Instead, they developed a detailed 
survey to gather input from residents in the planning area.  Approximately 2,500 surveys were sent 
out to residents with a total of 273 being returned.  This input was The Steering Team grouped specific 
issues identified through data aggregation and stakeholder input into eight broad issue categories and 
drafted brief issue statements to characterize each category. The draft issue statements were later 
revised by the Steering Team based on input from the Advisory Group and Policy Committee. The 
planning group used a combination of subwatershed scale and field scale targeting to identify priority 
areas in which to address the identified issues. In developing measurable goals, the Partners 
considered a range of available information, including existing management plans, studies, reports, 
data and information, Lower Minnesota River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy 
(WRAPS) report and associated scenario modeling, Lower Minnesota River Total Maximum Daily Load 
(Part I), Lower Minnesota River Groundwater Restoration and Protection Strategy (GRAPS) report, and 
input received from stakeholder engagement.  Generally, goals were first developed at a qualitative 
level and refined to include quantifiable elements where supported by available data and tools. In 
situations where existing data is not sufficient to develop a quantitative goal, the goals focus on 
collecting and interpreting information to support developing more quantitative future goals. 
Measurable outputs for each goal were selected appropriate to the level of quantification. Emphasis 
was given to goals that address Level 1 priority issues, although goals were developed to address all 
eight priority issue areas. Pollutant reduction goals associated with the “degraded surface water 
quality” issue are subdivided by pollutant of concern and according to major planning watershed.  The 
reduction estimates from the targeted implementation schedule, along with the measurable goals 
established for the watershed, provided an estimated pace of progress that can be expected through 
the ten-year planning period. Implementation categories and initiatives were then detailed to identify 
where funds will be utilized to accomplish the strategies and actions from the targeted 
implementation schedule. The draft Plan was approved by the Policy Committee and then distributed 
to individuals, communities, Plan Review Authorities, and other stakeholders a 60-day review process 



 

Page 3 of 5 

that ended on September 28, 2022. Written comments were received, considered, and responded to 
by the Partnership and approved by the Policy Committee. The Policy Committee held public hearings 
in Gaylord on November 10, 2022.  No additional comments were brought forth by the public. The 
final draft Plan and all required materials were submitted and officially received by the Board on 
December 28, 2022.    

5. Plan Review. On December 28, 2022, the Board received the Plan, a record of the public hearing, and 
copies of all written comments pertaining to the Plan for final State review pursuant to Board #18-14.   
State agency representatives attended and provided input at advisory committee meetings during 
development of the Plan.  The following state review comments were received during the comment 
period. 

A. Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA):  No comments were received. 

B. Minnesota Department of Health (MDH):  MDH provided input throughout the planning process 
and participated in Advisory Committee meetings. During the 60-day review period, MDH provided 
comment requesting the GRAPS report be added in the list of available documents.  MDH 
confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final formal review and stated they had no additional 
comments; recommends approval.  

C. Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR):  DNR provided input throughout the planning 
process and participated in Advisory Committee meetings. While the 60-day review period was 
underway, DNR provided many comments and most comments resulted in a change to the Plan. 
DNR confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final formal review. They were satisfied with the 
responses to issues raised during review and recommended that MN BWSR approve the plan. DNR 
recommends MN BWSR’s approval of the Plan. 

D. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA):  MPCA provided input throughout the planning 
process and participated in Advisory Committee meetings. MPCA confirmed receipt of the Plan at 
the final formal review.  MPCA stated they have no comments as part of the official 90-day Review 
and Comment Period and recommend it for approval. MPCA recommends MN BWSR’s approval of 
the Plan. 

E. Minnesota Environmental Quality Board:  No comments were received.   

F. Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources regional staff: BWSR staff provided early input to 
the planning process, participated in the Advisory Committee meetings, and provided assistance 
to the Planning Work Group during the Plan development process. During the 60-day review, 
BWSR staff provided comments on the implementation schedule and measurable goals.  
Specifically, that there was language in many of the goals that was ambiguous as it established the 
goals to be “up to” a given. These comments were adopted in the final draft of the plan. BWSR 
staff recommends approval of the plan. 

6. Plan Summary and Highlights. The highlights of the Plan include: 
• The Plan includes an informative Executive Summary summarizing resource concerns and issues, 

the method of establishing measurable goals, summarizing pace of progress toward goals attained 
by the planned activities, and short-term cost of the 10-year implementation schedule. 

• The Plan includes a thorough identification of the targeted areas through the use of HSPF, has 
estimated feasible areas and reductions for management practices and structural BMPs, as well as 
the associated annual costs and anticipated benefits arising from implementation. The result is a 
list of the best (most cost-effective and most effective toward load reduction goals) structural 
practices in the priority areas of the plan. 



 

Page 4 of 5 

• Level 1 priorities include Degraded Surface Water Quality, Excessive Erosion and Sedimentation, 
Altered Hydrology and Excessive Flooding.  Level 2 Priorities include Protecting Groundwater and 
Drinking Water and Degraded Soil Health. Level 3 Priorities include Threatened Groundwater 
Supply and Treats to Fish and Wildlife Habitat. 

• Due to the pandemic, this planning group could not hold a traditional kick off meeting to gather 
local input, so they were forced to try to send out surveys to approximately 2,500 residents in the 
watershed.  They had an excellent response rate as 273 surveys were returned.  They should be 
commended for out-of-the-box thinking and the outreach conducted to get this amount of local 
input.  The most frequent concerns identified in the survey were water quality degradation, too 
much agricultural tiling, excessive erosion, and flooding. 

• Implementation schedules for structural and management practices are developed for each of the 
priority issues, targeting priority planning areas in the Plan. 

• An estimated $17,422,000 is needed to fully fund the Plan over its ten-year lifespan, a figure which 
does not factor Watershed-Based Implementation Funds (WBIF) but is assumed in the Plan in the 
state funding source description. 

7. South Regional Committee.  On March 13, 2023, the Southern Regional Committee met to review and 
discuss the Plan.  Those in attendance from the Board’s Committee were Eunice Biel, Jeffrey Berg, 
Heather Johnson, Kelly Kirkpatrick, Mark Wettlaufer on behalf of Steve Robertson, Scott Roemhildt, 
and Ted Winter.  Board staff in attendance were Southern Regional Manager Ed Lenz, and Board 
Conservationist Jeremy Maul.  The representatives from the Partnership were Greg Williams, Barr 
Engineering; Jack Bushman and Joel Wurscher, Sibley SWCD; Coleton Draeger, McLeod SWCD; Marie 
Dranttel, Nicollet County Board of Commissioners. Board regional staff provided its recommendation 
of Plan approval to the Committee.  After discussion, the Committee’s decision was to present a 
recommendation of approval of the Plan to the full Board. 

 
8. This Plan will be in effect for a ten-year period until March 24, 2033. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 
1. All relevant substantive and procedural requirements of law have been fulfilled.   

2. The Board has proper jurisdiction in the matter of approving a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan for the Lower Minnesota River West Watershed Partnership pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14. 

3. The Lower Minnesota River West Watershed Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan attached 
to this Order states water and water-related problems within the planning area; priority resource 
issues and possible solutions thereto; goals, objectives, and actions of the Partnership; and an 
implementation program.   

4. The attached Plan is in conformance with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes Section 103B.101, 
Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #19-41. 

5. The attached Plan when adopted through local resolution by the members of the Partnership will 
serve as a replacement for the comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or watershed 
management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 103B, 
103C, or 103D, but only to the geographic area of the Plan and consistent with the One Watershed, 
One Plan Suggested Boundary Map. 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 
 

ORDER 
 
The Board hereby approves the attached Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan of the Lower 
Minnesota River West (LMRW) Planning Partnership, dated ver 2. February 2023.  
 
 
Dated at St. Paul, Minnesota, this 22nd of March, 2023. 
 
MINNESOTA BOARD OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES 
 
 

     
BY:   Gerald Van Amburg, Chair  



 

 

Bemidji Brainerd Detroit Lakes Duluth Mankato Marshall Rochester St Cloud 

403 Fourth Street NW 1601 Minnesota Drive 26624 N. Tower Road 394 S. Lake Avenue 11 Civic Center Plaza 1400 East Lyon Street 3555 9th Street NW 110 Second St. South 
Suite 200 Brainerd, MN 56401 Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 Suite 403 Suite 300 Marshall, MN 56258 Suite 350 Suite 307 
Bemidji, MN 56601 (218) 203-4470 (218) 846-8400 Duluth, MN 55802 Mankato, MN 56001 (507) 537-6060 Rochester, MN 55901 Waite Park, MN 56387 
(218) 755-2600   (218) 723-4752 (507) 344-2826  (507) 206-2889  
        

Central Office / Metro Office 520 Lafayette Road North Saint Paul, MN 55155 Phone: (651) 296-3767  Fax: (651) 297-5615 

www.bwsr.state.mn.us          TTY:  (800) 627-3529          An equal opportunity employer 
 

March 22, 2023 
 
Lower Minnesota River-West 1W1P Planning Partnership 
c/o Jack Bushman 
112 5th St., Box 161,  
Gaylord MN 55334 

RE:  Approval of the LMW Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
 
Dear LMW Partnership: 
 
The Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) is pleased to inform you the Lower Minnesota River-
West Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) was approved at its regular meeting held on March 
22, 2023.  Attached is the signed Board Order that documents approval of the Plan and indicates the Plan meets 
all relevant requirements of law, rule, and policy.   
 
This Plan is effective for a ten-year period until March 22, 2033. Please be advised, the partners must adopt and 
begin implementing the plan within 120 days of the date of the Order in accordance with Minnesota Statutes 
§103B.101, Subd. 14, and the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures.   
 
The members of the partnership and participants in the plan development process are to be commended for 
writing a plan that clearly presents water management goals, actions, and priorities of the Partnership. The 
BWSR looks forward to working with you as you implement this Plan and document its outcomes. 
 
Please contact Board Conservationist Adam Beilke of our staff at 507-766-9819 or Jeremy.maul@state.mn.us for 
further assistance in this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Gerald Van Amburg, Chair 
Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
 
Enclosure:  BWSR Board Order 
 
CC: Dawn Bernau, MDA (via email) Margaret Wagner, MDA (via email) 
 Scott Hanson, MDH (via email) Carrie Raber, MDH (via email) 
 Dan Lais, DNR (via email) Jeff Weiss, DNR (via email) 
 Barbara Weisman, DNR (via email) Courtney Ahlers, EQB (via email) 
 Ed Lenz, BWSR (via email) Adam Beilke, BWSR (via email) 
 Shaina Keseley, BWSR (via email) Julie Westerlund, BWSR (via email) 
 Rachel Mueller, BWSR (file copy) 

Equal Opportunity Employer 

mailto:Jeremy.maul@state.mn.us


SandLake

SilverLake

Kujas Lake

Rice Lake

IndianLake

HahnLake

TitlowLake

ErinLake

Beatty Lake

ClearLake

SchauerLake

AltnowLake

WardLake

High IslandLake

Bucks Lake
Horseshoe Lake

FaddenLake

BakersLake
WashingtonLake

KingsLake Curran LakeSeveranceLake

RoundGrove
Lake

Be
ve

ns
Creek

High Islan d Creek

High IslandDitch

County D itch 59

RushR ive r, South Branch

County Ditch 50

Ba k er'sLake Creek

Rush Ri ver

Titlow Lake CreekRush River, M iddle Branch

Rush River

High Island Creek

Barney Fry Creek

STEWART

GAYLORD

GLENCOE

SLEEPY
EYE

LE
CENTER

NEW ULM

HENDERSON
FAIRFAX GIBBON

GREEN ISLE

CLEVELAND

NEW AUBURN

NORWOOD
YOUNG

AMERICA

ARLINGTON BELLE

BUFFALO
LAKE

PLATO

LAFAYETTE

BROWNTON HAMBURG

HECTOR

SAINT
PETER

COLOGNE

WINTHROP

LE SUEUR

M i n
n e s o t a R i v e r

M i n n e s o t a
R i v e r

MCLEOD COUNTY

CARVER COUNTY

RENVILLE
COUNTY

SIBLEY COUNTY

BROWN COUNTY

NICOLLET COUNTY

SCOTT COUNTY

LE SUEUR
COUNTY

93

68

99

284

19

25

15

22

4

5

111

£¤212

£¤14

£¤169

Ba
rr 

Fo
ote

r: A
rcG

IS 
10

.8.
1, 

20
22

-0
6-

01
 15

:07
 Fi

le:
 I:\

Pro
jec

ts\
23

\7
2\1

01
4\M

ap
s\R

ep
or

ts\
Fig

1-
1 L

ow
er 

M
inn

es
ota

 Ri
ve

r W
es

t P
lan

nin
g A

rea
.m

xd
 U

se
r: c

ml
3

LOWER MINNESOTA
RIVER WEST

PLANNING AREA
Lower Minnesota River West
Comprehensive Watershed

Management Plan
FIGURE 1-1

0 3.5

Miles

!;N

Planning Area

County Boundary

Municipal Boundary

Public Waters Basin

Public Watercourse

Source: Minnesota Department
of Natural Resources, Public
Waters (PW) Basin and
Watercourse Delineation



ES-1 

Executive Summary 
The Lower Minnesota River West Partnership (Partnership) is a group of the Counties and Soil and Water 
Conservation Districts (SWCDs) of McLeod, Nicollet, and Sibley, and High Island Creek Watershed District. 
The Partnership covers an area north and west of the Minnesota River herein referred to as the “Lower 
Minnesota River West watershed” or “planning area.” The Partnership was formed to develop a 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) through the One Watershed, One Plan (1W1P) 
program detailed in Minnesota Statutes 103B.801. Through the 1W1P program, the local governments 
(Partners) prepared this document to guide cooperative water and natural resource management actions 
over the next 10 years.  

Introduction 
This Plan outlines a cooperative and coordinated strategy by which the Partners will work together to 
protect, maintain, and restore the water and natural resources within the planning area. Through 
prioritized and targeted actions, the Partners will make progress towards measurable, common goals. This 
Plan provides a framework for the Partners to operate as a local, coordinated partnership while effectively 
leveraging the resources of local governments (i.e., the Partners) and supporting organizations (e.g., State 
and Federal agencies). The Plan is a local plan emphasizing the interests of local water managers, policy 
makers, and affected stakeholders consulted during Plan development (see Section 1.5). The Plan was 
developed through the efforts of: 

• Steering Team – comprised of technical staff of the Partner organizations
• Advisory Group – including staff from state and local cooperators and invited stakeholders
• Policy Committee – comprised of elected officials representing the Partner organizations

This Plan will be executed through a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) between the Partners (see 
Appendix D). The JPA recognizes the importance of partnerships to implement watershed protection and 
restoration efforts for the planning area on a cooperative and collaborative basis pursuant to the authority 
contained in Minnesota Statutes Section 471.59.   

Planning Boundary and Subwatersheds 
The Lower Minnesota River West planning area includes the portion of the Lower Minnesota River 8-digit 
HUC watershed (07020012) west of the Minnesota River. Initial 1W1P conversations included the entire 
Lower Minnesota River 8-digit HUC watershed as a single planning area. Ultimately, the planning area was 
split into an east and west portion divided by the Minnesota River and along the Sibley County-Carver 
County line in the northeast portion of the planning area.  

The Lower Minnesota River West planning area covers 498,000 acres (778 square miles) and includes 
portions of four counties (see inset figure). A small portion of Renville County is included in the planning 
area although Renville County and SCWD are not members of the Partnership. The planning area was 
subdivided into six major subwatersheds at approximately the 10-digit HUC level for planning purposes 
(see Section A.1 and Figure A-1). The Lower Minnesota River West planning area is shown in Figure 1-1. 

December 2022 DRAFT



 

 

 
 ES-2  

 

The planning area includes primarily agricultural 
land use as well as areas of pastureland, and 
forested areas near the Minnesota River. While 
development of the planning area has altered the 
natural landscape, it has also made possible the 
significant agricultural productivity that supports 
the local and regional economy. Urban 
development within the watershed is very limited, 
with smaller towns located throughout the 
planning area (see Table ES-1). The terrain of the 
Lower Minnesota River West watershed includes 
gently rolling terrain in the western and central 
portions of the watershed transitioning to hills, 
bluffs, and ravines in the far eastern portion of 
the watershed adjacent to the Minnesota River. 
The Minnesota River flows from south to north along the eastern boundary of the planning area. Major 
hydrologic features include High Island Creek and Rush River (including its North Branch, Middle Branch, 
and South Branch), which generally flow from west to east across the planning area before discharging to 
the Minnesota River. In the northeast, Silver Creek and Bevens Creek flow north out of the planning area 
into Carver County.  

Additional information about the physical and environmental characteristics of the planning area are 
presented in Appendix A. 

McLeod
9%

Nicollet
18%

Renville
3%

Sibley
70%

Figure ES-1 Planning Area by County 

 

 

December 2022 DRAFT



 

 

 
 ES-3  

 

Table ES-1 Summary of Land Use/Land Cover within the Planning Area 

Land Cover Square Miles % of Total Area 

Barren Land 0.74 0.09% 

Cultivated Crops 657.30 84.40% 

Deciduous Forest 33.72 4.33% 

Developed, High Intensity 0.54 0.07% 

Developed, Low Intensity 8.29 1.06% 

Developed, Medium Intensity 2.32 0.30% 

Developed, Open Space 21.30 2.74% 

Emergent Herbaceous Wetlands 22.57 2.90% 

Evergreen Forest 0.04 0.01% 

Hay/Pasture 11.43 1.47% 

Herbaceous (grassland) 0.73 0.09% 

Mixed Forest 0.79 0.10% 

Open Water 12.49 1.60% 

Shrub/Scrub 0.42 0.05% 

Woody Wetlands 6.06 0.78% 

Total 778.75 100% 

Source: Minnesota Land Cover Classification Dataset (MLCCD) 

Issue and Resource Prioritization 
Section 2 of the Plan summarizes the issue identification and prioritization process used by the Partners 
and documents the resulting issue priorities. The Partnership implemented an iterative process to identify 
and prioritize watershed issues with consideration of existing data and input from the Advisory Group, 
Steering Team, Policy Committee, and public (via stakeholder engagement efforts). 

The Partners ultimately established a three-tiered issue prioritization, with four major issues categorized 
as Level 1 (top priority), two major issues categorized as Level 2 (medium priority), and two major issues 
categorized as Level 3 (lower priority) (see inset figure). The partners placed emphasis for implementation 
on Level 1 issues, although many of these activities have direct or indirect benefits for Level 2 and Level 3 
issues. Measurable goals (see Section 3) were established for all levels of priority issues.  

December 2022 DRAFT



ES-4 

Section 2 also details the delineation of priority areas for focusing implementation activities related to 
priority issues of degraded surface water and altered hydrology and drainage. This process used existing 
geospatial data, modeling results, and watershed assessments. Priority implementation areas for 
addressing degraded surface water quality and altered hydrology and drainage are presented in 
Figure 2-8 and Figure 2-9. 

Measurable Goals 
Section 3 describes the development of measurable goals. The Partners considered a range of available 
information, including: 

• Existing management plans, studies, reports, data and information, including:
o County Water Management Plans
o Lower Minnesota River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) report

and associated scenario modeling
o Lower Minnesota River Total Maximum Daily Load (Part I)
o Lower Minnesota River Groundwater Restoration and Protection Strategy (GRAPS) report

• Input received from stakeholder engagement (see Section 2.1 and Appendix C)
• Input from the Steering Team
• Input from Advisory Group members
• Input from Policy Committee members

Generally, goals were developed first at a qualitative level (“what types of things would we like to 
achieve?”) and refined to include quantifiable elements (“how much can we achieve?”) where supported 
by available data and tools. In situations where existing data is not sufficient to develop a quantitative 
goal, the goals focus on collecting and interpreting information to support developing more quantitative 

Le
ve

l 3Le
ve

l 2

Le
ve

l 1

Degraded 
Surface Water 
Quality

Excessive 
erosion and 
sedimentation

Altered 
Hydrology and 
Drainage

Excessive 
Flooding

Degraded Soil 
Health

Protecting 
Groundwater 
and Drinking 
Water Quality

Threatened 
Groundwater 
Supply

Threats to Fish 
and Wildlife 
Habitat

Figure ES- 2 Issue Priority Levels 

December 2022 DRAFT



 

 

 
 ES-5  

 

future goals. Measurable outputs for each goal were selected appropriate to the level of quantification. 
Emphasis was given to goals that address Level 1 priority issues, although goals were developed to 
address all eight priority issue areas.  

The Plan goals are divided into long-term (i.e., desired future condition) and short-term (i.e., 10-year, or 
Plan goals) goals. Long-term goals may not be achievable within the 10-year life of the Plan. 10-year goals 
are presented as reasonable progression towards the desired future condition. Specific 10-year pollutant 
reduction goals were estimated using HSPF-SAM. 

A complete list of measurable goals developed by the Partners are presented in Table 3-2 and Table 3-3. 

Targeting of Projects and Practices 
The Partners used digital terrain analysis to identify potential locations to implement best management 
practices (BMPs) to address excessive erosion and sedimentation and surface water quality degradation 
issues. Potential BMPs include grade stabilization, increased runoff/flood storage, cover crops, and others. 
Potential project locations were identified throughout the planning area, regardless of subwatershed 
priority level. Sites identified via terrain analysis were supplemented with existing databases of drainage 
and/or erosion issues (see Figure 4-1). The Partners used existing HSPF-SAM models to estimate pollutant 
reductions anticipated from implementing projects at these locations in addition to other implementation 
activities (see Section 4.2). 

Priority areas for addressing degraded surface water quality and altered hydrology and drainage issues 
(presented in Figure 2-8 and Figure 2-9), will be used to target projects, studies, and education efforts to 
achieve applicable goals and evaluate multi-benefit practices. Some activities are targeted to more 
specific geographies applicable to the specific need or outcome (e.g., groundwater-related activities 
targeting drinking water supply management areas, or DWSMAs). 

Implementation  
The Plan includes a targeted and measurable implementation schedule that outlines the projects, 
programs, and other activities the Partners will implement over the next 10 years (see Section 5 and 
Table 5-4). The Partners established the implementation schedule with input from the Advisory Group 
(which represents many of the entities identified as cooperators in Table 5-4).  

The implementation schedule provides sufficient direction and measurable outcomes while maintaining 
flexibility to adapt to developing opportunities. The targeted implementation schedule includes a range of 
strategies and tools, including cost-share projects, education programs, and new and expanded programs 
necessary to achieve the goals of the Plan. 

The Plan implementation schedule is presented in Table 5-4. The activities included in the implementation 
program are intended to leverage the existing roles, capacities, and expertise of the Partners while 
providing a framework for the Partners to perform expanded roles. The activities and projects described in 

December 2022 DRAFT



ES-6 

this Plan will be implemented through existing, new, and expanded programs of the Partners. Programs 
and activities may be adjusted based on the associated funding source. 

Activities included in Table 5-4 are assigned to the following categories: 

• Administration of the Partnership
• Projects and project support
• Monitoring and studies
• Education and public involvement
• Regulatory oversight

The proposed timeframe, estimated cost (local and non-local contributions), measurable outputs, and 
lead and cooperating entities are identified for each implementation activity. Estimates of costs, 
measurable outputs, and timeframes were developed based on a combination of HSPF-SAM model runs 
and documentation, Partner estimates of local capacity, and consideration of future BWSR Watershed 
Based Implementation Funding (WBIF). The current implementation schedule (Table 5-4) was derived from 
iteration with the Partners. The Partners may revise the implementation schedule, if needed, following the 
amendment procedure described in Section 5.5.  

Implementation Costs 
The implementation schedule includes planning level cost estimates for individual activities. Planning level 
costs are split between local funding sources and external funding sources. Local funding sources include 
funding borne by the Partners, while external funding sources include all other funding sources (e.g., cost-
share with non-Partner entities, State grants). Costs are subtotaled by category and funding source as 
presented in Table ES-2 and Figure ES- 3. 

This Plan includes an ambitious implementation schedule. Total estimated annual costs (approximately 
$1.7M) exceed current local funding allocated to existing and similar programs within the planning area. 
Thus, additional funding provided from WBIF, other State funds, Federal funding, and/or private funding 
sources will be necessary to accomplish Plan goals.  

December 2022 DRAFT



ES-7 

Table ES-2 Summary of Estimated Plan Funding 

Type of Activity 
Partner Local 

Funds 

Estimated 
Landowner 

Contribution 

Watershed 
Based 

Implementation 
Funds (WBIF) 

Other state/ 
federal 
funding 
sources 

Total 

Partnership Administration $350,000 -- $300,000 -- $650,000 

Project and Project Support $6,122,000 $650,000 $2,590,000 $5,883,000 $15,245,000 

Studies and Monitoring $775,000 -- -- $150,000 $925,000 

Education and Outreach $355,000 -- $110,000 $107,000 $572,000 

Regulatory Review/ 
Oversight $30,000 -- -- -- $30,000 

Total $7,632,000 $650,000 $3,000,000 $6,140,000 $17,422,000 

Figure ES- 3 Estimated Plan Implementation Costs 

Additional non-governmental funding sources may be used to fund Plan implementation. The Partners 
will coordinate with non-governmental organizations to explore potential cost-share opportunities 

December 2022 DRAFT



 

 

 
 ES-8  

 

surrounding shared goals. The Partners will seek additional partnerships with private sector businesses as 
such opportunities arise. Future opportunities may include working with agri-business on incentives that 
provide opportunity for water resources improvements. Incentives may not be implemented through the 
Partnership but are instigated through Partnership actions.  

Additional information about Plan costs and funding sources is included in Section 5.3. 

Implementation Roles and Responsibilities 
The Partners will implement this Plan according to the governance structure established in the 
implementation Joint Powers Agreement (JPA, see Appendix D). The JPA does not create a new entity. 
Instead, the JPA is a formal and outward commitment to work together as a partnership and specifies 
mutually accepted expectations and guidelines between partners. Per the JPA, the Partners will establish 
committees to carry out the coordinated implementation of this Plan. During implementation, the Plan 
will be executed through the coordinated effort of the following committees: 

• Policy Advisory Committee 
• Technical Advisory Committee 
• Local Implementation Work Group 

These groups are described in greater detail in Section 5.4. The Local Implementation Work Group will 
perform the annual work planning, which will be based on prioritized implementation activities, the 
availability of funds, and the roles and responsibilities for implementation. Coordination and 
communication are critical for a partnership operating under a JPA. The Partners will continue to 
coordinate with BWSR, MDA, MDH, MDNR, and MPCA as required through State-legislated programs and 
to accomplish the many Plan activities that identify State agencies as cooperating entities. The Partners 
will also coordinate with Federal partners where appropriate, including NRCS, FSA, USACE, EPA, and 
USFWS. Similarly, continued coordination and communication with local governmental units, such as 
cities, township boards, joint powers boards, drainage authorities, and other water management 
authorities is necessary to facilitate watershed wide activities. The Partners will also collaborate with non-
governmental organizations where mutual benefit may be achieved.  

 

December 2022 DRAFT



Updated 2/13/2020 www.bwsr.state.mn.us  1 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 

Meeting Date: March 22, 2023  

Agenda Category: ☒ Committee Recommendation ☐ New Business ☐ Old Business 
Item Type: ☒ Decision ☐ Discussion ☐ Information 
Keywords for Electronic 
Searchability: WinLac; Winona; La Crescent; Whitewater; Karst 

Section/Region: Southern Region 
Contact: Ed Lenz 
Prepared by: Adam Beilke 
Reviewed by: Southern Regional Committee(s) 
Presented by: Ted Winter, Adam Beilke 
Time requested: 15 minutes 

☐  Audio/Visual Equipment Needed for Agenda Item Presentation 

Attachments: ☐ Resolution ☒ Order ☒ Map ☒ Other Supporting Information 

Fiscal/Policy Impact 
☒ None ☐ General Fund Budget 
☐ Amended Policy Requested ☐ Capital Budget 
☐ New Policy Requested ☐ Outdoor Heritage Fund Budget 
☐ Other:  ☐ Clean Water Fund Budget 

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
Approval of the Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent (WinLaC) Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan as 
recommended by the Southern Regional Committee. 

LINKS TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Plan is on the WinLaC website: 
• Plan Weblink: https://www.co.winona.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/3321/Final-WinLaC-

Comprehensive-Watershed-Management-Plan-2023-2033 
• Plan Appendices Weblink: https://www.co.winona.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/3322/Final-WinLaC-

Comprehensive-Watershed-Management-Plan-Appendices-2023-2033 
  

https://www.co.winona.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/3321/Final-WinLaC-Comprehensive-Watershed-Management-Plan-2023-2033
https://www.co.winona.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/3321/Final-WinLaC-Comprehensive-Watershed-Management-Plan-2023-2033
https://www.co.winona.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/3322/Final-WinLaC-Comprehensive-Watershed-Management-Plan-Appendices-2023-2033
https://www.co.winona.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/3322/Final-WinLaC-Comprehensive-Watershed-Management-Plan-Appendices-2023-2033


SUMMARY (Consider:  history, reason for consideration now, alternatives evaluated, basis for recommendation) 

The WinLaC Partnership was selected by BWSR for a One Watershed One Plan (1W1P) Planning Grant in August of 
2020. The Partnership established a Memorandum of Agreement on February 17, 2021 for the purposes of 
watershed planning. Planning was initiated on March 9, 2021 via notification to designated plan review 
authorities. The Partnership has followed 1W1P Operating Procedures and the Policy Committee, Advisory 
Committee, and Planning Work Group members have attended regularly scheduled meetings and kept open 
communication throughout Plan development. The Partnership submitted the WinLaC Plan to BWSR on March 3, 
2023 for review and approval. The Southern Regional Committee (Committee) met on March 13, 2023 to review 
the planning process, the content of the Plan, State agency comments on the Plan, and to make a 
recommendation for approval. The Committee recommends approval by the full Board. 

 



 

Page 1 of 5 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55155 

 
 

In the Matter of the review of the 
Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
for Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent, 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 
103B.101, Subdivision 14 and 103B.801.  

ORDER 
APPROVING 

COMPREHENSIVE 
WATERSHED 

MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 
Whereas, the Policy Committee of the Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent (WinLaC) Partnership 
submitted a Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan (Plan) to the Minnesota Board of Water and 
Soil Resources (Board) on March 3, 2023 pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 
14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14, and; 
 
Whereas, the Board has completed its review of the Plan; 
 
Now Therefore, the Board hereby makes the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions, and Order: 
 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1. Partnership Establishment. The Partnership was established in 2021 through adoption of a 

Memorandum of Agreement for the purposes of developing a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan. The membership of the Partnership includes:  Houston County, Root River Soil and 
Water Conservation District (SWCD), Olmsted County, Olmsted SWCD, Wabasha County, Wabasha 
SWCD, Winona County, Winona SWCD, Stockton-Rollingstone-Minnesota City Watershed District and 
the city of Winona. 
 

2. Authority to Plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.101, Subdivision 14 allows the Board to adopt 
resolutions, policies or orders that allow a comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or 
watershed management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 
103B, 103C, or 103D to serve as substitutes for one another or be replaced with a comprehensive 
watershed management plan. Minnesota Statutes, Sections 103B.801 established the Comprehensive 
Watershed Management Planning Program; also known as One Watershed, One Plan. And, Board 
Resolution #18-14 adopted the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures and Plan Content 
Requirements policies. 

 
3. Nature of the Watershed. The WinLaC watershed planning area includes the Minnesota portions of 

two major (HUC-08) watersheds, the Mississippi River – Winona and the Mississippi River – La 
Crescent. The majority of these HUC-08s are in Wisconsin, with Minnesota containing the roughly 750 
square miles that make up the WinLaC watershed planning area. Four counties are located within the 
planning area: Houston, Olmsted, Wabasha, and Winona. Located in the southeastern corner of the 
state and bordered on the east by the Mississippi River, the WinLaC watershed planning area is a 



 

Page 2 of 5 

unique landscape characterized by wooded hills, rich agriculture, karst topography, sheer river bluffs, 
and craggy limestone. The WinLaC watershed is in the driftless ecoregion and the Lower Mississippi 
River Basin. The watershed is home to an abundance of rare natural resources, including many of the 
state’s best coldwater streams for trout fishing. Current land use is predominantly agriculture lands, 
with 33% of the planning area being used for row crop production and another 15% in pasture. 
Remaining land uses include forests (32%), wetlands/open water (9%), urban areas (7%), and 
shrublands (3%). The WinLaC watershed is transected by multiple rivers, each generally flowing west 
to east until they empty into the Mississippi River. The Whitewater River is the largest river, draining 
a sizable portion of the northern part of the watershed.

 
4. Plan Development.  The Plan was developed as a single, concise, and coordinated approach to 

watershed management for the purpose of guiding watershed managers as they work with 
landowners and communities to protect and restore the watershed’s resources. The Plan consolidates 
policies, programs, and implementation strategies from existing data, studies, and plans, and 
incorporates input from multiple planning partners to provide a single plan for management of the 
watershed. The Plan focuses on prioritized, targeted, and measurable implementation efforts and lays 
out specific goals and actions to improve surface water quality and quantity, groundwater quality and 
quantity including public and private water supplies, improve soil health, and mitigate negative 
impacts that may result from current land use in the watershed. 

5. Plan Review. On March 3, 2023, the Board received the Plan, a record of the public hearing, and copies 
of all written comments pertaining to the Plan for final State review pursuant to Board #18-14. State 
agency representatives attended and provided input at advisory committee meetings during 
development of the Plan.  The following state review comments were received during the comment 
period. 

A. Environmental Quality Board indicated Policy indicates that EQB only be notified of the 
final draft document.  EQB did not respond to the submission. 

B. Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA): During the 60-day comment period, MDA 
stated that the plan sufficiently addressed the priority concerns for groundwater that were 
indicated in their initial comment letter for the plan. MDA commended the partners for 
their targeted actions focused on drinking water protection for public water suppliers and 
private wells. MDA confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final formal review and stated all 
MDA comments were effectively addressed in the final draft plan and priority concerns for 
groundwater were addressed.   

C. Minnesota Department of Health (MDH): During the 60-day comment period, MDH 
requested additional language regarding drinking water standards and human health 
impacts from nitrate and groundwater contamination. MDH also commented on the 
limitations in the application of PTMApp to layered aquifer systems as well as framing 
expectations for reaching desired future conditions due to the residence times of shallow 
and deep aquifers in the watershed along with historic land use. MDH commended the 
partners for including drinking water as a priority concern. MDH confirmed receipt of the 
Plan at the final formal review and stated they were pleased to see the changes made based 
on their recommendations. They provided no further comments or suggestions and 
recommended approval. 

D. Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR): During the 60-day comment period, 
DNR provided comments to the WinLaC partners on opportunities to work with DNR staff 
on sediment sourcing studies and stream channel projects within the implementation 



 

Page 3 of 5 

table. Additional comments included the adoption of minimal impact design standards for 
water storage, the establishment of a nitrate leaching loss goal, and the promotion of the 
MDA Runoff Risk Advisory Forecast tool. DNR commended the planning committees and 
consultants for their vision and dedication to developing the plan. DNR confirmed receipt 
of the Plan at the final formal review and recommends approval.   

E. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA): During the 60-day comment period, MPCA 
requested language be added to acknowledge the use of PTMApp as a surrogate in the 
development of a vertical leaching N reduction goal. MPCA also recommended the plan 
acknowledge the historic fish kills in the watershed and how the plan will work to reduce 
future risk if goals are achieved. Additional comments included revision to the Stream 
priority map, defining the water storage goal for capital improvement projects, and 
verifying the groundwater and surface water reduction goal values. MPCA commended the 
partners for addressing their priority concerns submitted at the beginning of the planning 
process. MPCA confirmed receipt of the Plan at the final formal review and stated that 
nearly all MPCA comments were adequately addressed. MPCA asked for further 
verification on one comment and provided new suggestions on another comment.      

F. Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR): During the 60-day review period, BWSR 
provided comments requesting several revisions to the Plan to ensure consistency 
throughout the Plan and that plan content requirements were met. All comments were 
adequately addressed in the final Plan. 

6. Plan Summary and Highlights. The highlights of the plan include: 
• The Plan includes an informative Executive Summary summarizing resource categories and issues, 

the establishment of measurable goals, and the development of the 10-year targeted 
implementation schedule. 

• The Plan includes a thorough identification of the targeted areas using available data and tools 
such as PTMApp.  PTMApp was utilized to estimate feasible locations for management practices 
and structural BMPs, as well as the associated annual costs and anticipated benefits arising from 
implementation. 

• The Plan identifies four different planning regions which are based on subwatershed (HUC-10) 
boundaries to better deal with the varying land use and topography present across the watershed. 
The ten planning regions are Whitewater, Garvin Brook, Mississippi River-La Crescent (HUC-8), and 
Small Tributaries. 

• Public involvement in the development of this plan started with a Public Open House Kickoff in the 
city of Winona in September of 2021. A survey was also created to engage with residents who were 
not able to attend the kickoff. The partnership also hosted five facilitated “Waterside Chats” in 
Stockton, La Crescent, Winona, Saint Charles, and Wabasha during March and April of 2022. Finally, 
public engagement was also provided during a We Are Water exhibit held in the city of Winona 
from March through April of 2022. 

• The plan development process generated 34 issues, organized in 4 resource categories 
(Groundwater, Surface Water, Land Use, and Habitat and Recreation) using existing reports, plans, 
studies, data, and stakeholder input. Each issue was assigned as one of three priority categories. 
Ten issues were identified as a “Priority A” issue and will be the focus of initial implementation 
efforts. Thirteen issues were identified as a “Priority B” issue and will be partially addressed 
through the lifespan of the plan. Eleven issues were identified as a “Priority C” issue and will be 
addressed by partner groups or as a secondary benefit from the higher priority issues. 

• The Plan details 16 measurable goals that collectively address the 23 Priority A and Priority B issues. 
A factsheet was developed for each of these priority issues. Each fact sheet summarizes the priority 



 

Page 4 of 5 

issues addressed with the goal, background on the priority issue(s) the goal seeks to address, the 
short-term goal and desired future conditions (long-term goal), secondary outcomes from meeting 
the goal, what work will be done, and heat maps showing priority resources and subwatersheds 
where work will be focused. 

• Included in the Appendix are a series of maps showing possible locations to implement priority 
Best Management Practices (BMPs) for each planning region These maps are to be used as a tool 
for prioritization of outreach and target implementation efforts in the planning regions. 

• The Plan recognizes three funding levels for implementation. Level 1 - Current Funding, Level 2 - 
Current Funding + BWSR’s Watershed Based Implementation Fund (WBIF) grant program, and 
Level 3 - Partner and Other Funding. Actions pursued under Funding Level 2 are the focus of the 
Plan and have an estimated annual cost of $1,345,200 or $13,452,000 over its ten-year lifespan.  

• Separate targeted implementation tables were created for each planning region that include 
actions within the Projects and Support implementation program. Watershed-wide 
implementation tables were created for actions related to the Capital Improvement Projects, 
Regulation and Local Controls, Education and Public Input, and Monitoring and Studies 
implementation programs. 

 

7. Southern Regional Committee.  On March 13, 2023, the Southern Regional Committee met to review 
and discuss the Plan. Those in attendance from the Board’s Committee were Eunice Biel, Jeff Berg, 
Heather Johnson, Kelly Kirkpatrick, Scott Roemhildt, Ted Winter, and Mark Wettlaufer. Board staff in 
attendance were Southern Regional Manager Ed Lenz and Board Conservationist Adam Beilke. The 
representatives from the Partnership were Sheila Harmes, Terri Peters, Rachel Olm, Sadie Neuman, 
Caitlin Meyer, Skip Langer, and Lynn Zabel. Board regional staff provided its recommendation of Plan 
approval to the Committee.  After discussion, the Committee’s decision was to present a 
recommendation of approval of the Plan to the full Board. 

 
8. This Plan will be in effect for a ten-year period until March 22, 2033. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 
1. All relevant substantive and procedural requirements of law have been fulfilled.   

2. The Board has proper jurisdiction in the matter of approving a Comprehensive Watershed 
Management Plan for the Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 
Sections 103B.101, Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #18-14. 

3. The WinLaC Plan attached to this Order states water and water-related problems within the planning 
area; priority resource issues and possible solutions thereto; goals, objectives, and actions of the 
Partnership; and an implementation program.   

4. The attached Plan is in conformance with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes Section 103B.101, 
Subd. 14 and 103B.801 and Board Resolution #19-41. 

5. The attached plan when adopted through local resolution by the members of the Partnership will 
serve as a replacement for the comprehensive plan, local water management plan, or watershed 
management plan, developed or amended, approved and adopted, according to Chapter 103B, 
103C, or 103D, but only to the geographic area of the Plan and consistent with the One Watershed, 
One Plan Suggested Boundary Map. 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 
 

ORDER 
 
The Board hereby approves the attached Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan of the WinLaC, 
dated March 22, 2023.  
 
 
Dated at St. Paul, Minnesota, this 22nd of March 2023. 
 
MINNESOTA BOARD OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES 
 
 

     
BY:   Gerald Van Amburg, Chair  



 

 

Bemidji Brainerd Detroit Lakes Duluth Mankato Marshall Rochester St Cloud 

403 Fourth Street NW 1601 Minnesota Drive 26624 N. Tower Road 394 S. Lake Avenue 11 Civic Center Plaza 1400 East Lyon Street 3555 9th Street NW 110 Second St. South 
Suite 200 Brainerd, MN 56401 Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 Suite 403 Suite 300 Marshall, MN 56258 Suite 350 Suite 307 
Bemidji, MN 56601 (218) 203-4470 (218) 846-8400 Duluth, MN 55802 Mankato, MN 56001 (507) 537-6060 Rochester, MN 55901 Waite Park, MN 56387 
(218) 755-2600   (218) 723-4752 (507) 344-2826  (507) 206-2889  
        

Central Office / Metro Office 520 Lafayette Road North Saint Paul, MN 55155 Phone: (651) 296-3767  Fax: (651) 297-5615 

www.bwsr.state.mn.us          TTY:  (800) 627-3529          An equal opportunity employer 
 

March 22, 2023 
 
 
Mississippi River – Winona/La Crescent Partnership 
c/o Sheila Harmes, Winona County Water Planner 
202 West Third Street 
Winona, MN 55987 
 
RE:  Approval of the WinLaC Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
 
Dear WinLaC Partnership: 
 
The Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) is pleased to inform you the WinLaC Comprehensive 
Watershed Management Plan (Plan) was approved at its regular meeting held on March 22, 2023.  Attached is 
the signed Board Order that documents approval of the Plan and indicates the Plan meets all relevant 
requirements of law, rule, and policy.   
 
This Plan is effective for a ten-year period until March 22, 2033. Please be advised, the partners must adopt and 
begin implementing the plan within 120 days of the date of the Order in accordance with Minnesota Statutes 
§103B.101, Subd. 14, and the One Watershed, One Plan Operating Procedures.   
 
The members of the partnership and participants in the plan development process are to be commended for 
writing a plan that clearly presents water management goals, actions, and priorities of the Partnership. The 
BWSR looks forward to working with you as you implement this Plan and document its outcomes. 
 
Please contact Board Conservationist Adam Beilke of our staff at 507-766-9820 or adam.beilke@state.mn.us for 
further assistance in this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Gerald Van Amburg, Chair 
Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources 
 
Enclosure:  BWSR Board Order 
 
CC: Dawn Bernau, MDA (via email) Margaret Wagner, MDA (via email) 
 Scott Hanson, MDH (via email) Carrie Raber, MDH (via email) 
 Dan Lais, DNR (via email) Jeff Weiss, DNR (via email) 
 Barbara Weisman, DNR (via email) Courtney Ahlers, EQB (via email) 
 Ed Lenz, BWSR (via email) Adam Beilke, BWSR (via email) 
 Shaina Keseley, BWSR (via email) Julie Westerlund, BWSR (via email) 
 Rachel Mueller, BWSR (file copy) 

mailto:adam.beilke@state.mn.us


Figure ES-1: WinLaC watershed planning boundary



Executive Summary

Partnership
WinLaC

1W1P



 

 
1 

Executive Summary 
The Mississippi River Winona/La Crescent watershed (WinLaC) is in southeastern Minnesota where it 

drains about 750 square miles within four counties (Houston, Olmsted, Wabasha, and Winona). The 

watershed is home to around 60,000 people, many of whom reside in the cities of Winona, La Crescent, 

Lewiston, Saint Charles, Eyota, and Wabasha.  

The WinLaC watershed is in the driftless ecoregion and the Lower Mississippi River Basin. The 

watershed consists of cropland, forest, and grassland and supports trout streams. For planning purposes, 

the watershed plan boundaries cover two USGS HUC-08 watersheds: portions of the Mississippi River-

Winona watershed and the Mississippi River-La Crescent watershed located in Minnesota. The majority 

of the HUC-08s are in Wisconsin, but One Watershed One Plans do not cross state boundaries. 

Figure ES-1: WinLaC watershed planning boundary 
 

Purpose, Roles, and Responsibilities 
The purpose of One Watershed, One Plan is to align water planning along watershed boundaries, not 

jurisdictional boundaries such as counties as was done in the past. Prior to this single plan, each of the 

four counties as well as the watershed district had water-related plans that covered portions of this 

watershed. Water is connected and ignores county boundaries, so to truly manage the resources overall, 

a watershed scale is most efficient and effective. 



 

 
2 

The WinLaC planning process began with a Memorandum of Agreement between local agencies and 

organizations which includes: 

• Houston, Olmsted, Wabasha, and Winona counties, 

• Olmsted, Root River, Wabasha, and Winona Soil and Water Conservation Districts, 

• The City of Winona, and 

• Stockton-Rollingstone-Minnesota City Watershed District. 

These entities are collectively known as the WinLaC Partnership, with the vision and mission statement 

below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A Plan to Reflect the Watershed 
The WinLaC CWMP needed to be drafted in a way that appropriately reflects the community it is intended 

to serve. To accomplish this, the planning process was designed to actively engage two main groups: 

local planning committees and the public.  

Local Planning Committees 
The One Watershed, One Plan process uses existing authorities; therefore, a representative from each 

governmental unit in the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was appointed by each board to serve on 

the Policy Committee, which is the decision-making body for this plan. The Planning Work Group 

consisted of staff from each of the entities in the MOA and generated the content in this plan. The 

Technical Advisory Committee consisted of state agencies and local stakeholders and contributed to 

plan content in an advisory role.  

Community Engagement 
A simplified summary of the process used to create the WinLaC CWMP is shown in Figure ES-2. To 

ensure the plan reflected community input, events were held at each milestone to receive feedback. 

 
Figure ES-2: Milestones for the WinLaC CWMP planning process. 

Vision: Through our partnership, we are collaborating 
to unify local priorities into one active, relevant 
watershed management plan which streamlines efforts 
and shares current and future resources. 
Mission: Provide citizens with clean water, balanced 
ecosystems, sustainable farmland, and diverse healthy 
communities. 



 

 
3 

 
Public Kickoff Meeting 
To receive feedback on identifying and prioritizing issues, the WinLaC Partnership hosted a Public 

Open House Kickoff in the city of Winona in September 2021. During the same time, a survey was 

created to engage residents not able to attend the kickoff to identify top issues facing water resources in 

the watershed.  

According to responses received, the largest issues 

facing natural resources were:  

• Protecting drinking water from contamination, 

• Pollutants like sediment, nutrients, and 

bacteria impacting aquatic life and recreation, 

and 

• Erosion along streambanks or shorelines. 

When asked about specific waterbodies and natural 

areas of concern, responses indicated that members 

of the public are most concerned about: 

• Lake Winona, 

• Whitewater River and, 

• Mississippi River. 

Waterside Chats  
To gain an understanding of residents’ water quality goals and acceptable solutions to include as 

implementation actions in the plan, the WinLaC Partnership hosted five facilitated “Waterside Chats.” 

These listening sessions were held in Stockton, La Crescent, Winona, Saint Charles, and Wabasha 

during March and April of 2022. Small group discussions identified where the most important issues are 

located in the watershed, and what actions should be taken to fix those issues.  

We Are Water 
In addition to the Waterside Chats, public engagement was also provided during a We Are Water exhibit 

held in the city of Winona from March through April 2022. People visiting the exhibit had the opportunity to 

gain experience about the watershed and share what they find most important about it; surveys at the 

exhibit asked what implementation action people wanted to see in the watershed.  

Figure ES-3: Survey question responses "Using 4-5 words, when 
you think of the WinLaC Watershed, what comes to mind?" 

We Are Water MN Exhibit (Photo: Winona History Center) WinLaC Waterside Chat Listening Session 



 

 
4 

Planning Regions 
Sub-watersheds within the WinLaC Planning Area have varying land use and topology which makes 

prioritizing issues uniformly across the planning area difficult.  “Planning Regions” were identified to allow 

the WinLaC Partnership the ability to focus on unique issues present within each sub-watershed. The 

WinLaC Watershed has been divided into four planning regions around subwatershed (HUC-10) 

boundaries: Whitewater, Garvin Brook, Mississippi River-La Crescent, and Small Tributaries (Figure ES-
4). Each planning region focuses on different issues and uses a unique approach to meet goals. 

 

Figure ES-4: WinLaC Planning Regions. 
  

Identify Priority Issues 
The first step in prioritizing issues is to identify a comprehensive list of issues that are impacting natural 

resources in the watershed. The WinLaC Partnership used the available data for the watershed to create 

a list of all issues and opportunities that are impacting resources of concern. Plans and data reviewed 

included state, county, and local plans, and agency responses from the 60-Day Notice of Plan Initiation.  

A total of 34 issues were identified for consideration in this plan. To better organize information, issues 

were categorized into one of four groups: groundwater, surface water, land use, and habitat and 

recreation. These categories are outlined below in Table ES-1. 

 
 



 

 
5 

 
Table ES-1: Breakdown of resource categories and explanation of what is in each category. 

Groundwater 

Groundwater includes protecting wellheads, dealing with drinking water contamination, 
and the continued increased demand for groundwater in the region.  

Surface 
Water 

Surface water issues consider surface water contamination, urban stormwater, 
flooding, the connection of tile lines to surface water systems, and the impacts of 
surface water issues to aquatic habitats.  

 
Land Use 

Land use issues include changes to the landscape from development, agriculture, 
management, and shifting weather patterns that impact how the landscape may 
change with aging infrastructure, increased precipitation trends and rainfall intensities, 
and soil health. 

Habitat and 
Recreation 

Habitat and recreation issues include providing better access to waterways, habitat 
protection, and stream connectivity for aquatic species. 

 
The WinLaC watershed plan is a 10-year plan, but not all issues can be addressed within that timeframe. 

In recognition of this, the WinLaC Partnership prioritized the most pressing issues within the watershed 

that are within control of a local water plan. Feasibility and cost were also taken into consideration when 

prioritizing issues. Issues were placed into one of three categories: Priority A, Priority B, and Priority C, 

with definitions of each provided below (Figure ES-5). In total, this plan summarizes ten Priority A issues, 

13 Priority B issues, and 11 Priority C issues. 

Figure ES-5: Resource categories for the WinLaC CWMP. 

 

Priority A: We expect these issues to be addressed first within the lifespan of this plan. These 

are the most important. 

 

Priority B: We expect some of these issues to be addressed throughout the lifespan of this 

plan. These are important, but less of a priority. 

 

Priority C: We may address some of these issues through collecting additional data or funding 

throughout the lifespan of the plan. These issues may also be addressed through partner 

groups or may be addressed as a secondary benefit from higher priority issues. These 

issues are still important, but are the lowest local priority items.  



 

 
6 

Priority A Issues  
These issues were ranked highest among the WinLaC Partnership and are the issues to be addressed 

first. They have goals and action items assigned to them in sections 4 and 5.  

Table ES-2: Priority A Issue Statements. 

Category Issue Statement  

 

Need for increased field management practices to reduce excessive nutrient and 
sediment delivery to streams and enhance nutrient cycling 

 

Elevated levels of nitrates in drinking water from agricultural and wastewater sources 

 

Excess nutrient loading (nitrogen and phosphorus) to watershed streams, and impact 
on aquatic life 

 

Excess sediment loading as a primary stressor to aquatic life, habitat, and 
recreation 

 

Failing or noncompliant septic systems and their potential for groundwater and 
surface water contamination 

 

Increased annual precipitation and more intense rainfall events and their impact on 
hydrology, water quality, and infrastructure, and the need to plan for resiliency 

 

Increased protection of wellhead/source water areas to reduce groundwater 
contamination 

 

Need for improving soil health for carbon sequestration and agricultural productivity 

 

Urban stormwater runoff, which can contribute to poor water clarity/quality, alter 
natural flow and infiltration of water, and harm aquatic life 

 

Excessive upland and overland sediment loading due to various land use practices 

 

Priority B Issues 
These issues were given a Priority B ranking and will be addressed throughout the lifetime of the plan. 

They have goals and action items assigned to them in sections 4 and 5. 

Table ES-3: Priority B Issue Statements. 
Category Issue Statement  

 

Enhancement and long-term protection of forest, native prairie, and pollinator 
habitats and corridors 

 

Unsealed or poorly constructed wells as a conduit for groundwater contamination 
from the land surface 

Table continued on next page 



 

 
7 

Category Issue Statement  

 

Nutrient runoff and legacy loading in Lake Winona and its impact on water clarity, 
aquatic life, and habitat 

 

Loss of natural wetlands, in particular riparian and backwater floodplain wetlands 
(Mississippi River Floodplain), and its impact on water quality, flood damage reduction, 
and wildlife habitat 

 

Surface and groundwater interconnectivity due to karst geology 

 

Excess sediment from near-channel and in-channel sources (floodplains, terraces, 
and streambanks) 

 

Pasture runoff and need for managed grazing within riparian corridors 

 

Flooding and its associated impact to homes, infrastructure, and natural resources 

 

Continued high levels of E. coli and its impact on aquatic recreation opportunities 
despite numerous reduction efforts  

 

Increased drainage (tile networks and drainage ditches) increasing downstream 
speed and velocity of water and associated sediment/nutrient delivery to channels and 
ditches 

 

Increased presence of terrestrial invasive species and its impact on native plant 
species 

 

Enhancement and protection of trout fisheries and habitat from adverse conditions 

 

Presence of aquatic invasive species threatening aquatic vegetation and aquatic life 

 
Priority C Issues 
These issues are important but will not be the focus of this plan. These issues may be outside of local 

governmental control or may be addressed by completing a different priority. They will not have goals or 

action items assigned to address them.  

Table ES-4: Priority C Issues  

Category Issue Statement  

 

Protection of rare habitats and plant communities (calcareous fens, algific talus slopes, 
bottomland hardwood forests) to support native wildlife, insects, and birds 

 

Barriers to stream connectivity (i.e., culverts and road crossings) adversely impacting 
aquatic life, particularly coldwater fish 

 

Monitoring and protection of groundwater levels to ensure that water availability meets 
increasing demand 

Table ES-3 continued  

Table continued on next page 



 

 
8 

Category Issue Statement  

 

Protection of riparian game and non-game habitat 

 

Protection and management of blufflands from development and erosion 

 

Risk of chloride contamination for surface waters in the watershed 

 

Increase in development pressure in both rural and urban areas of watershed 

 

Low dissolved oxygen levels in streams and its impact on aquatic life 

 

Inadequate public water access sites to designated trout streams 

 

Inadequate accessibility and presence of debris in the Whitewater River State Water Trail, 
impacting navigability of the resource 

 

Need for improved management of aggregate resources and consumption/transport of 
resources 

 

Set Measurable Goals 
To determine if a plan has been successful, measurable goals are needed to monitor progress and to 

show quantifiable change in resource conditions.  

Section 4. Watershed Resources and Measurable Goals of this plan outlines all measurable goals in 

actionable short- and long-term situations. Accompanying the priority issue and the short-term and long-

term goals is background information on why each measurable goal is needed. A watershed map, broken 

out by HUC-12 drainage areas, is provided for each measurable goal and highlights what areas of the 

watershed should be prioritized. An example goal within the measurable goal section is provided in 

Figure ES-6.  

 

 

Table ES-4 continued  



 

 
9 

Figure ES-6: Example of a WinLaC CWMP measurable goal. 
 
Assign Implementation Action 
Each goal has a corresponding list of actions designed to make progress toward that goal. Actions were 

collaboratively brainstormed and vetted for this WinLaC plan from community input, input from local 

planning committees, and existing reports and plans.  

 

 



 

 
10 

Within Section 5. Targeted Implementation, actions are organized and summarized into “action tables” 

that include the following information:  

• Resource: Identifies if the action is primarily addressing groundwater, surface water, or land 

use/habitat concerns 

• Primary Goal: Identifies the goal the action is primarily addressing 

• Output: How much of the action will be implemented in the 10-year plan 

• Implementation Program: The program that will fund the action  

• Focus Area: Priority subwatersheds and resources for implementation 

• Lead: Lead entities that will oversee implementation, with partners that may assist with funding 

and efforts 

• Timeline: Describes when implementation will occur during the 10-year plan 

• Output for Goal Tracking: Identifies if the output will be used to report progress back on 

measurable goals 

• Cost: Estimates the cost of implementing the action  

Each action falls into one of five implementation programs, described below with each program’s 

associated icon (Figure ES-7). These are example actions, specific actions within these programs are 

described more in Section 5. Targeted Implementation and Section 6. Watershed Implementation 
Programs. 

 

Actions brainstormed at the city of Winona Waterside Chat. 



 

 
11 

 

Figure ES-7: Implementation programs for the WinLaC CWMP. 
 

 

 

• Field management 

practices 

• Soil health practices 

• Technical support 

and assistance 

Projects and Support 

• Community events 

• Removing barriers to 

conservation action 

• Field days 

Education and  
Public Input 

• Water quality 

monitoring 

• Well inventory 

• Groundwater trend 

analyses 

Monitoring and 
Studies 

• Stream restorations 

• Large habitat 

complexes 

• In-lake management 

• Flood control 

structures 

Capital Improvement 
Projects 

• WCA enforcement 

• Buffer enforcement 

• AIS management 

• Well and septic 

regulation 

Regulation and Local 
Controls 



 

 
12 

Funding 
This plan has defined two funding levels. Funding Level 1 is the estimated total of current funding that the 

watershed has access to use towards implementing opportunities in this plan. Upon approval of this 

CWMP, a second pool of funding becomes accessible. This funding is called the Watershed-Based 

Implementation Fund (WBIF) that is provided by the Board of Soil and Water Resources. Funding Level 2 

includes Funding Level 1, the Watershed-Based Implementation Funds, and other funding sources and is 

the focus of this plan. Level 3 funding includes all other funding- from organizations, agencies, grants, etc. 

that can be used to implement water quality actions through partnerships. 

 

 

Plan Administration and Coordination 
Implementation of the WinLaC CWMP will require increased capacity of plan partners, including 

increased staffing, funding, and coordination from current levels. Successful implementation will depend 

on continuing and building on partnerships in the watershed with landowners, planning partners, state 

agencies, and organizations. The details of the Administration of this plan are described in Section 7. 
Plan Administration and Coordination.  

The WinLaC Partnership local partners involved in implementing this plan are listed below:  

• Houston, Olmsted, Wabasha, and Winona counties, 

• Root River, Olmsted, Wabasha and Winona Soil and Water Conservation Districts (SWCDs), 

• City of Winona, and 

• Stockton-Rollingstone-Minnesota City Watershed District. 

Current 
Funding 

This level is based on current 

Partner expenditures that are 

dedicated to natural resources 

issues. 

This level assumes Level 1 

Funding, plus an additional 

$578,000 per biennium (or 

$289,000/year) from  

WBIF dollars. 

Current  
Funding + WBIF 

This funding level recognizes 

that there are other  

organizations and agencies 

working in the watershed that 

make progress towards plan 

goals. This level contains 

additional implementation 

activities identified during the 

plan development process that 

are the responsibility of agencies 

and organizations better suited 

in the watershed. 

Partner and Other 
Funding 


	1 Board Meeting Notice
	2 Board Meeting Agenda
	3 Board Minutes January 25, 2023
	4a Request Board Action Form -March 23, 2023
	4b DRCRPT March 7, 2023
	5.0 OLD BUSINESS
	5a Request_Board_Action_Form_Tribes
	6.0 GRANTS PROGRAM AND POLICY COMMITTEE
	6a Request Board Action Form_2023_Planning_Grants
	6b Board Order 1W1P RFP_2023
	6c 2023 1W1P RFP
	6d 1W1P Planning Grant Policy 2.0
	7.0 NORTHERN REGIONAL COMMITTEE
	7a St. Louis  Board Action Form
	7b St. Louis_board Order
	7c St. Louis Plan Approval Letter
	7d St Louis CWMP Final Ex Sum
	8.0 SOUTHERN REGIONAL COMMITTEE
	8a Des_Moines 1W1P Request_Board_Action_Form 20230127
	8b Des Moines River Draft Board Order
	8c Des Moines 1W1P Plan Approval Letter_20230127
	8d Des Moines Watershed Map
	8e Des Moines River Watershed CWMP Executive Summary
	9a LqP-YB CWMP Request Board Action Form
	9b LqP-YB Board Order Plan Approval
	9c LqP-YB CMWP Approval Letter
	9d LqP_YB_Watershed_Map
	9e LqP_YB_Exec_Summary
	10a LMRW Request Board Action Form
	10b LMRW Draft Board Order
	10c LMRW Plan Approval Letter
	10d LMRW Watershed Map
	10e LMRW CWMP_Executive Summary
	11a WinLaC Request Board Action Form
	11b WinLaC Board Order Plan Approval
	11c WinLaC Plan Approval Letter
	11d WinLaC CWMP Map
	11e WinLaC CWMP Exec Summary



